


















































































































Guide to the California
Hazard Communication
Regulation

This guide is not meant to be
substitute for—or a legal inter-
pretation of—the occupational
safety and health standards. The
reader is cautioned to refer directly
to the California Code of Regulations,
Title 8, or the Labor Code for detailed
and exact information, specifications,
and exceptions.



ii

Publishing Information
The Guide to the California Hazard Communication
Regulation was developed by the Education Unit,
Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, California
Department of Industrial Relations. The document
was prepared for publication by the staff of CDE
Press, California Department of Education. It was
distributed under the provisions of the Library
Distribution Act and Government Code Section
11096.

Published 2000 by the California Department of
Industrial Relations



iii

About This Guide ....................................................................................... iv

What’s in It for Me ..................................................................................... 1

Regulatory Requirements ......................................................................  2

Summary of California’s Hazard Communication Regulation

I. Scope ..................................................................................................... 4
Application, Exemptions, and Exclusions

II. Hazard Determination............................................................................ 6

III. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs) .................................................. 7

IV. Labels and Other Forms of Warning ..................................................... 9

V. Written Hazard Communication Program ........................................... 11

VI. Employee Information and Training ................................................... 13

VII. Trade Secret Protection........................................................................ 14

Attachments

A. Hazard Communication Program: Step by Step .................................. 16

B. Written Hazard Communication Program Sample .............................. 17

C. Hazardous Substance Inventory List Sample ...................................... 21

D. Hazard Communication Employee Training Program Sample ........... 22

E. MSDS Request Letter Sample ............................................................. 24

F. MSDS Sample .............................................................................. 25

Resources ......................................................................................38

Evaluation ................................................................................... 39

Acknowledgments .................................................................... 40

Cal/OSHA Consultation Service Offices ............... Back Cover

Contents



iv

About This Guide

E very day at workplaces throughout California, employees work with or are inci-
dentally exposed to hazardous substances that can harm their health or cause

safety hazards. This guide is designed to help employers and employees understand
the requirements of the hazard communication regulation by providing a simplified
and clear overview of the major program elements.

For easy reference, this guide is separated into seven main sections:

I. Scope, which explains what employers and what types of substances are subject
to the regulation, as well as the exemptions from the regulation

II. Hazard Determination, which explains how responsible parties can determine
which specific substances are hazardous

III. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs), which explains what an MSDS is, what
categories it must include, and how this information can be used to educate
employees on the hazards of chemicals

IV. Labels and Other Forms of Warning, which explains labeling requirements
and the importance of implementing a visual warning system that will quickly
and effectively alert employees to potentially dangerous chemicals and situations

V. Written Hazard Communication Program, which explains all the require-
ments of such a program

VI. Employee Information and Training, which addresses employers’ responsibili-
ties for making sure that their employees are trained—prior to starting work—on
the safe handling of hazardous substances they are or may be exposed to in their
jobs and on the ways in which they can protect themselves from those hazards

VII.  Trade Secret Protection, which addresses how manufacturers may comply with
the regulation without revealing the specifics of a chemical compound

At the back of this guide, there are six attachments intended to further assist employers
in setting up or improving an existing hazard communication program. Attachments A
through D are samples of various elements of an effective written program. The basic
format can be tailored to reflect your individual work site and the chemical substances
found there. Attachments E and F relate to MSDS forms—how to request one from the
manufacturer and what the appropriate form should look like.

Whatever the size of the facility or number of chemical hazards, it is essential that
both employers and employees know how to identify potentially hazardous
substances, understand the health hazards associated with these chemicals, and
follow safe work practices. Every workplace which has or uses hazardous substances
must have a written and effectively implemented hazard communication program that
specifically addresses the potential hazards found at that particular site.

iv



1

What’s in It for Me?

E mployers benefit from having an effective hazard communication
program because it helps them:

• Identify and control hazardous substances present in their workplaces.

• Develop or rethink safe and efficient strategies for the use, handling, and
disposal of these substances.

• Promote safe and effective work practices.

• Reduce workers’ compensation losses.

• Comply with the law.

All these elements ultimately save money and increase employee morale and
productivity.

Employees also benefit from a hazard communication program because they
learn how to identify potentially hazardous chemicals to which they may be
exposed in the workplace. This increased awareness promotes the greater
likelihood that employees will:

• Reduce their exposure to hazardous substances.

• Follow safer work practices.

• Protect themselves, thereby preventing work-related injuries and illnesses.

Medical personnel, such as physicians, nurses, and other health care profes-
sionals, can best treat injured workers when they have complete background
information on the substances to which an injured worker was exposed.

Emergency responders, such as firefighters and police, benefit because:

• An effective response strategy depends on advance knowledge of the
chemical(s) involved in a fire or chemical spill.

• They can better protect themselves, thereby reducing the likelihood of
work-related injuries and illnesses.



2

Regulatory Requirements

Under the California Labor Code and the California Occupational Safety
and Health Act, all employers in California are legally obligated to

provide and maintain a safe and healthful workplace for employees.

The hazard communication regulation emphasizes workplace safety and
requires employers to inform their employees of the hazardous substances to
which they are exposed at the job site. Requirements for developing, imple-
menting, and maintaining a hazard communication program are found in
Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations (T8 CCR), Section 5194.
Subsection 5194(b)(6) contains the Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforce-
ment Act (Proposition 65), which was added to the original hazard communi-
cation regulation in 1991.

Proposition 65 requires the governor to publish a list of chemicals known to
the State of California to cause cancer, birth defects, or reproductive harm.
Proposition 65 also requires that businesses provide a clear and reasonable
warning before knowingly and intentionally exposing anyone to a listed
chemical. An overview of Proposition 65 as it relates to the hazard communi-
cation regulation is noted throughout this guide. For complete details on the
Proposition 65 regulation, please refer to T22 CCR, Section 12000 et seq., or
contact the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA)
Web site:

<http://www.oehha.ca.gov>

Compliance with Proposition 65 requirements for notifying employees
of hazards can be achieved simply by complying with the provisions of
California’s hazard communication regulation.

For a free copy of the hazard communication regulation or more information
on its requirements, or if you wish to request free professional assistance
with your hazard communication program, please call the nearest Cal/OSHA
Consultation office listed on the last page of this guide. The hazard commu-
nication regulation can also be accessed through the Department of Industrial
Relations Web site for Cal/OSHA Standards, California Code of Regulations,
Title 8:

<http://www.dir.ca.gov/samples/search/query.htm>

PR
O

POSITION



3

Summary of
California’s Hazard
Communication
Regulation

I. Scope

II. Hazard Determination

III. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs)

IV. Labels and Other Forms of Warning

V. Written Hazard Communication Program

VI. Employee Information and Training

VII. Trade Secret Protection



4 Summary of California’s Hazard Communication Regulation

PR
O

POSITION

I. Scope (T8 CCR 5194[b])

This section explains who is subject to the California Hazard Communi-
cation Regulation and what conditions must be present in order to be

exempt from the regulation.

Application

Except for the exemptions and exclusions noted below, the hazard communi-
cation regulation applies to:

A. All California employers—regardless of size—whose employees may be
exposed to hazardous substances

 applies to all businesses except:

• Companies employing fewer than ten employees

• Any government agency

•  All public water systems

B. All hazardous substances found in the workplace under normal condi-
tions of use as well as in reasonably foreseeable emergency conditions
(i.e., a spill or release of a flammable chemical)

 applies only to:

• The specified list of chemicals known to the State of California to
cause cancer, birth defects, or other reproductive harm. These listed
chemicals may be naturally occurring or synthetic, used as ingredients
in materials and products, and/or generated as byproducts, emissions,
and waste.

Exemptions

1. Chemicals in closed containers. Although operations in which employ-
ees handle hazardous substances only in sealed containers (e.g.,
warehouse, transportation, or retail sales) are exempt from the full stan-
dard, employers are still required to:

• Ensure that labels on incoming containers are not removed or defaced.
• Obtain and maintain Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs) and make

them readily accessible to employees in their work area(s) during each
work shift.

PR
O

POSITION



5
PR

O

POSITION

• Train employees so they know how to handle and protect themselves
in the event of a chemical spill or a leak from a sealed container.

2. Laboratories. Employers who engage in the laboratory use of hazardous
chemicals are exempt from the hazard communication regulation if they
meet all of the following conditions:

• Chemical manipulations are carried out on a “laboratory scale”—a
single person using small quantities of hazardous chemicals in proce-
dures that are not part of a production process, nor in any way simulate
a production process; and

• Multiple chemicals or chemical procedures are used; and
• Protective laboratory practices and equipment are available and in

common use industry-wide to minimize the potential for employee
exposure to hazardous chemicals.

These employers are, however, subject to T8 CCR, Section 5191,
“Occupational Exposure to Hazardous Chemicals in Laboratories.”

warnings do not apply to:

• An exposure for which federal law preempts state authority

• An exposure that takes place less than twelve months from the time
the chemical was officially listed in T22 CCR, Section 12000, “Chemi-
cals Known to the State to Cause Cancer or Reproductive Toxicity”

• An exposure for which the employer can show that:

a. The exposure of a given chemical from the list of carcinogens poses
no significant cancer risk, assuming lifetime exposure at the level in
question; and

b. The exposure of a given chemical from the list of reproductive
toxicants will have no observable effect, assuming exposure at one
thousand (1,000) times the level in question.

Exclusions

The following are excluded from the hazard communication regulation:

• Hazardous wastes regulated by the EPA

• Tobacco products

• Natural wood or chemically untreated wood products for retail sale

• Manufactured items—articles that are handled/processed in a way that
does not result in employee exposure via inhalation, ingestion, or skin
absorption, such as items for immediate use or retail sale

• Food, drugs, and cosmetics consumed or used by the employees on the job
site

I. Scope



6 Summary of California’s Hazard Communication Regulation

PR
O

POSITION

• Retail trade establishments, except for processing and repair work areas

• Pesticide use regulated by the California Department of Food and
Agriculture

• Consumer products, unless quantities used or exposures are greater than
ordinary home consumer quantities or exposures

II. Hazard Determination (T8 CCR 5194[d])

M anufacturers, distributors (if they repackage and sell under their own
label), and importers are required to assess the physical and health

hazards associated with the substances they produce or repackage. They are
also required to provide hazard information to employers by means of labels
and MSDSs. From the MSDSs and sources listed below, employers can find
out whether substances to which employees are exposed at the workplace are
hazardous and, therefore, subject to the hazard communication regulation.

Note

California employers must determine whether any of the hazardous
chemicals from their chemical inventory are subject to Proposition
65 requirements. To obtain this updated list of chemicals, please call
OEHHA at (916) 445-6900; access the OEHHA Web site
<http://www.oehha.ca.gov>; or subscribe to Division 2 of Title 22,
California Code of Regulations, beginning with Section 12000, from
Barclays Law Publishers.

A “hazardous substance” includes:

A. Any hazardous substances listed in:

1. The Hazardous Substances List (T8 CCR, Section 339), commonly
known as “The Director’s List of Hazardous Substances”

2. 29, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 1910, Subpart Z, “Toxic
and Hazardous Substances,” Occupational Safety and Health Adminis-
tration (federal OSHA); and T8 CCR, Section 5155, “Air Contaminants”

3. Threshold Limit Values for Chemical Substances in the Work Environ-
ment, American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists
(ACGIH), 1991–1992

4. Sixth Annual Report on Carcinogens, National Toxicology Program
(NTP), 1991

5. Monographs, International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC),
Vols. 1–53 and Supplements 1–8. World Health Organization



7

6. Material Safety Data Sheets as reproductive toxicants or cancer-
producing substances

7. T22 CCR, Section 12000, under the Safe Drinking Water and Toxic
Enforcement Act of 1986 (Proposition 65), “Chemicals Known to the
State to Cause Cancer or Reproductive Toxicity,” a list published at least
once a year by Cal/EPA’s Office of Environmental Health Hazard
Assessment

B. Any other substances that present a physical or health hazard as deter-
mined by scientific evidence.

III. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs)
(T8 CCR 5194[g])

On each hazardous chemical, MSDSs provide information such as health
 hazards, special chemical and physical characteristics, protective mea-

sures, precautions for safe handling, use and storage of each chemical.
Employers can use the information contained in MSDSs to educate em-
ployees on hazards associated with chemicals found in their workplace.

Because information contained in MSDSs can change, employers must re-
view the MSDSs and ensure that employees are provided with the most
current version. Also make sure that employees have ready access to MSDSs
and are trained to understand the information (please see Attachment F,
“MSDS Sample”).

All parties should be aware of the following information:
A. Manufacturers, importers, or other responsible parties who prepare

MSDSs are required to develop an MSDS for every hazardous substance
or mixture they produce or import.

B. The MSDS must encompass all of the following categories. If there is no
relevant information for a given category, or a category does not apply to
the chemical in question, the MSDS must indicate that no information is
applicable. Mandatory items are:
• For a single hazardous substance, the substance identity used on the

label, the chemical name, the common name, and the Chemical Ab-
stracts Service (CAS) number of the hazardous substance.

For a hazardous mixture tested as a whole, all of the elements listed
above for each hazardous ingredient and the common name of the
mixture itself.

For a hazardous mixture not tested as a whole, the chemical name, the
common name, and the CAS number of all hazardous ingredients that
compose 1 percent or greater of the mixture and carcinogens that are
present in concentrations of 0.1 percent or greater. Refer to T8 CCR,
5194 (g)(2)(A)3 for full details.

III. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs)



8 Summary of California’s Hazard Communication Regulation

The names used on the MSDS must allow for cross-referencing with the
name that appears on the product label and on the inventory list of
hazardous substances in the workplace.

• Physical and chemical properties, such as vapor pressure, flash point,
and solubility of the chemical(s).

• Physical hazards, such as fire, explosion, or dangerous chemical reac-
tions.

• Health hazards, including signs and symptoms of exposure, ranging
from minor skin irritation to death. This section must also include any
medical condition that could be made worse by exposure to the sub-
stance. These health effects can be acute (short-term) or chronic (long-
term).

• Potential routes of entry of the hazardous substance into the body.
• Permissible exposure limits for hazardous substances. These are the

legally required OSHA Permissible Exposure Limits (PELs), the recom-
mended American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists
(ACGIH) Threshold Limit Values (TLVs), and any other limits recom-
mended by the manufacturer, importer, or employer preparing the
MSDS. Be aware that PELs listed on MSDSs are based on federal PELs;
California PELs may be more stringent.

• Information on whether the hazardous substance is listed as a carcinogen
by the National Toxicology Program (NTP), the International Agency of
Research on Cancer (IARC), or the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA).

• Precautions for safe handling, use, and storage, including protective
measures that should be taken prior to repair and maintenance of
equipment and cleanup procedures for spills and leaks.

• Known control measures, including engineering, work practices, and
personal protective equipment needed to protect employees from
danger.

• Emergency and first aid procedures.
• Date of MSDS preparation or date of last change in contents.
• Name, address, and phone number of the party responsible for preparing

the MSDS who could, if necessary, provide additional information,
including emergency procedures on the hazardous substance in
question.

C. MSDS preparers are required to update the MSDS within three months of
learning new hazard data and/or ways to protect against the hazards.

D. Chemical manufacturers and importers of hazardous substances are re-
quired to provide an MSDS with each initial shipment and whenever an
MSDS is updated. Distributors are required to provide MSDSs and MSDS
updates to all purchasers of hazardous substances.



9

E. Employers must have an MSDS for every hazardous chemical in the
workplace. If the delivered MSDS is missing any of the mandatory items,
or if no MSDS is delivered with the substance, the employer must write
asking the manufacturer or distributor for an MSDS containing all manda-
tory items.

F. Employers are also responsible for keeping MSDSs current and making
them accessible to employees in their work area(s) during each work shift.

G. Businesses that have multiple workplaces to which employees travel
must keep MSDSs at a primary central location and must establish a
mechanism to ensure that employees can immediately obtain the re-
quired information in an emergency.

H. If you have a specific question or need additional information on an
MSDS, please call the Cal/OSHA Consultation Service at 1-800-963-9424
or HESIS of the Occupational Health Branch at 510-622-4317 (English).

I. If you are unable to obtain the MSDS from the vendor within 25 calendar
days of the request, please call your local Cal/OSHA compliance office or
write to:

Division of Occupational Safety and Health
Deputy Chief of Health and Engineering Services
P. O. Box 420603
San Francisco, CA 94142-0603

IV. Labels and Other Forms of  Warning
(T8 CCR 5194[f])

E mployers are required to use legible labels and other forms of warning
to clearly and quickly communicate the identity and hazard(s) of chemi-

cals in the workplace. Labels and other forms of warning are to be conspicu-
ously placed on containers so that the message is readily visible. If a business
employs a large number of non-English-speaking employees, employers are
required to use symbols, warning signs in English and other languages, or any
other means necessary to ensure that their employees understand the dangers
present in the workplace.

Affected parties should be aware of the following information:

A. When the employer receives hazardous substance containers, the
supplier’s original containers must be labeled with the following
information:
1. Identity of the hazardous substance, which must allow for cross-

referencing with the MSDS and the inventory list of hazardous sub-
stances in the workplace

IV. Labels and Other Forms of Warning



10 Summary of California’s Hazard Communication Regulation

PR
O

POSITION

2. Hazard warning statements, including Proposition 65 warnings if
applicable

3. Name and address of the chemical manufacturer, importer, or other
responsible party

Note

Hazardous substance containers from out-of-state chemical manufactur-
ers or distributors (who are not subject to Proposition 65) may not
have Proposition 65 hazard warnings. California’s suppliers/employers
must meet the requirement in various ways, including affixing additional
Proposition 65 warning labels on containers or posting signs in the
workplace.

B. If during the course of work hazardous substances are transferred from
the original container to a secondary portable container, the employer
needs to ensure that the secondary container is labeled with the following
information:

1. Identity of the hazardous substance
2. Hazard warning statements, including Proposition 65 warnings if

applicable

Note: Portable containers for immediate use during a single shift by a
single employee who performs the transfer himself/herself are exempt
from the labeling requirement under California’s Hazard Communication
Regulation.

C. On individual stationary process containers—such as plating tanks—
employers can use signs, placards, and other options in lieu of labels as
long as the required information listed above is included.

D. Employers must relabel containers whenever labels are damaged or
defaced.

E. Additional labeling requirements apply for specific chemicals listed
under the substance-specific health standards as referenced in T8 CCR,
Article 110, “Regulated Carcinogens” (all sections under this Article).

F. Above-ground pipes transporting hazardous substances (gases, vapors,
liquids, semi-liquids, or plastics) shall be identified in accordance with
T8 CCR, Section 3321, “Identification of Piping.”



11
PR

O

POSITION

Note

The Right to Know warning requirement mandates that a clear and
reasonable warning be given to all individuals prior to exposure to any
listed chemical that can cause cancer, birth defects, or other reproduc-
tive harm. Businesses that have one or more of the listed chemicals in
the workplace as an ingredient in a material they use, a product they
manufacture, and/or an emission into the environment must provide a
clear and reasonable warning, unless they can prove that the expo-
sure causes no significant risk.

The language in the warning must clearly state that the chemical in
question is known to cause cancer, birth defects, or other reproductive
harm. The warning must be given so that it effectively reaches the person
before he/she is exposed.

Under Proposition 65, warnings are required for:
1. Consumer product exposures
2. Occupational exposures
3. Environmental exposures

Warnings for exposure in the workplace can be communicated by one
or a combination of the following:

1. A warning on a product label
2. A warning or sign posted conspicuously in the workplace
3. A warning that complies with the federal OSHA “Hazard Communica-

tion Regulation” (29 CFR, Section 1910.1200), the California “Hazard
Communication Regulation” (T8 CCR, Section 5194), the “Pesticides
and Worker Safety Requirements” (T3 CCR, Ch. 6, Subch. 3, Group 3,
Section 6700)

V.  Written Hazard Communication Program
(T8 CCR 5194[e])

E mployers whose employees may be exposed to hazardous substances are
required to have a written hazard communication program that addresses

all the requirements of the regulation. Employers who tailor a written pro-
gram to meet the specific needs of their workplace will maximize the ben-
efits of workplace safety.

A written hazard communication program must describe the procedures for
meeting all the requirements of the regulation, including:

A. Developing and maintaining a list of the hazardous substances in the
workplace. This list may be compiled for the workplace as a whole or for

V.  Written Hazard Communication Program



12 Summary of California’s Hazard Communication Regulation

PR
O

POSITION

individual work areas and can serve as a checklist to ensure that all
hazardous substances in the workplace have MSDSs and labels.

Note

Establish an ongoing system to obtain the updated Proposition 65 list of
chemicals. For chemicals that are newly added, warning requirements
apply 12 months from the effective date of listing.

B. An explanation of how the employer will meet requirements for:

1. Labeling of containers of hazardous substances and other forms of
warning

2. MSDSs and making sure they are readily accessible to employees and
emergency responders

3. Employee training on hazardous substances they are or may be ex-
posed to in their particular jobs during routine/nonroutine work, or
emergency situations

C. A plan of how multi-employer workplace issues, if applicable, will be
addressed:

1. How an employer will inform a contractor—whose employees work in
the employer’s workplace—of the hazardous substances to which the
contractor’s employees may be exposed while performing their work,
and how the employer’s employees will be protected from hazardous
substances brought into the workplace by the contractor’s employees.
If the hazardous substances include Proposition 65 chemicals, clear
and reasonable warnings must be provided to all employees, from
either the employer or the contractor, prior to exposure.

2. How the employer will inform other employers of precautionary
measures needed to protect employees during normal work as well as
emergency conditions.

3. How the employer will inform other employers of the labeling system
in the workplace.

D. A plan for the periodic (e.g., annual) evaluation of program effectiveness
and plans for updating the program, if necessary.

Note: The written hazard communication program must be available
upon request to employees, their representatives, Cal/OSHA representa-
tives, and others in accordance with Section 3204(e), “Access to Em-
ployee Exposure and Medical Records.”



13

VI. Employee Information and Training
(T8 CCR 5194[h])

E mployee training is an integral part of the hazard communication pro-
gram and must be provided at the time of initial assignment, whenever a

new hazard is introduced into the workplace, and when employees may be
exposed to other employers’ workplace hazards. Employees need to know
ahead of time the identity and hazards of all chemicals to which they may be
exposed, including chemicals listed under Proposition 65. Once they have
this knowledge, they will understand the need to protect themselves and are
more likely to observe the company’s safety rules.

Employee training on new or revised MSDS information must be provided
within 30 days of the employer receiving that information. All training
materials used must be appropriate in both content and vocabulary for the
educational level, literacy level, and language comprehension level of the
employees. Employees must be given an opportunity to ask questions of the
person(s) conducting the training. Although not required, periodic refresher
training in addition to the initial training is beneficial and encouraged.

Videotapes may be used to supplement your training; however, videos alone
are not an acceptable substitute for training.

The Cal/OSHA Consultation Service is also available to answer health and
safety concerns you may have, including questions on personal protective
equipment (PPE). Refer to the list on the back cover of this guide to find the
phone number of the Cal/OSHA Consultation Office nearest you.

Information and training must include:

1. Requirements of the hazard communication regulation, including em-
ployee rights (e.g., employees receiving and sharing with their physician
information on hazardous chemicals to which they may be exposed)

2. Information about the location and availability of the employer’s written
hazard communication program

3. Identification of any operation in the employee work area where hazard-
ous substances are present

4. Information on how to obtain, read, and understand MSDSs and labels,
including data on the physical and health hazards of the substances

5. How to detect the presence or release of hazardous substances (e.g.,
appearance and odor)

VI. Employee Information and Training



14 Summary of California’s Hazard Communication Regulation

6. Protective measures to be used, such as work practices, personal protective
equipment, and emergency procedures

Note: T8 CCR, Section 3203(b)(1), “Injury and Illness Prevention Pro-
gram,” requires that employee training be documented and records re-
tained for at least one year.

VII.  Trade Secret Protection
(T8 CCR 5194[i])

Under the trade secret provision, manufacturers, importers, or employers
who wish to withhold the specific identity of a hazardous chemical

from the MSDS must meet all the specific requirements of T8 CCR,
Section 5194(i), including:

A. The MSDS must state that the specific identity of the chemical mixture is
being withheld as a trade secret. All other MSDS categories must be
addressed.

B. Trade secret information must be released in certain circumstances.
Information on the specific chemical identity of a trade secret substance
may be requested in medical emergencies as well as in non-emergency
situations.

In the case of a medical emergency, the chemical identity must be imme-
diately disclosed to medical personnel. In non-emergency situations,
disclosure shall be made to health or safety professionals and to employ-
ees and their designated representatives upon a written request, which

• Explains why the disclosure of the specific chemical identity is
essential, and

• Describes the procedures by which the disclosed information will be
kept confidential.

Note: A trade secret cannot include chemical identity information that is
already discoverable through laboratory qualitative analysis. Refer to T8
CCR, Section 5194(i), for complete information on conditions for releas-
ing a trade secret and for holding the information confidential.



Throughout industry, the risks of chemical exposure are real
and often, a component of every workday. For these rea-

sons, it is Cal/OSHA’s aim to increase awareness of chemical
hazards and thereby contribute to greater workplace health
and safety.

In addition to a safer workplace, employers should consider—in
today’s highly competitive business climate—the rewards that a
sound hazard communication program can provide. Any work-
place would welcome such benefits as enhanced chemical inven-
tory control, safer chemical processes, reduced workers com-
pensation premiums, and reduced waste and disposal costs.

It takes time and effort to set up and maintain a successful
hazard communication program. However, it is critically impor-
tant for both employers and employees to collaborate in its
implementation and maintenance. It is like a safety net that can
help prevent injuries, illnesses, and accidents while protecting
your workers and your business and saving you money.

Remember—it is required by law, but it is also good business
practice.



16

Read this guide for an overview of the regulation.

Read the Hazard Communication Regulation, Title 8, California Code of
Regulations, Section 5194.

Designate staff responsible for developing, implementing, and monitoring the
hazard communication program.

Develop and maintain a current inventory of all hazardous substances to
which employees may be exposed.

Collect current Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs) for all hazardous sub-
stances listed on the workplace inventory prepared in Step 4.

Check original and secondary containers to ensure they are properly labeled.
Include Proposition 65 warning requirements if applicable.

Develop a plan for your written hazard communication program. Put into
writing how you are implementing the program (see Attachment B, “Written
Hazard Communication Program Sample”).

Train employees on the Hazard Communication Regulation and on the hazard-
ous substances that may be found on your work site. This training must include,
but is not limited to:

• What MSDSs are and how to interpret them

• Proper labeling procedures

• Employee protective measures

• Signs and symptoms of excessive exposure

Keep your written hazard communication program current by ensuring that:

• New employees are trained.

• Employees are retrained whenever new hazardous substances are introduced
into the workplace.

• New chemicals are received with proper labels and MSDSs, and secondary
containers are also properly labeled.

• Contractors’ issues are addressed. Your employees could be exposed to new
chemicals brought onto the site by the contractor’s employees, or the
contractor’s employees could be unfamiliar with the chemicals already on
your site.

Attachment A

Hazard Communication Program:
Step by Step

Step 1

Step 2

Step 3

Step 4

Step 5

Step 6

Step 7

Step 8

Step 9

Attachment A



17

Attachment B

Written Hazard Communication
Program Sample

for XYZ COMPANY

This is an example only. Employers are encouraged to develop their own program,
specifically tailored to their operation and needs.

To enhance our employees’ health and safety, our company has developed, implemented, and main-
tains a hazard communication program as required by the Hazard Communication Regulation (T8
CCR 5194). The hazard communication manager, (name), has full authority and responsibility for
implementing and maintaining this program. We provide information about the hazardous sub-
stances in our workplace, the associated hazards, and the control of these hazards through a compre-
hensive hazard communication program that includes the elements listed below.

1. List of hazardous substances

(Person/position) will prepare and keep current an inventory list of all known hazardous substances
present in our workplace. Specific information on each noted hazardous substance can be obtained
by reviewing the MSDSs (see Attachment C, “Hazardous Substance Inventory List Sample”).

2. Propostion 65 list of chemicals

(Person/position) is responsible for obtaining updates of Proposition 65 listed chemicals and provid-
ing new information to affected employees. In the case of newly added chemicals to the Proposition
65 list, warning requirements take effect 12 months from the date of listing.

3. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs)

(Person/position) is responsible for obtaining the MSDSs, reviewing them for completeness, and
maintaining the data sheet system for our company. In the review of incoming data sheets, if new
and significant health/safety information becomes available, this new information is passed on
immediately to the affected employees by additional training sessions, posting of memos, and other
means of communication.

Legible MSDS copies for all hazardous substances to which employees of this company may be
exposed are kept in (list all locations). MSDSs are readily available for review to all employees in
their work area and during each work shift. If MSDSs are missing or new hazardous substance(s) in
use do not have MSDSs, or if an MSDS is obviously incomplete, please contact (person/position)
immediately, and a new MSDS will be requested from the manufacturer. If we are unable to obtain
the MSDS from the vendor within 25 calendar days of the request, we will either call our local Cal/
OSHA compliance office or write to:

Division of Occupational Safety and Health
Deputy Chief of Health and Engineering Services
P. O. Box 420603
San Francisco, CA 94142-0603

Attachment B



18

If anyone has a specific question or needs additional information on an MSDS, please call the
Cal/OSHA Consultation Service at 1-800-963-9424 or HESIS of the Occupational Health Branch
of  at 510-622-4317.

If we use alternatives other than paper MSDSs—computer or microfiche machines with printers
or telefax machines—we will make sure that employees have ready access to and know how to
operate these devices for retrieval and printing of legible hard copies. Our backup system in the
event of failure of the primary MSDS retrieval system will require employees to request paper
MSDSs by telephone. An MSDS hard copy will be provided to the requester as soon as possible
after the telephone request is made.

4.  Labels and other forms of warning

Before hazardous substance containers are released to the work area, it is the policy of our
company that (person/position) will verify that all primary and secondary containers are labeled
as follows:

Label Information Primary Container Secondary Container

Identity of the hazardous substance(s) ✔ ✔

Applicable hazard warnings ✔ ✔

Name and address of the manufacturer ✔

To address exposures to Proposition 65 chemicals, (person/position) will provide clear and
reasonable warnings to individuals prior to exposure by means of posting signs conspicuously,
labeling consumer products, and training employees.

If applicable, (person/position) will arrange for labels, signs, and other warnings to be printed in
other languages.

5. Employee information and training

Employees are to attend a health and safety training session set up by (person/position) prior to
starting work. This training session will provide information on the following:

• The requirements of the hazard communication regulation, including the employees’ rights
under the regulation

• The location and availability of the written hazard communication program
• Any operation in their work area, including nonroutine tasks, where hazardous substances or

Proposition 65 carcinogens/reproductive toxins are present and exposures are likely to occur
• Methods and observation techniques used to determine the presence or release of hazardous

substances in the work area
• Protective practices the company has taken to minimize or prevent exposure to these sub-

stances
• How to read labels and review MSDSs to obtain hazard information
• Physical and health effects of the hazardous substances

Attachment B



19

• Symptoms of overexposure
• Measures employees need to put into practice to reduce or prevent exposure to these hazardous

substances by engineering controls, work practices, and use of personal protective equipment
• Emergency and first-aid procedures to follow if employees are exposed to hazardous substances
• The location and interpretation, if needed, of warning signs or placards to communicate that a

chemical known to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity is used in the workplace

Employees will receive additional training when a new hazard is introduced into the workplace or
whenever employees might be exposed to hazards at another employer’s work site.

6. Hazardous nonroutine tasks

Periodically, our employees are required to perform hazardous nonroutine tasks. Prior to starting
work on such projects, affected employees will be given information by their supervisor on hazards
to which they may be exposed during such an activity.

This information will cover:

• Specific hazards
• Measures the company has taken to reduce the risk of these hazards, such as providing ventila-

tion, ensuring the presence of another employee, providing a respiratory protection program, and
establishing emergency procedures

• Required protective/safety measures

Examples of nonroutine tasks performed by employees of this company:

 Sample Nonroutine Task    Hazardous Substance

Cleaning sewage tank           Sodium hydroxide

——————————————————————

——————————————————————

——————————————————————

7. Labeled/unlabeled pipes (if applicable)

Above-ground pipes transporting hazardous substances (gases, vapors, liquids, semi-liquids, or
plastics) shall be identified in accordance with T8 CCR, Section 3321, “Identification of Piping.”

Other above-ground pipes that do not contain hazardous substances but may have associated haz-
ards if disturbed or cut (e.g., steam lines, oxygen lines) shall be addressed as follows:

Before employees enter the area and initiate work, (persons/position) will inform them of:

• The location of the pipe or piping system or other known safety hazard
• The substance in the pipe
• Potential hazards
• Safety precautions

Attachment B



20

8. Informing contractors

To ensure that outside contractors work safely in our plant and to protect our employees from
chemicals used by outside contractors, (person/position/department) is responsible for giving and
receiving the following information from contractors:

• Hazardous substances, including Proposition 65 chemicals, to which they may be exposed while
on the job site as well as substances they will be bringing into the workplace (To this end, we
will provide contractors with information on our labeling system and access to MSDSs.)

• Precautions and protective measures the employees may take to minimize the possibility of
exposure

If anyone has questions about this plan, please contact (person/position). Our plan will be
maintained by (person/position) to ensure that the policies are carried out and the plan is
effective.

                       ___________________________________________
(Signature of Owner or Management Representative)

Attachment B



21

Attachment C

Hazardous Substance Inventory
List Sample

Hazardous Substance Operation/Work Area MSDS

Trichloroethylene Degreaser – Finish Dept. Complete

Muriatic Acid Metal Stripper – Prep Dept. Incomplete

Acetone Manufacturing Area Complete

Attachment C



22

Attachment D

Hazard Communication
Employee Training Program Sample

COMPANY: _____________________________________________  DATE: _________________

DEPARTMENT:  _________________________________________________________________

We have developed a training program to increase employee awareness of hazardous substances in
our workplace and to motivate employees to protect themselves. The training program is based on
the types of hazardous substances used at the work site and the associated hazards.

Overview of Hazard Communication Regulation

The hazard communication regulation is intended to ensure that both employers and employees
understand the dangers associated with hazardous substances in the workplace. The following
information is a review of the specific requirements of a hazard communication program, including
container labeling, MSDSs, and training.

Written Hazard Communication Program

We have a written program that outlines how we provide information on and control your exposure
to hazardous substances. This plan is available to you during our training or during your work shift
from (person) at (location).

Hazardous Substances Used in Our Workplace

In our shop we use a variety of chemical products. Most of these products contain one or more
hazardous substances. Let’s review the hazardous substance inventory list in your work area. For
specific hazard information on each brand of material, review the MATERIAL SAFETY DATA
SHEETS (MSDSs) and, if applicable, the Proposition 65 list of chemicals.

Reading Labels, Warnings, and MSDSs

Labels. A product label on both the original and secondary containers should be read before work-
ing with the material. Each label has two important pieces of information:

1. Identity of the hazardous substance

2. Hazard warnings

The label on the original container also gives the name and address of the manufacturer.

The label should act as a visual reminder of the information we have presented in this training
session and of the detailed information on the MSDS.

Attachment D



23

Proposition 65 warnings. These are provided to you prior to exposure in the form of labels, plac-
ards, employee training, and the like so that you know that certain chemicals in your workplace are
known to the state to cause cancer, birth defects, or other reproductive harm.

It is essential to your safety that you read the hazard warning and use the hazardous sub-
stances only within the prescribed guidelines. Questions concerning any of the warning
message(s) should be directed to your supervisor or foreman.

Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDSs). Manufacturers and importers are responsible for providing
us with adequate information for using the hazardous substances safely. We use MSDSs as the
primary source for informing you about the hazards of the substances in our plant. MSDSs are kept
at (location) and are readily available to you in every shift.

You will be trained on the specific hazards of the substances in your work area. You will also be
trained on how to read the information in the MSDSs. The information includes:

1. Chemical and physical properties of hazardous substances, such as vapor pressure or specific
gravity

2. Physical hazards of the chemicals, such as flammability or reactivity

3. Health hazards of the hazardous substances, such as signs and symptoms of exposure

4. Routes of entry

5. Protective measures, such as work practices, engineering controls, and use of personal protective
equipment

6. Methods to detect the release of a hazardous substance in the work area

7. Emergency and first-aid procedures

You can read the California Hazard Communication Regulation for additional information on any
specific program element.

Attachment D



24

Attachment E

MSDS Request Letter Sample

Date: _____________________________

Chemical Company or Distributor: _________________________________________________

RE: MSDS for (product[s])

Please send me an up-to-date copy of your Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for the above
product. The MSDS is needed for compliance with the State of California Hazard Communication
Regulation, Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 5194.

Please send the MSDS to:

(Name)

(Company name)

(Address)

If this product does not require an MSDS, please notify us in writing.

If you have any questions regarding our request, please contact (name and phone number).

Sincerely,

Firm Representative

Attachment E



25

Attachment F

MSDS Sample

Guide to Understanding MSDSs

This attachment provides information for understanding
and interpreting the Material Safety Data Sheet

(MSDS).  A typical MSDS (for Methyl Ethyl Ketone) is
shown and then analyzed section by section to aid in un-
derstanding the terms and contents.

Note: The information in this section comes from the Cali-
fornia Chamber of Commerce’s Hazard Communication
Handbook, 1997 edition. Used by permission.

Attachment F 25



26

Material Safety Data Sheet
May be used to comply with
OSHA�s Hazard Communication Standard,
29 CFR 1910.1200. Standard must be
consulted for specific requirements.

U.S. Department of Labor                    
Occupational Safety and Health Administration
(Non-Mandatory Form)
Form Approved
OMB No. 1218-0072

IDENTITY  (As used on Label and List)
   Methyl Ethyl Ketone (MEK)

Note:  Blank spaces are not permitted. If any item is not applicable, or no
information is available, the space must be marked to indicate that.

Section I
Manufacturer�s Name
    XYX Chemical Company

Emergency Telephone Number
    (204) 123-4566

Address (Number, Street, City, State, and ZIP Code)
    111 Main Street

Telephone Number for Information
    (204) 123-4522

    New York, NY  10012
Date Prepared
    January 5, 1990
Signature of Preparer (optional)
    John Doe

Section II ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Hazardous Ingredients/Identity Information
                                                                                                                                                                                    Other Limits
Hazardous Components (Specific Chemical Identity; Common Name(s))            OSHA PEL           ACGIH TLV            Recommended           % (optional)

   Methyl Ethyl Ketone (2-butanone)        200 ppm    200 ppm       N/A        100%

      CAS No.  78-93-3

Section III ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Physical/Chemical Characteristics
Boiling Point
    @ 760 mm HG  175.3oF

Specific Gravity (H2O = 1)
 0.8061

Vapor Pressure (mm Hg.)
         @ 20oC  70mmHg

Melting Point
 N/A

Vapor Density
 2.5

Evaporation Rate
(Butyl Acetate = 1)  5.7

Solubility in Water
          Appreciable = 24%

Appearance and Odor
          Clear liquid with sweet odor similar to acetone

Section IV ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Fire and Explosion Hazard Data
Flash Point (Method Used)
              Tag. Open Cup = 22oF

Flammable Limits
 In air % by volume

LEL
  1.8

UEL
  10

Extinguishing Media
     Use carbon dioxide or dry chemical for small fires.

     Use alcohol-type foams for large fires.
Special Fire Fighting Procedures
          Self-contained (NIOSH-approved) breathing apparatus and protective

          clothing should be used in all fires involving chemicals.
Unusual Fire and Explosion Hazards
           Vapors are heavier than air and may travel along the ground, or be

           moved by ventilation, and be ignited by various ignition sources.
(Reproduce locally)                      OSHA 174, Sept. 1985



27

 Section V ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Reactivity Data
Stability Unstable Conditions to Avoid

Stable
X   None

Incompatibility (Materials to Avoid)  May react with oxidizing agents and/or organic peroxides. Avoid
alkaline materials, mineral acids and halogens.

Hazardous Decomposition or Byproducts
 Burning can produce carbon monoxide and/or carbon dioxide.
Hazardous
Polymerization

May Occur Conditions to Avoid

Will Not Occur
 X   None

Section VI ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Health Hazard Data
Route(s) of Entry:                                  Inhalation?                                            Skin?                                                 Ingestion?
                             Yes                Yes                       Yes
Health Hazards (Acute and Chronic)
        Acute LD50 (oral rat) = 3,100 mg/kg. Inhalation: lung irritation, central

nervous system effects (dizziness and headaches). Skin: irritation, rashes,
dermatitis. Eyes: irritation, redness, pain.

Carcinogenicity:                                     NTP?                                                     IARC Monographs?                            OSHA Regulated?
                             No                          No                  No
Signs and Symptoms of Exposure
Inhalation: irritation of respiratory tract, coughing, headache, nausea. Skin:
Dryness, redness, rashes. Eyes: irritation, pain, conjunctivitis (redness).
Ingestion: abdominal spasms, nausea, vomiting.

Medical Conditions
Generally Aggravated by Exposure            None known.
Emergency and First Aid Procedures   Inhalation: move to fresh air, provide oxygen, obtain medical
help. Eyes: flush with water for at least 15 minutes, obtain medical help if
irritation persists. Skin: thoroughly wash affected areas with water, remove
contaminated clothing, obtain medical help if irritation persists or large body
areas are affected. Ingestion: give water to drink, obtain medical help.

Section VII ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Precautions for Safe Handling and Use
Steps to Be Taken in Case Material is Released or Spilled
Collect leaking liquid in sealable containers. Absorb spilled liquid in sand or
inert absorbent and remove to a safe place. Cleanup personnel should wear
protective clothing, including a self-contained respirator. Avoid contact with the
skin. Remove all sources of ignition.

Waste Disposal Method
Consult a licensed waste disposal service firm for disposal in accordance with all
federal, state and local regulations.

Precautions to Be Taken in Handling and Storing  Drums must be grounded and electrically bonded to the
receiving vessel while dispensing in order to avoid static sparks. Store away from
oxidizing agents, heat and ignition sources. Handle small quantities in approved
safety cans. Handle as a Class 1B flammable liquid.

Other Precautions
Good Personal hygiene practices should always be followed.

Section VIII ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Control Measures
Respiratory Protection (Specify Type)  Not required if concentration is below PEL. At higher
concentrations, NIOSH-approved respirator with organic vapor filter should be worn.

Ventilation Local Exhaust
Required for high concentrations.

Special All electrical equipment must
be Class 1, Group D; fans must be
non-sparking

Mechanical (General) Other

Protective Gloves
Rubber.

Eye Protection
Chemical goggles and/or face shield.

Other Protective Clothing or Equipment
Eye-wash fountains, safety showers, barrier creams, etc.

Work/Hygienic Practices

MU.S. Government Printing Office: 1987 ⎯ 181-584/64362



28

 SECTION I: MATERIAL AND
MANUFACTURER IDENTIFICATION

IDENTITY  (As used on Label and List)
   Methyl Ethyl Ketone (MEK)

Note:  Blank spaces are not permitted. If any item is not applicable, or no
information is available, the space must be marked to indicate that.

Section I
Manufacturer�s Name
    XYX Chemical Company

Emergency Telephone Number
    (204) 123-4566

Address (Number, Street, City, State, and ZIP Code)
    111 Main Street

Telephone Number for Information
    (204) 123-4522

    New York, NY  10012
Date Prepared
    January 5, 1990
Signature of Preparer (optional)
    John Doe

‹ Identity of substance ⎯⎯⎯⎯ should be the same as on label and hazardous substance inventory.

› Name and address of manufacturer.

fi Emergency telephone number of manufacturer.

fl Information number for non-emergency calls.

 Date MSDS was prepared.

– Identification of preparer.



29

 SECTION II: INGREDIENTS

Section II ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Hazardous Ingredients/Identity Information
                                                                                                                                                                                    Other Limits
Hazardous Components (Specific Chemical Identity; Common Name(s))            OSHA PEL           ACGIH TLV            Recommended           %

(optional)

   Methyl Ethyl Ketone (2-butanone)        200 ppm    200 ppm       N/A        100%

      CAS No.  78-93-3

‹ Composition: Hazardous substances must be identified as ingredients of a product if they exist at
concentrations exceeding 1% by weight or 0.1% if the ingredient is an identified carcinogen (see
Section VI).

› CAS number. When applicable, the Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) registry number is listed as a
key to definitive identification of the material, without regard to any government regulation. Most
products consisting of one chemical will have a number. Mixtures do not have a CAS number. The
California Hazard Communication Regulation requires CAS numbers, whereas the federal standard
does not.

fi Common names or synonyms should be identified.

fl TLV and PEL. The TLV or Threshold Limit Value and PEL or Permissible Exposure Limit are
 occupational exposure standards that express the airborne concentration of a material to which

– nearly all healthy persons can be exposed day after day without adverse effects. Some shorter-term
exposure limits (ceiling values, excursion limits and short-term exposure limits or STELS) also may
be included.

† Percentage. Describes the percentage by weight of each component listed.



30

 SECTION III: PHYSICAL DATA

Section III ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Physical/Chemical Characteristics
Boiling Point
    @ 760 mm HG  175.3oF

Specific Gravity (H2O = 1)
 0.8061

Vapor Pressure (mm Hg.)
         @ 20oC  70mmHg

Melting Point
 N/A

Vapor Density
 2.5

Evaporation Rate
(Butyl Acetate = 1)  5.7

Solubility in Water
          Appreciable = 24%

Appearance and Odor
          Clear liquid with sweet odor similar to acetone

The physical data section describes the physical characteristics of the material.

‹ Boiling point. Refers to the temperature, in degrees F, at which a liquid changes to a vapor state,
generally at a pressure of one atmosphere. For mixtures or process streams, the initial boiling point
or boiling range may be given. Flammable materials with low boiling points generally present special
fire hazards.

› Specific gravity. Refers to the ratio of the weight of a volume of material to the weight of an equal
volume of water. In other words, how dense (heavy) the material is in comparison with water. For
insoluble materials, a ratio of less than one means the material is lighter than water and will float on
the surface. If the ratio is greater than one, the insoluble material will sink. Most flammable liquids
(but not all) are lighter than water.

fi Vapor pressure. Refers to the pressure of a saturated vapor above a liquid, in millimeters of mercury
(mm of Hg) at 20oC (unless stated otherwise). For example, the vapor pressure of water at 20oC is
17.5 mm of Hg; by comparison, sea level atmospheric pressure at 20oC is 760 mm of Hg. The lower
the boiling point of a liquid, the higher the vapor pressure.

fl Melting Point. The point where a solid becomes a liquid measured in degrees F or C.

Vapor density. Refers to the relative density or weight of a vapor or a gas compared with an equal
volume of air. Air is rated at 1.0. A figure greater than 1.0 indicates a vapor or gas heavier than air,
and vice versa. Concentrated vapors which are heavier than air can accumulate in low places, such
as along floors, in sewers, elevator shafts, floor drains.

– Evaporation rate. Evaporation rate is the rate at which a material is converted to the vapor state at
any given temperature and pressure. All materials evaporate; it is the differing rates that are of
concern in addressing worker exposures and fire protection. Butyl acetate is rated at 1.0 as a
reference.



31

† Solubility in water. The following is an explanation of terms used to express the solubility of a
product by weight in water at ambient temperatures. Most solvents are tested at 68oF.

Negligible ����������������������������. less than 0.1 percent
Slight ������������������������������. 0.1 to 1.0 percent
Moderate ����������������������������.. 1.0 to 10 percent
Appreciable ���������������������������.. more than 10 percent
Complete ����������������������������.. in all proportions

Solubility information is useful in determining effective fire extinguishing methods and spill cleanup
procedures.

‡ Appearance and odor. A brief description of the product under normal room temperature and
atmospheric conditions.



32

 SECTION IV: FIRE AND EXPLOSION
HAZARD DATA

Section IV ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Fire and Explosion Hazard Data
Flash Point (Method Used)
              Tag. Open Cup = 22oF

Flammable Limits
 In air % by volume

LEL
  1.8

UEL
  10

Extinguishing Media
     Use carbon dioxide or dry chemical for small fires.

     Use alcohol-type foams for large fires.
Special Fire Fighting Procedures
          Self-contained (NIOSH-approved) breathing apparatus and protective

          clothing should be used in all fires involving chemicals.
Unusual Fire and Explosion Hazards
           Vapors are heavier than air and may travel along the ground, or be

           moved by ventilation, and be ignited by various ignition sources.

‹ Flash point and method used. The flash point is the lowest temperature at which vapor is given off
in sufficient quantity so that the vapor/air mixture above the surface of the material will propagate a
flame away from the source of ignition. Since flash points vary according to how they are obtained,
the methods used are also listed. Tag Closed Cup (TCC), Pensky-Martins Closed Cup (PMCC), and
Setaflash (SETA) methods are those used most extensively.

› Flammable limits/percent volume in air. When flammable vapors are mixed with air in the proper
proportions, the mixture can be ignited by a spark or flame. The range of concentrations over which
the flash will occur is designated by the Lower Explosive Limit (LEL) and the Upper Explosive Limit
(UEL). Flammable limits (explosive limits) are expressed in percent by volume of vapor in air.

fi Extinguishing media. The selection of fire extinguishing media is based on the type of chemical, its
physical properties and flammable characteristics. The most common types of extinguishing media
are water, CO2, dry chemical and foam.

fl Special fire fighting procedures. General fire fighting methods are not described but special
procedures or exceptions to the rule are listed.

Unusual fire and explosion hazards. Described are the hazards associated with a chemical
reaction or change in chemical form or composition that might occur under heat or fire conditions.
Also described are hazards that may need to be considered while extinguishing a fire with one of the
available types of extinguishing media.



33

 SECTION V: REACTIVITY DATA

Section V ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Reactivity Data
Stability Unstable Conditions to Avoid

Stable
X   None

Incompatibility (Materials to Avoid)  May react with oxidizing agents and/or organic peroxides.
Avoid alkaline materials, mineral acids and halogens.

Hazardous Decomposition or Byproducts
 Burning can produce carbon monoxide and/or carbon dioxide.
Hazardous
Polymerization

May Occur Conditions to Avoid

Will Not Occur
 X   None

This section describes the general reactivity of the material, conditions to avoid in order to prevent an
unwanted reaction and toxic substances emitted from the reaction.

‹ Stability. Indicates whether the material is susceptible to dangerous decomposition and under what
conditions it might occur.

› Conditions to avoid. Conditions to avoid are described, such as temperature extremes, jarring,
inappropriate storage.

fi Incompatibility. Lists materials that could react with the substance.

fl Hazardous decomposition products. Describes hazardous materials produced from a reaction by
burning, oxidation, heating or reacting with other chemicals.

Hazardous polymerization. Polymerization is a chemical reaction in which two or more small
molecules combine to form larger molecules that contain repeating structural units of the original
molecules. A hazardous polymerization may result in an uncontrolled release of energy and
hazardous materials.



34

 SECTION VI: HEALTH HAZARD DATA

Section VI ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Health Hazard Data
Route(s) of Entry:                                  Inhalation?                                            Skin?                                                 Ingestion?
                             Yes                Yes                       Yes
Health Hazards (Acute and Chronic)
        Acute LD50 (oral rat) = 3,100 mg/kg. Inhalation: lung irritation, central

nervous system effects (dizziness and headaches). Skin: irritation, rashes,
dermatitis. Eyes: irritation, redness, pain.

Carcinogenicity:                                     NTP?                                                     IARC Monographs?                            OSHA Regulated?
                             No                          No                  No
Signs and Symptoms of Exposure
Inhalation: irritation of respiratory tract, coughing, headache, nausea. Skin:
dryness, redness, rashes. Eyes: irritation, pain, conjunctivitis (redness).
Ingestion: abdominal spasms, nausea, vomiting.

Medical Conditions
Generally Aggravated by Exposure            None known.
Emergency and First Aid Procedures   Inhalation: move to fresh air, provide oxygen, obtain
medical help. Eyes: flush with water for at least 15 minutes, obtain medical help
if
irritation persists. Skin: thoroughly wash affected areas with water, remove
contaminated clothing, obtain medical help if irritation persists or large body
areas are affected. Ingestion: give water to drink, obtain medical help.

This section in general describes any important health information relating to the hazardous substance or
its components. Symptoms resulting from acute and chronic (low-level exposure over an extended period of
time) overexposure are listed if available. Epidemiological data are provided if pertinent.

‹ Routes of entry. This information identifies the relevant route of entry into the body which may cause
harm. The preparer must use knowledge of physical properties of the substance and how it usually is
handled to judge whether inhalation, skin and ingestion are significant routes of exposure. This
information suggests what types of personal protective equipment, for example gloves, respirators, or
both, are needed.

› Health hazards. This information includes known toxicity data from animal tests and from what is
known about human health effects. It should address recognizable symptoms by route of exposure so
that workers will know if they are being overexposed. This section also may contain other more
comprehensive toxicity data, such as the representative results of toxicological studies conducted
with the material or its listed components, usually in rats, mice or rabbits.



35



36

The LD50 (Lethal Dose to 50 percent), if given, is the single dose of the material which on the basis
of laboratory tests is expected to kill 50 percent of a group of the test animals. The LD50 usually is
expressed as milligrams or grams of material per kilogram of animal body weight (mg/kg or g/kg). The
material may be administered by mouth (oral) or applied to the skin (dermal or cutaneous).

The LC50 (Lethal Concentration to 50 percent), if given, is the concentration of the material in air
which on the basis of laboratory tests is expected to kill 50 percent of the test animals when
administered as a single exposure (usually one or four hours). The LC50 is expressed as parts of
material per million parts of air, by volume (ppm) for gases and vapors, or as micrograms of material
per liter of air (ug/l) or milligrams of material per cubic meter of air (mg/mm3) for dusts and mists.

The LD50 and LC50 values are intended only to provide an estimate of the relative degree of toxicity
associated with a particular material. They should not be used in estimating any absolute level of
intake or exposure that might be safe or unsafe for humans.

Relative Toxicity Levels

Term

Extremely toxic
Highly toxic
Moderately toxic
Slightly toxic
Practically non-toxic
Relatively harmless

LD50-Rat
Single Oral Dose

1 mg/kg or less
1 to 50 mg/kg
50 to 500 mg/kg
500 to 5,000 mg/kg
5,000 to 15,000 mg/kg
15,000 mg/kg and up

Probable Lethal
Dose for Humans

Less than 1 gram
Several grams
1 ounce
_ pound
1 pound
1 quart

Typical LD50 Values
Oral-Rat

Nicotine
Table Salt
Citric Acid

53 mg/kg
3,000 mg/kg
11,700 mg/kg

fi Carcinogenicity. Refers to whether any of the ingredients have been identified as potentially cancer-
causing by any of the agencies recognized as authorities in testing and classifying carcinogens. They
are: National Toxicology Program (NTP), the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC)
and the federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), which develop regulations
governing exposures to occupational carcinogens. If a carcinogenic substance is included in a
product, it must be identified at concentrations of 0.1 percent or more (1,000 ppm) in Section II. In
California, such materials also will be subject to Proposition 65.

fl Signs and symptoms of overexposure. This information identifies what signs or discomfort a
person who is overexposed is likely to experience. This information describes a clear physical
warning that a worker should know about to protect himself/herself from overexposure due to misuse
or protective equipment failure. Workers should be taught to immediately respond to such warnings
and not ignore them, or more serious harm may result.

Medical conditions generally aggravated by exposure. To the extent that this information is
known, it should be included on the MSDS. For example, persons who are strongly allergic may
experience an adverse reaction to certain chemicals. Those with respiratory problems may be more
sensitive to irritating and corrosive gases and vapors.

– Emergency and first aid procedures. In general, this section gives emergency and first aid
instructions for treatment of victims of acute inhalation, ingestion and skin or eye contact. It is not
intended to take the place of professional medical assistance and treatment.



37

 SECTION VII: PRECAUTIONS FOR
SAFE HANDLING AND USE

Section VII ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Precautions for Safe Handling and Use
Steps to Be Taken in Case Material is Released or Spilled
Collect leaking liquid in sealable containers. Absorb spilled liquid in sand or
inert absorbent and remove to a safe place. Cleanup personnel should wear
protective clothing, including a self-contained respirator. Avoid contact with the
skin. Remove all sources of ignition.

Waste Disposal Method
Consult a licensed waste disposal service firm for disposal in accordance with all
federal, state and local regulations.

Precautions to Be Taken in Handling and Storing  Drums must be grounded and electrically bonded to
the receiving vessel while dispensing in order to avoid static sparks. Store away
from
oxidizing agents, heat and ignition sources. Handle small quantities in approved
safety cans. Handle as a Class 1B flammable liquid.

Other Precautions
Good personal hygiene practices should always be followed.

This section describes methods for the proper handling of spills and leaks, disposal and safe storage.

‹ Spill and leak procedure. Methods for controls and cleanup of spills or leaks. Appropriate materials,
equipment and personal protective clothing also are generally listed.

› Waste disposal. Accepted methods for disposing of excess, used or spilled material in order to
comply with government requirements.

fi Precautions to be taken in handling and storing.  Based on the physical properties of the material
and reactivity data, this section should include storage temperatures, containers, dispensing
procedures and other information.

fl Other precautions. This information relates to miscellaneous materials, handling and safety
equipment, and procedures such as personal hygiene.



38

 SECTION VIII: SPECIAL PROTECTION
INFORMATION

Section VIII ⎯⎯⎯⎯ Control Measures
Respiratory Protection (Specify Type)  Not required if concentration is below PEL. At higher
concentrations, NIOSH-approved respirator with organic vapor filter should be worn.

Ventilation Local Exhaust
Required for high concentrations.

Special All electrical equipment must
be Class 1, Group D; fans must be
non-sparking

Mechanical (General) Other

Protective Gloves
Rubber.

Eye Protection
Chemical goggles and/or face shield.

Other Protective Clothing or Equipment
Eye-wash fountains, safety showers, barrier creams, etc.

Work/Hygienic Practices

‹ Respiratory protection. This section provides information and general statements relevant to the
need and type of respiratory protection that should be used while handling the material.

› Ventilation. Describes the type of ventilation recommended, such as local exhaust hoods or vents at
the source of the vapors or dust, as well as general ventilation, which refers to general room
ventilation. It also will state whether electrical equipment should be spark proof to safeguard against
explosions if the material is flammable.

fi Protective gloves. Describes when gloves should be worn and the materials from which they should
be fabricated in order to give proper protection from the substance being handled.

fl Eye protection. Describes the correct type of eye protection, such as safety glasses, chemical
goggles, face shields.

Other protective equipment.  Refers to the need for such items as protective garments, boots,
aprons, eye wash fountains, safety showers.

– Work/hygienic practices. Include information such as whether clean lunch rooms should be
provided, personal hygiene practices such as post-shift handwashing or showering, and soiled
clothing/laundry handling procedures.

Other MSDS Information

Some MSDSs will include information that describes and categorizes the material in accordance with the
U.S. Department of Transportation classification for purposes of safe packaging, handling and
transportation. Other regulatory requirements also may be referenced.



38 Resources

Resources

Cal/OSHA Regulations (Title 8, California Code of Regulations);
Web site <http://www.dir.co.gov/samples/search/query.htm>

Airborne Contaminants, Section 5155
Body Protection, Section 3383
Eye and Face Protection, Section 3382
Foot Protection, Section 3385
Hand Protection, Section 3384
Hazard Communication, Section 5194
The Hazardous Substances List, Section 339
Head Protection, Section 3381
Injury and Illness Prevention Program, Section 3203
Regulated Carcinogens, Article 110, Sections 5200 et seq.
Respiratory Protection, Section 5144

Cal/OSHA Publications and Web site <http://www.dir.ca.gov>:

DOSH Policy and Procedure Manual, P&P C-43 Hazard Communication
Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and  Illness Prevention Program (CS-1), April 1998
New Respirator Regulation Fact Sheet, Novemeber 1998
Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention Model Program

For high-hazard employers (CS-1A), August 1995
For non-high hazard employers (CS-1B), August 1995
For employers with intermittent workers (CS-1CS), October 1996
For employers with intermittent workers in agriculture (CS-1CS Ag), January 1997

California Chamber of Commerce <http://www.calchamber.com>:

California Environmental Compliance Manual, 1997-98
Hazard Communication Handbook, 1997-98
Proposition 65 Handbook, 2nd ed., 1989

Nossaman, Guthner, Knox, and Elliot. Surviving Proposition 65, 1987

Cal/EPA Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA)
<http://www.oehha.ca.gov>:

Proposition 65 in Plain Language

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) <http://www.osha-slc.gov>:

Hazard Communication Guidelines for Compliance, OSHA 3111, 1995
Instruction CPL 2-2.38D—Inspection Procedures for the Hazard Communication Standard, 1998
Supplement to California State Plan; Approval-62:31159-31181, 1997

National Advisory Committee on Occupational Safety and Health (NACOSH)
<http://www.osha-slc.gov/STLC/hazardcommunications/wgfinal.html>:

Report to OSHA on Hazard Communication, 1996



39Evaluation

Evaluation
Dear Reader,

We value and welcome your comments on the Guide to the California Hazard Communication
Regulation. To better assist employers and employees, Cal/OSHA invites you to participate in a brief
evaluation. Please copy this page and fax to (916) 574-2532 or mail to Cal/OSHA Education Unit,
2211 Park Towne Circle, Suite 4, Sacramento, CA 95825. We thank you for your participation!

  Yes  No     Please  ✔   and comment.  Thank you.

1. Has the guide helped you to understand why businesses that handle hazardous substances need
to integrate the requirements of a hazard communication program in their everyday work
activities?

 Why or why not? _______________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

2.  Did we miss any important hazard communication issues?

 If yes, what? ___________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

3.  Has the information contained in the guide encouraged you to:

 Develop a written hazard communication program for your workplace?

 Assess an existing hazard communication program?

 Make improvements to your current hazard communication program?

4.  As a whole, is the guide informative, useful, and easy to understand?

 Why or why not? _______________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

5.  Do you have any specific comment(s) regarding the text of any section of this guide?

 If so, write your comment(s) and refer to specific page number(s), text, or section.

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

6.  Do you have any success stories (avoided accidents, reduced number of injuries, etc.) that you
would like to share with us? If so, please provide your company name and a brief description.

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________



40

This document is a 2000 revised version of an earlier work by Cal/OSHA.
Special thanks are due to the following professionals who contributed

their expertise and support to the revision of this document:

Zin Cheung, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, Education Unit, Sacramento,
California

Michael Alvarez, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, Education Unit,
Sacramento, California

Bob Barish, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, San Francisco, California

Paul R. Burnett, Consultant/Trainer, Morgan Hill, California

Richard DaRosa, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, Sacramento, California

Mary Grace Delizo, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, San Diego,
California

Kelly Howard, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, Santa Fe Springs,
California

Haifa Hughes, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, Van Nuys, California

Mary Jo Jensen, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, Sacramento, California

Dan Leiner, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, Santa Fe Springs, California

Warren Manchester, Division of Occupational Safety and Health,
Sacramento, California

Cindy Oshita, Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment,
Sacramento, California

Wende Wiltse, Divison of Occupational Safety and Health, San Diego,
California

Carl Foreman, UC Davis Medical Center, Sacramento, California

Management, Progressive Circuits, Sacramento, California

Bernadine Osburn, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, Sacramento,
California

Bernadine Osburn, Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, Sacramento,
California

Acknowledgments

Revision and editing

Editorial and peer
review

Additional assistance

Photographer

Preparation of
draft document

Acknowledgments



Cal/OSHA Consultation Programs

Northern California
2424 Arden Way, Suite 410
Sacramento, CA 95825
(916) 263-0704

San Francisco Bay Area
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1103
Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 622-2891

Los Angeles/Orange
10350 Heritage Park Drive, Suite 201
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670
(562) 944-9366

San Diego/Imperial
7575 Metropolitan Dr., Ste. 204
San Diego, CA 92108
(619) 767-2060

Your call will in no way trigger an inspection by Cal/OSHA Enforcement.

Central Valley
1901 North Gateway Blvd., Suite 102
Fresno, CA 93727
(559) 454-1295

San Bernardino
464 West 4th Street, Suite 339
San Bernardino, CA 92401
(909) 383-4567

San Fernando Valley
6150 Van Nuys Blvd., Suite 307
Van Nuys, CA 91401
(818) 901-5754

Toll-free number: 1-800-963-9424  •  Internet: www.dir.ca.gov

On-site Assistance Program
Area Offices

11 REU March 2004

• Voluntary Protection Program
San Francisco, CA 94142
(415) 703-5272

• Research and Education Unit
Sacramento, CA 95825
(916) 574-2528



CALIFORNIA JPIA 
Policy Resource Center 
 

 

POLICY NAME:  
Vehicle Use Policy 
 
Policy Purpose: 
This policy establishes procedures regarding the use 
of Agency owned and privately owned vehicles 
operated during the course of agency business.  
 
Replacing Document: 
None. 
 
To Whom Does The Policy Apply: 
This policy applies to all agencies that use vehicles 
during the course of agency operations. 

Note: The policy should be tailored to your specific 
agency risk exposures and positions. 

Agencies should determine if they will require SR1 
filing for agency vehicles involved in auto accidents. 

2. Agencies should determine the minimum coverage 
limits for their agency. Best Risk Management 
Practices indicate that higher limits provide better 
protection. 

 Additional Resources: 

The Authority has additional resources for developing 
policies, procedures, and training programs. 

1. Training Workshops: 
Driver Awareness 

2. Video Resources: 
The Moment of Impact 
Don’t Meet by Accident 
Road Rage and Aggressive Driving 
The Ultimate Driving Challenge 

3. Other Resources: 
Vehicle Accident Kit  

Important: 

This reference material is compiled for 
use by Authority members in the 
preparation, development and 
implementation of risk management 
policies, programs, and procedures. 
Since this document is designed to meet 
the needs of the general pool 
membership, please be aware that the 
present form is best considered a 
template for use by your agency in 
drafting specific documents. This 
template should not be construed as 
legal advice. Accordingly, any resulting 
policy, program or procedure that 
results from this template should 
always be reviewed and approved as is 
customary by your agency, including 
the purview of any necessary legal 
and/or governing body authorities to 
ensure the policy being developed 
meets the unique needs of your 
jurisdiction. Policies should be 
implemented after proper training has 
been provided. 

This reference material is to be 
considered proprietary and confidential 
and may not be disclosed to any person 
without the express, prior permission of 
the California JPIA. This reference 
material is for Authority member use 
only and does not apply in any criminal 
or civil proceeding. This reference 
material should not be construed as a 
creation of a higher legal standard of 
safety or care in an evidentiary sense 
with respect to third party claims. 

 

 
 



Vehicle Checklist  

Rev July 2009  Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
I.  PURPOSE........................................................................................................................ 1 

II.  AUTHORITY .................................................................................................................. 1 

III.  POLICY ........................................................................................................................... 1 

IV.  VEHICLE TYPES AND USE......................................................................................... 2 

V.  DRIVER TRAINING ...................................................................................................... 4 

VI.  GENERAL GUIDELINES .............................................................................................. 4 

VII.  USE OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES ................................................................................ 5 

VIII.  RENTAL VEHICLES ..................................................................................................... 5 

IX.  ACCIDENT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS .............................................................. 5 

X.  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS................................................................................... 6 

XI.  DRIVER’S LICENSE...................................................................................................... 7 

XII.  REVIEW OF DRIVING RECORD................................................................................. 7 

XIII.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ............................................................................................... 9 

XIV.  REFERENCES ................................................................................................................ 9 

Appendix A: Employee Acknowledgement of Vehicle Usage Policy ......................................... 10 

Appendix B:  Common California Vehicle Code Violations 
   Used In Negligent Operator Counts............................................................................. 11 

 

Rev. 8/2009  i Vehicle Use Policy 



VEHICLE USE POLICY 

I. PURPOSE  

This policy establishes procedures regarding the use of Agency owned and employee 
owned vehicles operated during the course of Agency business.  Use of Agency owned 
vehicles shall be relied upon as the primary means of vehicle usage, as it provides the 
greatest control over operating costs, usage, maintenance, inspection, and insurance. 

II. AUTHORITY  

This policy has been approved by the Agency in matters regarding the use of vehicles 
operated during the course of Agency business. This policy does not apply to commercial 
motor vehicles.  

III. POLICY  

A. Definitions 

Accident Kit: An information packet that should be kept in the vehicle’s glove box to 
include a pen, Driver’s Report of Accident, Information Exchange cards, 
Witness cards, and first response instructions after an accident. An Accident 
Kit is available from the California JPIA and distributed to attendees of Driver 
Awareness workshops. 

Agency Business: Activities that require the use of a vehicle and are authorized by 
the employee’s supervisor.  In the use of personal vehicles, Agency business 
also means that the operator is being reimbursed for mileage expenses 
according to Internal Revenue Service guidelines. 

Agency Owned Vehicle: A vehicle owned by the Agency, and assigned on a shared, 
designated, or permanent basis. 

Commercial Motor Vehicle: A motor vehicle or combination of vehicles designed 
or used for the transportation of persons or property for compensation. 

Non-Preventable Accident: The vehicle operator did everything reasonably possible 
to prevent the accident. 

Preventable Accident: The vehicle operator failed to do everything reasonably 
possible to prevent the accident. 

Privately Owned Vehicle: A personally owned vehicle used by an employee, 
whether owned by the employee or not. 

Vehicle Operator: An employee who is operating an Agency owned vehicle or a 
personally owned vehicle on Agency business. 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 1 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



B. The agency shall maintain a list of employees required to drive Agency owned or 
privately owned vehicles on Agency business, and shall be responsible for overseeing 
the implementation of driver training programs and ensuring that employees attend 
required training.  

C. The Personnel Director shall coordinate driver training programs and maintain 
attendance records. The Personnel Director shall ensure that evidence of insurance 
and driver’s license information are maintained in each employee’s file. The 
Personnel Director shall receive and record Department of Motor Vehicles Pull 
Notice reports and notify supervisors when necessary. 

D. The Safety Committee shall review all accidents to determine whether an accident 
was preventable or non-preventable, and make disciplinary recommendations. 

E. Supervisors shall routinely monitor the driving of each employee while performing 
the job-related driving responsibilities. Supervisors shall review driving records as 
part of employee performance evaluations.  Supervisors shall report accidents as 
indicated in Section IX. 

F. Agency employees shall promptly provide insurance and driver license information 
when notified that their job duties include driving an Agency owned or privately 
owned vehicle.  Employees will comply with the requirements of this policy. Failure 
to comply may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

IV. VEHICLE TYPES AND USE 

A. Use of Agency owned vehicles 

1. Agency owned vehicles are categorized and restricted based upon type and use: 

a) Vehicles kept overnight at Agency facilities, assigned for use on a 
shared or designated basis for daily Agency business.  Personal use is 
expressly prohibited. 

b) Vehicles assigned to managers on a permanent basis, used for daily 
commuting to and from the Agency. According to the Internal Revenue 
Service, commuting to and from work and other incidental personal usage is 
not official use, and reported as taxable income. 

c) Vehicles for emergency or on-call use, authorized for use to and 
from work to respond on a 24-hour basis. Employees authorized to operate 
emergency or on-call vehicles may make reasonable, but limited stops before 
and after work shifts for traveling to and from work. 

2. Only Agency employees are authorized to operate Agency owned vehicles. 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 2 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



3. Agency owned vehicles are for transporting employees whose duties require a 
motor vehicle, and other persons to conduct business activities important to 
Agency interests. 

4. Under no circumstances shall family members or friends be transported in 
Agency owned vehicles. This shall also apply to ,  employees authorized to 
commute to and from the Agency or for emergency on-call use. 

5. Employees who are permanently assigned an Agency owned vehicle or assigned 
department use of a vehicle are responsible for ensuring that only those persons 
with a valid driver’s license and on official Agency business are allowed the use 
of the Agency owned vehicle. 

B. Use of Privately Owned Vehicles 

The use of an employee’s personal vehicle may be preferable and more efficient for 
use if an Agency owned vehicle is not available. Under those circumstances, the 
following policy will apply: 

1. An employee may use his or her privately owned vehicle for Agency business 
upon written authorization by the supervisor. The Fleet Manager will obtain an 
Accident Kit to be kept with the privately owned vehicle while conducting 
Agency business. 

2. Employees who regularly use their own privately owned vehicles on Agency 
business must notify their insurance company of such use. Each employee is 
responsible for maintaining their vehicle in a safe operable condition, and 
maintaining accurate maintenance records. 

3. Employees using a privately owned vehicle shall maintain accurate records of the 
purpose and extent of travel, and submit reimbursement claims per the Agency’s 
reimbursement policy. The mileage allowance is intended to cover the employee’s 
cost of operating and insuring the vehicle on Agency business. The employee is 
responsible for all operating expenses of the privately owned vehicles including 
but not limited to, gasoline, oil, maintenance, wear and tear, depreciation and 
insurance. 

4. The Agency is not liable for any damage to an employee’s privately owned 
vehicle, unless caused by the Agency’s negligence (employee’s negligence 
excepted).  Employees are responsible for notifying his/her supervisor, the 
Department of Motor Vehicles, and the employee’s insurance company in case of 
an accident.  If an employee is responsible for an accident while driving an 
Agency owned or personally owned vehicle, he is responsible for any increase in 
his or her personal automobile insurance premium. 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 3 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



V. DRIVER TRAINING 

A. Employees who drive Agency owned vehicles shall complete a defensive driver 
training course. Consideration should be given to other employees who regularly use 
privately owned vehicles for their essential job functions. 

B. New employees shall complete a defensive driver training at the first available course 
date after the commencement of employment.  

C. Employees who change assignments to include driving an Agency owned vehicle are 
required to complete a defensive driver training program. 

D. Employees required to participate in defensive driver training shall repeat training at 
least once every three years. 

VI. GENERAL GUIDELINES 

A. Employees shall obey all Federal, State and local laws while operating Agency 
owned or privately owned vehicles on official Agency business. 

B. Employees operating an Agency owned or privately owned vehicle shall ensure that 
all persons in the vehicle use seat belts and are properly adjusted before starting the 
engine. 

C. When transporting cargo, materials or tools, the vehicle operator is responsible for 
securing such items 

D. No person shall be allowed to ride on running boards, fenders, hoods, tailgates, beds 
or other locations on a vehicle not designed or approved by the vehicle manufacturer 
for passenger seating.  An exception to this shall be vehicles designed and equipped 
for passengers outside the cab area. 

E. Any injuries sustained by the vehicle operator or other employees while operating a 
vehicle on Agency business shall be covered by workers’ compensation. 

F. When the vehicle operator is determined to be involved in a preventable accident, the 
Safety Committee shall recommend disciplinary action subject to review and 
approval by the supervisor. 

G. Alcoholic beverages and drugs shall not be transported or placed in any Agency 
owned or privately owned vehicle. 

H. Any employee operating an Agency owned vehicle, regardless of frequency, is 
responsible for the proper care and operation of that vehicle while under the 
employee’s control. 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 4 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



I. Before operating the vehicle and at least once a day, the employee shall check to 
make certain that all vehicle safety equipment including headlights, turn signals, 
brake lights and windshield washers are functioning properly. 

J. Any vehicle damage beyond normal wear and tear or that includes defects affecting 
the safe operation of the vehicle must be documented and reported to the employee’s 
supervisor and the Fleet Manager. 

K. No employee shall operate an Agency owned vehicle found to be in an unsafe 
condition. 

VII. USE OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

Safe driving practices as well as the California Vehicle Code require the use of a hands-
free device while using cell phones during the operation of a motor vehicle. Employees 
shall refrain from operating laptop computers, navigational devices and any other device 
that may cause vehicle operator distraction while operating a vehicle in the course of 
conducting Agency business. 

VIII. RENTAL VEHICLES 

When it is necessary for an Agency employee to use a rental vehicle for Agency business, 
the employee shall use an Agency approved rental agency. Optional loss damage 
coverage should be purchased from the rental agency at the time of rental. 

IX. ACCIDENT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

Any accident involving an Agency owned vehicle, rented or leased vehicle or privately 
owned vehicle used in the performance of Agency duties shall be reported as follows: 

A. The vehicle operator shall summon medical care for any injured parties. 

B. The vehicle operator shall notify appropriate law enforcement agencies. 

C. The vehicle operator shall collect information about the other parties involved by 
completing the “Accident Kit” located in the Agency owned vehicle’s glove box. 

D. The vehicle operator shall notify his/her supervisor. The supervisor shall be 
responsible for initiating the departmental investigation of the accident, completing 
all required Agency reports and recommend action to the Safety Committee. In the 
event of serious bodily injury, an Incident Report form shall be completed by the 
supervisor and submitted to the California JPIA. 

E. The supervisor shall notify the Agency’s risk manager. 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 5 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



F. The vehicle operator must report the accident to the DMV if more than $750 in 
property damage, or anyone was injured (no matter how slight) or killed.  The report 
must be filed, whether the vehicle operator caused the accident or not and even if the 
accident occurred on private property. The report must be made on the California 
Traffic Accident Report, form SR 1, and must be made within ten days of the 
accident. If the report is not filed with the DMV, the vehicle operator’s driving 
privilege will be suspended. The police or California Highway Patrol will not file this 
report.1 

X. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Proof of insurance is required before any privately owned vehicle can be authorized for 
Agency business, and shall be provided annually to the Personnel Director and no later 
than January 31 of each year. 

A. Employees who receive a monthly vehicle allowance or are authorized to use 
privately owned vehicles on agency business shall maintain coverage in an amount 
not less than $100,000 per person/ $300,000 per occurrence (or a combined single 
limit of $300,000) and property damage coverage in an amount not less than $25,000 
per occurrence.2 

B. California Insurance Code §11580.9 states that where two or more policies affording 
valid and collectible liability insurance apply to the same motor vehicle in an 
occurrence out of which a liability loss shall arise, it shall be conclusively presumed 
that the insurance afforded by that policy in which the motor vehicle is described or 
rated as an owned vehicle is primary and the insurance afforded by any other policy 
shall be excess. 

C. The Agency shall not be responsible for any increase in the employee’s automobile 
insurance premium as a result of an accident. 

D. In the event of an accident, the employee is responsible for paying any deductible 
required by the insurance company. 

E. If insurance coverage is canceled, terminated, lapsed, or curtailed for any reason, the 
employee must notify the immediate supervisor and the vehicle shall not be used for 
Agency service. 

                                                 
1 California Vehicle Code, Section, 16000(b) – A report is not required under subdivision (a) if the 
motor vehicle involved in the accident was owned, or leased by, or under the direction of , the United 
States, this state, another state, or a local agency.  
2 California Insurance Code, Section 11580b, sets the minimum liability insurance requirements for 
private passenger vehicles: $15,000 for injury/death to one person, $30,000 for injury/death to more 
than one person, $5,000 for damage to property.  

Rev. 10/2009 Page 6 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



F. When an employee operating an Agency owned vehicle is involved in an accident, 
defense and settlement of any claim shall be the responsibility of the California JPIA, 
to the maximum protection limit (the California JPIA Memorandum of Coverage 
provides automobile liability coverage to all member entities, their Agency councils, 
commissions, committees, and employees). If an employee operating an Agency 
owned vehicle is sued independently as a result of an at-fault accident, the California 
JPIA may provide coverage to that employee if the accident qualifies as a covered 
occurrence. 

G. Should an employee using a privately owned vehicle on Agency business be involved 
in an accident resulting in injury or property damage, the employee’s own insurance 
carrier shall respond to defend the employee. Should a claim exceed the limits of the 
employee’s own insurance, the California JPIA liability protection program would 
respond in an excess capacity if the accident qualifies as a covered occurrence.  

XI. DRIVER’S LICENSE 

A. Agency employees authorized to use Agency owned or privately owned vehicles on 
Agency business must possess a valid California driver’s license and provide proof of 
licensing upon hire. 

B. Agency employees must maintain a driver’s license for the class of vehicle to be 
driven. 

C. An employee whose driver’s license is suspended or revoked for any reason must 
notify their supervisor no later than the first workday following suspension or 
revocation of their driver’s license.  Such employee shall not be allowed to operate 
any Agency owned or privately owned vehicles on Agency business. 

D. Employees who possess temporary driving permits or hardship licenses shall not be 
permitted to operate Agency or privately owned vehicles in the performance of 
official Agency duties. 

XII. REVIEW OF DRIVING RECORD 

A. The Agency shall enroll employees that operate Agency owned or privately owned 
vehicles on Agency business in the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) Pull 
Notice Program.  When a vehicle operator has received a violation, the DMV assigns 
points according to the type of violation, and automatically sends notification to the 
Agency.  Appendix B contains a list of violation point counts. 

B. In compliance with Vehicle Code Section 1808.47, information received from the 
DMV shall be used solely for the intended purpose, and kept in locked storage.  
Under no circumstances shall addresses or other information be given to a third party. 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 7 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



C. Employees accumulating four or more points in a 12 month period or six in a 24 
month period or eight in a 36 month period may have Agency driving privileges 
suspended at the discretion of the Department Director.  The Personnel Director shall 
notify the Department Director when a driving record meets this threshold. 

D. Employees involved in a preventable collision or demonstrating questionable driving 
capabilities shall be required to attend remedial training in defensive driving.  An 
employee may be regarded as having questionable capabilities based on a review of 
points assigned by the DMV for citations or vehicular accidents. 

E. Employees involved in preventable accidents or have a disqualifying action taken 
against their driver’s license shall be subject to disciplinary action, the severity 
determined by the nature of the offense and the employee’s past driving and 
disciplinary action records. 

F. Employees involved in two or more preventable accidents within a 36 month period 
while operating an Agency owned or privately owned vehicle in the performance of 
official Agency business shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including 
suspension of Agency driving privileges. 

G. Employees convicted of driving while under the influence of drugs or alcohol (DUI) 
or refusing to submit to a lawful roadside sobriety test are subject to disciplinary 
action up to and including suspension of Agency driving privileges. 

H. Intentional abuse, moving violations, reckless operation, or negligent actions while 
operating any vehicle may result in the suspension of employee driving privileges and 
further disciplinary action. 

I. Temporary or permanent suspension of Agency driving privileges for employees 
whose position requires operation of a vehicle shall be considered a loss of the ability 
to perform an essential job function. 

J. If an employee has Agency driving privileges suspended, the Agency shall attempt to 
arrange for the employee to perform the essential functions of the job.  If such 
accommodation is not possible or creates an unreasonable hardship for the Agency or 
coworkers, loss of Agency driving privileges shall be considered just cause for 
reassignment to a position that does not require operation of a vehicle at a pay rate 
commensurate with that position.  If no such position is open, the employee may be 
terminated. 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 8 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



 

XIII. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  

Upon receipt of this policy, employees shall sign a form acknowledging that he or she is 
aware of this policy, including the legal issues arising out of the use of his or her 
privately owned vehicle on Agency business. 

XIV. REFERENCES 

Vehicle Code Sections 464, 1808.47, 12810, 16056, 27315 

Insurance Code §11580.9 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 9 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



 

Appendix A 
Employee Acknowledgement of Vehicle Usage Policy 

 
This is to acknowledge that I have received a copy of the ______________ (insert agency 
name) Vehicle Usage Policy and that I have read the policy and understand my rights and 
obligations under the Policy. 
 
I understand that this Policy represents only current policies, procedures, rights and 
obligations and does not create a contract of employment.  Regardless of what the Policy 
states or provides, the Agency retains the right to add, change or delete provisions of the 
Policy and all other working terms and conditions without obtaining another person’s 
consent or agreement. 
 
My signature below further signifies that I have read this Policy and that I accept and will 
abide by all of its provisions. 
 
 
 
PRINT FULL NAME   
 
SIGNED   
 
DATE    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(RETAIN IN EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL FILE) 
 
 
 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 10 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



 

Appendix B 
Common California Vehicle Code Violations  

Used In Negligent Operator Counts 

Violation Point Assessment 

Violation points are assigned to Vehicle Code sections and any other code section, or city or county ordinance, involving 
the safe operation of a motor vehicle. Any violation occurring as a pedestrian or a bicyclist has no point assigned. The 
department may suspend and place on probation, or revoke, the driving privilege of a negligent operator.  

Per Vehicle Code section 12810.5a, a Class C negligent operator has 

• 4 or more points in 12 months,  
• 6 in 24 months, or  
• 8 in 36 months.  

Although a Class A or B driver without a special certificate may be allowed 2 additional points, a violation received in a 
commercial vehicle carries 1 1/2 times the point count normally assessed (12810.5b VC). A minor, under 18 years of age, 
may receive a 30-day restriction for 2 points in 12 months, or be suspended for 3 points in 12 months (12814.6 VC). 

One Point Count California Vehicle Code Violations 

Section Violation 
2800 Disobedience to traffic officer 
2800.1 Evading peace officer 
2801 Disobedience to fire official 
2803, 2803a, 2803b, 2803c Unsafe vehicle load 
2815 Disregarding non-student crossing guard 
2816 Youth bus/children crossing highway 
2817 Disregarding funeral escort officer 
2818 Crossing safety flares/cones 
14601.5 Driving, suspended/revoked for refusing test 
14603 Violation of license restrictions 
21100.3 Disregarding traffic officer's directions 
21209, 21209a Driving in bicycle lane 
21367, 21367a, 21367b, 21367c Disobedience to traffic signs/controller 
21451, 21451a, 21451b Illegal movement/green light/arrow 
21452, 21452a Illegal movement/yellow light/arrow 
21453, 21453a, 21453b, 21453c Illegal movement/red/light/arrow 
21454, 21454a - d, 21455  Traffic signals 
21457, 21457a, 21457b Disobedience to flashing signals 
21460a, 21460b Double lines/one broken line 
21460.5c Use of two-way left turn lane 
21461, 21461a, 21462 Disobedience to traffic control device 

 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 11 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



 

21650, 21650a - f Keep right 
21651, 21651a Crossing divided highway 
21652 Entering highway from service road 
21654, 21654a, 21654b, 21655, 
21655b 

Lane use/slow moving vehicle 

21655.8 High-occupancy vehicle lane/entering/exiting 
21656 - 21662, 21662a, 21662b Improper lane use 
21663 Driving on sidewalk 
21664 Freeway ramp/entering/exiting 
21700  Load obstructing driver's view 
21701 Interfering with driver's control of vehicle 
21702, 21702a, 21702b Driving hours limitation 
21703, 21704, 21704a, 21705, 
21706 

Following too closely 

21707 Driving in fire area 
21709 Driving in safety zone 
21711 Towed vehicle swerving 
21712, 21712a, 21712d, 21712f, 
21715, 21715a, 21715b 

Unlawful riding/towing 

21717 Turning across bicycle lane 
21750 - 21757, 21758, 21759 Illegal passing 
21800 - 21804, 21804a, 21804b Right-of-way 
21805, 21805b Yielding right-of-way to horseback rider  
21806, 21806a Yielding right-of-way to emergency vehicle  
21807 Unsafe operation of emergency vehicle 
21950, 21950a, 21951, 21952 Yielding right-of-way to pedestrian 
21954, 21954b Due care for pedestrian on roadway 
21960a Prohibited use of freeway 
21963 Yielding right-of-way to blind pedestrian 
22100 - 22105 Turning and U-turns 
22106 Unsafe staring/backing of vehicle 
22107 - 22111, 22111a, 22111b, 
22111c 

Signaling turns and stops 

22112, 22112a School bus signaling 
22348, 22348a, 22348c Speed/use of designated lanes 
22349, 22349.5 Maximum speed 
22350, 22351, 22352, 22352a, 
22352b 

Basic/prima facie speed limit 

22354, 22355 Exceeding posted/freeway speed limit 
22356, 22356b Maximum speed 70 mph 
22357, 22358.4 Speed in excess of local limits 
22359, 22360, 22361 Speed in excess of local limits 
22362 Speed/construction zone 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 12 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



22363 Restricted speed/weather conditions 
22364 Speed/traffic lanes 
22400, 22400a, 22400b Driving too slow 
22405, 22405a Speed/bridge/tunnel 
22406, 22407 Maximum designated vehicle speed 
22409, 22410 Speed/solid/metal tires 
22413 Speed limit on grades 
22450, 22451, 22452, 22452a, 
22452b 

Stop required/railroad crossing 

22454 Stop for school bus 
23109, 23109b, 23109d Speed contest/aiding or abetting 
23116, 23116a Transporting person in truck load space  
23127 Driving on trails and paths 
23220 Drinking while driving 
23222, 23222a, 23222b Marijuana or open container/driving 
23235 Ignition interlock verification 
23244, 23244b Defeating ignition interlock device 
23253 Disobedience to toll highway officer 
23270, 23270a Unauthorized towing 
23330, 23330c Width/load of vehicle at crossing 
23336 Disobedience to sign/vehicle crossing 
24002, 24002a, 24002b Unsafe/unlawfully equipped vehicle 
24004 Operation after notice by officer 
24250 Lighting equipment 
24409, 24409a, 24409b Failure to dim lights 
24604 Lamps/flag for extended load 
25103, 25103a, 25103b Lamps on projecting load 
26301, 26302, 26302a, 26302b, 
26302c 

Brakes 

26303, 26304, 26304a, 26304b Brakes/combination vehicles 
26307 Forklift truck brakes 
26311, 26311a, 26311b, 26311c All wheel service brakes 
26456, 26457 Brakes/stopping distance 
26458, 26458a, 26458.5 Braking system/towing vehicles 
26502a Adjustment/use of air brakes 
26503 - 26506, 26506a, 26507 Airbrake system 
26508, 26508a - c, 26508e - k, 
26508o 

Emergency stopping system 

26520, 26521, 26522 Vacuum brakes 
27360, 27360a - c, 27360.5, 27360a 
- c 

Child Passenger restraint 

27363, 27363b Child seat belt 
27800, 27801, 27801a, 27801b Motorcycle/passengers and equipment 
29001, 29002 Fifth wheel connecting/locking device 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 13 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



29003a, 29003b, 29003c Hitch and coupling device 
29004, 29004a - c, 29006, 29006a Towed vehicle coupling 
29201 Pole dolly/load and length 
31301, 31301a Caldecott tunnel restrictions 
31303, 31303b, 31303c, 31303e Hazardous waste transportation 
31402 Farm labor vehicle/unsafe operation 
31540, 31504b Removable containers/regulations 
31614, 31614a, 3164b, 31614d - f 
31614h, 31614i 

Explosives transportation 

32104, 32104a, 32104b, 32105, 
32105a, 32105c-e 

Inhalation hazard transportation 

32106, 32106a - d Inhalation hazard transportation  
34102 Tank vehicle regulations 
34501.2, 34501a, 34501c Driving hours limitations 
34506, 34506a - g Driving hours, equipment, maintenance, operation 
34506.3 Safety regulation violation 
34509, 34509c, 34509d Vanpool vehicle maintenance inspection 
35784, 35784a, 35784b Violation of special permit 
35784.5, 35784a, 35784b Extralegal load/weight 
36400 Lift-carrier/speed 
36705 Bale wagon load width during darkness 

Two Point Count California Vehicle Code Violations 

Section Violation 
2800.2, 2800.3 Evading peace officer/reckless driving  
14601, 14601a,14601 b, 14601.1- 
14601.4 

Driving while suspended/revoked 

20001, 20001a 20002, 20002a, 
20002b 

Hit and run/injury/property damage  

21651b Driving wrong side/divided highway  
22348b Speed over 100 MPH 
23103, 23103a,23103 b Reckless driving 
23104, 23104a Reckless driving/causing bodily injury 
23109a, 23109c Speed contest /exhibition of speed 
23140, 23140a, 23140b Minor driving with BAC of 0.05% or more 
23152, 23152a-d DUI/alcoholic beverage or drugs 
23153, 23153a-d DUI/causing bodily injury or death 
31602, 31602a, 31602b, 31602c Explosives transportation 

 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 14 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



 

Other Common California Code Violations Used In Negligent Operator Count 

Section Code Violation Points 
49307 or 
12059 

Education Disobedience to school safety patrol 1 

191.5a, 
192c1-192c4, 
192.3c, 
192.3d 

Penal Vehicular manslaughter with gross 
negligence 

2 

192c, 192.3, 
192.3a, 
192.3b 

Penal Vehicular manslaughter without gross 
negligence 

1 

27176 Streets and 
highways 

Speeding on Golden Gate Bridge 1 

One Point Count Out of State Violations 

Section Violation Section Violation 
01 Speed/too fast or over speed 

limit 
34 Entering/exiting from 

thoroughfare 
03 Speed/too slow or failure to 

turn out 
40 Illegally modified vehicle 

04 Passing/illegal, improper or 
unsafe 

45 Explosives transportation 

05 Following too close 51 Equipment/unsafe, illegal or 
defective 

06 Failure to yield right-of-way 58 Driving while impaired 
07 Illegal/unsafe use or change 

of lanes 
61 Child passenger seat restraint 

08 Turns/illegal or unsafe  67 Defective headlights 
09 Signaling/improper or no 

signal 
69 Following emergency vehicle 

unlawfully 
10  Failure to obey traffic control 

device 
70 Using vehicle for felony/aiding 

or abetting 
11 Crossing double 

lines/markers/dividers 
72 Erratic driving/suddenly 

changing speeds 
12 Wrong way on one-way 

street  
73 Fleeing scene or evading arrest 

by turning lights off  
13  Brakes 74 Unsafe operation of a vehicle 
14 Lights 75 Driving off road/on 

shoulder/on sidewalk 
21 Violation of restricted license 77 No required equipment/using 

prohibited equipment 
26 Negligent/careless/inattentive 

driving 
86 Felony involving commercial 

vehicle 
27 Starting or backing/illegal or 

unsafe 
87  Felony controlled 

substance/commercial vehicle 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 15 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



28 Driving in a prohibited area 88  Speeding 15 mph 
plus/commercial vehicle 

30 Disobedience of lawful order 91 Illegal lane 
change/commercial vehicle 

31  Towing/improper, unsafe or 
illegal 

92 Following too 
closely/commercial vehicle 

32 Obstructing driver's view or 
interfering 

93 Fatal accident 
violation/commercial 
vehicle  

33 Unlawful riding on motor 
vehicle 

    

Two Point Count Out of State Violations 

Section Violation Section Violation 
02 Speed contest/aiding or 

abetting 
38 DUI/dangerous drugs not 

narcotics 
15 Reckless driving 46 Manslaughter without gross 

negligence 
16 Reckless driving/injury 47 Manslaughter with gross 

negligence 
17 Drunk driving 81 DUI/BAC 0.04% or 

more/commercial vehicle 
18 Drunk driving/injury 82 DUI/commercial vehicle 
19 Hit and run 84 DUI/controlled 

substance/commercial 
vehicle  

20 Driving while suspended or 
revoked 

85 Hit and run/commercial 
vehicle  

37 DUI/narcotics 89-90 Reckless driving/commercial 
vehicle  

Code of Federal Regulations Violations 

Section Violation Points 
36423 or 36FR46 DUI/alcoholic beverage or any drug 2 

 
 

<  
 

Rev. 10/2009 Page 16 of 16 Vehicle Use Policy 



CALIFORNIA JPIA 
Policy Resource Center 
 

 
 
Important: 
 
This reference material is compiled for 
use by Authority members in the 
preparation, development and 
implementation of risk management 
policies, programs, and procedures.  
Since this document is designed to 
meet the needs of the general pool 
membership, please be aware that the 
present form is best considered a 
template for use by your Agency in 
drafting specific documents.   
 
This template should not be construed 
as legal advice. Accordingly, any 
resulting policy, program or procedure 
that results from this template should 
always be reviewed and approved as is 
customary by your Agency, including 
the purview of any necessary legal 
and/or governing body authorities to 
ensure the policy being developed 
meets the unique needs of your 
jurisdiction. Policies should be 
implemented after proper training has 
been provided. 
 
This reference material is to be 
considered proprietary and confidential 
and may not be disclosed to any person 
without the express, prior permission 
of the California JPIA. This reference 
material is for Authority member use 
only and does not apply in any 
criminal or civil proceeding. This 
reference material should not be 
construed as a creation of a higher 
legal standard of safety or care in an 
evidentiary sense with respect to third 
party claims. 
 

Policy Name:  
VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE 
 
Policy Purpose: 
The policy on Violence in the Workplace defines the 
elements associated with workplace violence and 
procedures for all employees to prevent, identify, 
respond to, and document violent acts in the 
workplace. 
 
Replacing Document: 
None 
 
To Whom Does The Policy Apply? 
All Agency employees. 
 
Note: 
The Authority has additional resources that may be 
helpful in the development and training of policies, 
programs and procedures. 
 
1. Training Workshops: 

Safe Workplaces: When Being Nice Isn't Working 
 

2. Video Resources: 
Conflict Communication Skills 
Safety Orientation in an Office Environment 
 

3. Other Resources: 
List 



 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
I.  PURPOSE ......................................................................................................................... 1 

II.  POLICY............................................................................................................................. 1 

III.  AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES ...................................................................................... 1 

IV.  MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES .................................... 2 

V.  EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES.................................................................................. 4 

VI.  ELEMENTS OF WORKPLACE VIOLENCE ................................................................. 5 

VII.  OVERALL TRAINING .................................................................................................... 5 

VIII.  INCIDENT INVESTIGATION ........................................................................................ 6 

IX.  VIOLATION OF THIS POLICY...................................................................................... 7 

X.  DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................. 8 

ATTACHMENT A INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM ACTION PLAN ............................... 9 

ATTACHMENT B POTENTIAL WORKPLACE SECURITY HAZARDS  AND  
CORRECTIVE MEASURES.......................................................................................... 10 

Rev: 10/09  Page ii  Workplace Violence  
 



I.  PURPOSE 

The policy for Violence in the Workplace is created to increase awareness among all 
Agency employees for the potential of violence within the organization, and to recognize 
signs, remedies and consequences of a violent act. 

As the behavior of individuals can vary in unpredictable ways, the threat of workplace 
violence cannot be eliminated. However, management and employees can work together 
to identify and reduce the components frequently associated with workplace violence and 
be prepared to respond appropriately to a violent situation. 

The purpose of this policy is to reduce the occurrence of injuries from workplace 
violence and decrease the potential and actual economic loss for employees, the public 
and the Agency. 

II.  POLICY 

The (insert Agency legislative body name) hereby establishes a workplace violence 
prevention policy in compliance with Cal/OSHA's "Guidelines for Workplace Security", 
which requires employers to develop a workplace security component to their Injury and 
Illness Prevention Program (IIPP). Employees are advised that disciplinary action may 
result from violation of this Policy or any workplace safety procedure. Employees are 
further advised that the principles of progressive discipline may be waived in instances of 
egregious or serious acts by employees. Termination from employment is a possibility 
and may be the only disciplinary action that is taken. 

The Agency promotes an active, bilateral communication system to encourage 
continuous compliance of safety, health and security policies, between management and 
employees without fear of reprisal, and in a form that is easily understood by all 
employees. The Agency recognizes that effective communication between management 
and employees is essential to combating workplace violence. Effective communication 
requires a two-way channel in which information is provided, received and interpreted. 
Feedback must also be an integral part of effective communication. 

III. AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Agency is responsible for providing employees with education and training on 
policies relating to potentially violent situations in the workplace.  

(This section optional for Agency use) The Agency will appoint an Incident Management 
Team to supervise workplace violence cases. The team will consist of the Human 
Resources Director, the Agency Manager, the Police Chief, and the supervisor of the 
department involved in the incident with the following responsibilities: 

A. Implement an action plan that specifies how management should respond to a 
potential workplace violence case including which personnel to contact in an 
emergency and their role in handling the incident. This plan should include a post 

Rev: 10/09  Page 1 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



situation response that (1) informs employees of the situation through internal 
communications, (2) updates the public relations officer that the situation is under 
control, and (3) provides counseling for employees affected by the event (See 
Attachment A). 

B. Investigate, document, and track all workplace violence cases including the 
following tasks:  

1) Conduct the initial investigation of the incident. 

2) Assess the seriousness of the situation and respond appropriately. 

3) When alerted of a potentially violent person or occurrence, notify incident management 
team immediately. 

4) Interview the victims immediately after the incident to retrieve the most accurate 
information. 

5) Inspect the scene of the incident as soon as possible. 

6) Determine the direct or indirect causes of the incident. Include previous reports of 
inappropriate behavior by the perpetrator(s) and any corrective actions taken. This will 
assist management in determining appropriate disciplinary action. 

7) Record the results of the current investigation and corrective actions taken. The Human 
Resources Director shall maintain documentation in a central file. 

8) Contact a specialist in workplace violence to evaluate the situation for 
additional corrective actions.  

IV. MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Agency Manager and/or the Director of Human Resources is/are responsible for 
administering this policy and delegating authority to department heads for 
implementation. Department heads are responsible for delivering and interpreting this 
policy to their employees and ensuring that each employee fully understands and 
complies. 

A. Human Resources Department is responsible for the following: 

1) Identify a potentially violent person during the initial job interview and screening 
process. 

a) Require a completed job application form that includes a waiver and 
release for the Agency to verify reported information. 

Rev: 10/09  Page 2 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



b) Never accept a résumé in place of a fully completed application. Résumés 
do not contain an oath of truthfulness and can mask undesirable 
information. 

c) Review a job application carefully with particular attention to unusual or 
suspicious entries. 

d) Investigate gaps in employment and education history. This may reveal 
undesirable events such as incarceration or involuntary termination. 

e) Always check references. 

2) Conduct periodic reviews of this policy with all Agency personnel, as deemed necessary. 

3) Offer periodic workplace safety meetings where workplace violence issues are discussed. 

4) Post and/or distribute information regarding workplace violence. 

5) Remind all employees through memos and training of the importance and urgency of 
reporting all threats of workplace violence to a supervisor immediately after such an 
incidence occurs. Reporting of a violent occurrence is mandatory and failure to do so 
could result in disciplinary action up to, and including termination. 

6) Ensure that department personnel adhere to provisions of this policy. 

7) Respond to, and correct workplace security issues (see Attachment B).  

B. Managers and supervisors must understand the following: 

C. Terminating employment of an unstable employee could cause that employee to 
harbor such resentment that he/she could return months or years later seeking 
revenge. 

D. Some violent employees may have a psychological disability that causes violent 
behavior. 

E. An employee assistance program is available to all employees. This program can 
help employees resolve issues before they become a workplace problem and 
provide assistance to managers and supervisors. 

Rev: 10/09  Page 3 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



V.  EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES 

In general, behavior that detracts from, and impedes the ability of others to work in a 
violence free environment will be viewed as inappropriate. Such behavior will be 
addressed in accordance with the Agency’s disciplinary rules and regulations, as well as 
this policy.  

Employees are advised that violation of these behavior standards may result in discipline 
up to, and including, immediate termination of employment. Certain threats or violent 
acts will result in arrest by law enforcement.  

A. Employees are expected to exhibit workplace behaviors that demonstrate respect 
for others and professionalism at all times during working hours or conducting 
agency business. Unacceptable behavior includes, but is not limited to, the 
following: 

1) Uttering threats of physical violence to anyone 

2) Engaging in verbal abuse of others 

3) Physical fighting 

4) Bringing items intended as weapons (guns, knives, bombs, etc.) to the workplace 

5) Creating disturbances in the workplace that cause co-workers to be concerned for their 
safety 

6) Bullying of employees 

B. Employees must report all acts of violence, whether physical or verbal, to a 
supervisor immediately following the incident. 

1) Report potential acts or threats by co-workers, outsiders, taxpayers, visitors of violence to 
a supervisor (e.g., noticeable changes in a co-worker's or customer's demeanor). 

2) Attend workplace safety meetings. 

3) Remain aware of the potential for violence in the workplace. 

4) Know how to respond appropriately to a potentially violent situation. 

C. Employees should respond appropriately to a potentially violent situation to ensure 
their safety and the safety of others.  

Rev: 10/09  Page 4 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



1) Get away from the perpetrator if possible.  If you cannot distance yourself from the 
perpetrator, try to talk him or her into calming down. 

2) Immediately call for help when given the first opportunity. 

3) Remain calm and relaxed so that the perpetrator does not sense your fear. 

4) If you have doubt about your ability to resolve a conflict with a perpetrator, do not 
engage in the task.  

5) Notify Human Resources if you have a domestic violence restraining order. 

VI. ELEMENTS OF WORKPLACE VIOLENCE 

A. A potentially violent person often displays warning signs.  

1) The person is unusually argumentative and/or uncooperative. 

2) The person displays obvious changes in work patterns such as tardiness, absenteeism, or 
poor work performance. 

3) The person demonstrates extreme or bizarre behavior. 

4) The person has a mental illness or substance abuse problem. 

B. A potentially violent person can react to workplace situations.  

1) Layoffs: The loss of one’s job is a traumatic event for an employee. Loss of funding, 
reduction of Agency services or State mandates can affect continuity of Agency 
employment. 

2) Inability to cope: With today’s rapidly changing society, some people are unable to cope 
with the stress of everyday activities, including their jobs.  

C. Workplace security hazards should be identified and corrected (see Attachment B). 

VII. OVERALL TRAINING 

All employees, including managers and supervisors, should receive training on general 
and job-specific workplace security practices. Training should be provided when the 
Workplace Violence Prevention Policy is initially established and periodically thereafter. 
Training should also be provided to new employees, employees for whom training has 
not previously been provided, and to employees given new job assignments for which 
specific workplace security training has not previously been provided. Additional 
training will be provided to all Agency personnel as deemed necessary. Training should 
include the following topics: 

A. Explanation of the Workplace Violence Prevention Policy 

Rev: 10/09  Page 5 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



B. Recognition of security hazards, including risk factors associated with the three 
types of workplace violence conduct (see Attachment B) 

C. Violence prevention measures, such as reporting security hazards or threats, to 
managers or supervisors 

D. Ways to defuse hostile or threatening situations 

E. How to summon others for assistance 

F. Discussion of employee routes of escape 

G. Notification of law enforcement authorities when a criminal act has occurred 

H. Post event trauma counseling for those employees desiring assistance 

VIII. INCIDENT INVESTIGATION 

A. An investigation will immediately follow a report of an act or threat of violence. 
An investigation may include a search of personal and Agency property including 
areas such as desks, lockers, and vehicles. An employee will be given reasonable 
notice prior to the search.  The employee need not be present for the search to 
begin. The investigation will be conducted by the Department Head and Human 
Resources and may include law enforcement personnel. 

B. Before conducting an investigation, the investigating officer must be aware of 
employees’ rights in such circumstances. This must be done before interviewing 
any witnesses or the accused employee. 

C. The investigating officer must document what was said, what was heard, when an 
alleged threat was made, and when the act of violence took place. 

1) Who committed the act or threat of violence and the names of all victims, potential 
victims, and witnesses? 

2) What was said or done (be exact as possible)? 

3) When did the incident occur? 

4) Where did the incident take place? 

5) Why was the act committed (if known, example: “the employee was just evaluated by his 
supervisor”)? 

6) Collect written statements from everyone involved. Take photographs of any personal 
injury or property damage. 

Rev: 10/09  Page 6 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



7) A written report covering the investigation of the act or threat of violence and a 
description of the resolution, if any, will be issued by the Human Resources Department 
to the Agency Manager. A copy of the report will be kept in a confidential file in Human 
Resources. 

IX. VIOLATION OF THIS POLICY 

A. Reporting of a violent occurrence is mandatory and failure to do so could result in 
disciplinary actions up to, and including termination. 

B. An employee found in violation of this policy will be provided all due process 
rights and is subject to discipline up to and including termination. Principles of 
progressive discipline may be waived in instances of egregious or serious acts by 
employees 

Rev: 10/09  Page 7 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



X.  DEFINITIONS 

AGENCY - The Agency of ___________ 

AGENCY PREMISES - Facilities such as Agency Hall, fire department stations, police 
facilities, Agency corporation yard, senior center, and treatment plants. 

AGENCY UNIFORM - Agency issued clothing such as job uniforms, badges, hats, pens, 
banners or other identifiable object that carries the Agency’s logo or represents the 
Agency. 

DEPARTMENT HEAD - An appointed person with direct supervision and responsibility for 
personnel, records, funds, maintenance, and department services. 

EMPLOYEE - A person legally employed by the Agency. 

THREAT - A threat occurs when a person expresses intent to inflict harm on another 
person through physical injury, punishment or intimidation. There are three 
types of threats. 

• Threats aimed directly at the victim(s) by the perpetrator. 

• Veiled or indirect threats made to a third party against a victim(s). 

• Conditional threats contingent on a particular event occurring. 

VIOLENT ACT - An action characterized by physical force or intent to use physical force with the 
purpose of inflicting harm upon another person(s). 

Rev: 10/09  Page 8 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



ATTACHMENT A 
INCIDENT MANAGEMENT TEAM ACTION PLAN 

Members include: The Human Resources Director, the Agency Manager, the Police Chief and 
the supervisor or manager responsible for the department involved in the incident. 

In the event of a workplace violence occurrence, the following steps (immediate and post 
trauma) should be taken by the Incident Management Team: 

IMMEDIATE RESPONSE 

1. Assess the seriousness of the situation and call 911 if necessary. 

2. Inspect the scene of the incident as soon as possible. 

3. Secure the area and deny access to all non-emergency personnel until crime scene 
personnel arrive to gather evidence. 

4. Police will question all victims and witnesses as soon as possible to gather the 
most accurate information. 

5. Police will notify the families of the victim(s) and provide assistance. 

6. Determine the direct and indirect causes of the incident. Include all previous 
reports of inappropriate behavior by the perpetrator(s) and corrective actions 
taken at that time. 

7. Calm hysterical witnesses and victims. 

 

POST TRAUMA RESPONSE 

1. Provide a professional trauma counselor for employees immediately following a 
violent occurrence. 

2. Arrange transportation for affected employees. 

3. Communicate to all Agency employees and the public that everything is under 
control via a press conference. 

4. Repair inoperable phones. 

5. Clean up and repair damaged Agency property. 

6. Provide follow-up training for identifying, preventing, and responding to 
workplace violence.  

7. Designate staff members, preferably from the Human Resources Department, to 
handle details such as insurance coverage for medical expenses.  

Rev: 10/09  Page 9 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



ATTACHMENT B 
POTENTIAL WORKPLACE SECURITY HAZARDS  

AND CORRECTIVE MEASURES 

Type I: External Act: Events in which the perpetrator has no legitimate relationship to the 
workplace and enters the workplace to commit a criminal act, like a robbery or another violent 
act. 

Assessment Measures 
 

• Check the workplace exterior and interior for 
its attractiveness to robbers. 

• Assess the need for security surveillance 
measures, such as mirrors or cameras, to 
increase employee awareness of workplace 
surroundings. 

• Create procedures for employee response 
during a robbery or other criminal act. 

• Post all emergency telephone numbers for law 
enforcement, fire, and medical services where 
employees have access to a telephone. 

• Limit the amount of cash on hand and use time 
access safes for large bills. 

 
Corrective Measures 
 

• Make the workplace unattractive (not worth the 
effort or too risky) to robbers. 

• Use surveillance measures, such as cameras or 
mirrors, to increase outside and inside security in 
and around the workplace. 

• Enhancing all procedures for reporting suspicious 
persons or activities. 

• Update and post emergency telephone numbers for 
law enforcement, fire and medical services where 
employees have ready access to a telephone. 

• Post visible signs to notify the public that limited 
cash is kept on site, if appropriate. 

 

Type II:  Service Recipients: An event in which the perpetrator is the recipient of, or the object 
of, a service provided by the workplace (e.g., contractors, consultants, instructors, temp. workers, 
vendor). 

Assessment Measures 
 

• Easy access to and freedom of movement 
within and around the workplace.  

• Effectiveness of workplace security systems, 
such as door locks, security windows, and 
restraint systems. 

• Assess employees’ skills in effectively 
handling threatening recipients. 

• Effectiveness of Agency systems and 
procedures, such as alarms or panic buttons, to 
warn others of a security danger or to summon 
assistance. 

• The use of work practices, such as "buddy" 
systems, for specified emergency events. 

• The availability of employee escape routes. 

 

 
Corrective Measures 
 

• Create an open floor plan so that all entrances and 
exits are easily accessible.  

• Ensure adequacy of workplace security systems 
(e.g., door locks, security windows, and physical 
barriers).  

• Provide all employees with training to handle 
hostile situations.  

• Install effective alarm systems to warn others of 
security dangers, or to summon assistance, (e.g., 
alarms or panic buttons). 

• Establish a workplace system, such as the "buddy" 
system, for specified emergency events.  

• Ensure adequate availability of escape routes for 
employees. 

 

Rev: 10/09  Page 10 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 

 



Type III: Current/Former Employees: An event in which the perpetrator has an employment 
interest, such as an employee, employee's spouse, or a person who has a dispute with a specific 
employee. 

Assessment Measures 
 

• How well the Agency’s anti-violence policy 
has been communicated to employees, 
supervisors and management.  

• The effectiveness of cross communication 
between and amongst management and 
employees. 

• Our employee's, supervisors’, and managers’ 
knowledge of the warning signs of potential 
workplace violence.  

• Access to and freedom of movement within, 
the workplace by non-Agency employees, 
including recently discharged employees or 
persons with whom an Agency employee may 
have a dispute.  

• Reports of threats of violent acts, threats of 
physical violence, verbal abuse, property 
damage or other signs of strain or pressure in 
the workplace.  

• Ensure that employees adhere to disciplinary 
and discharge procedures. 

 Corrective Measures 
 

• Communicate the Agency’s anti-violence policy 
to all employees, supervisors, and managers. 

• Improve management and employee 
communication lines to freely relay pertinent 
information. 

• Increase the awareness of employees, supervisors 
and managers of the warning signs of potential 
workplace.  

• Control access to and freedom of movement 
within, the workplace by non-Agency employees, 
including recently discharged employees or 
persons with whom one of the employees may 
have a dispute.  

• Ensure that reports of violent acts, threats of 
physical violence, verbal abuse, property damage 
or other signs of strain or pressure in the 
workplace are effectively handled by 
management. 

• Ensure that employee disciplinary and discharge 
procedures address the potential for violence. 

 

REFERENCES: 

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1973; California Labor Code Section 6300 et seq.; 
California Department of Industrial Relations, “Guidelines for Workplace Security:; California 
Code of Regulations Section 3202; California Workplace Violence Safety Act of 1994. 

Rev: 10/09  Page 11 of 11  Workplace Violence  
 



CALIFORNIA JPIA 
Policy Resource Center 
 

 

 
POLICY NAME:  
Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure 
Control Plan 
 
Policy Purpose: 
This sample policy is designed to assist members in 
implementing an Exposure Control Plan to meet the 
requirements of the OSHA Bloodborne Pathogens 
Standard (California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 
5193) and to inform and provide guidance to all 
employees. 
 
Replacing Document: 
None. 
 
To Whom Does The Policy Apply: 
The policy affects all employees who may become 
exposed to bodily fluids. 

Note: The policy should be tailored to your specific agency 
risk exposures and positions. 

Additional Resources: 

The Authority has additional resources that may be helpful 
in the development and training of policies, programs and 
procedures. 

1. Training Workshops: 
Bloodborne Pathogens 

2. Video Resources: 
Bloodborne Pathogens: Know the Risk 

Protecting against Hepatitis B in the Work place 

Protecting against AIDS in the Workplace 

Stop the Bleeding 

3. Other Resources: 
 

 

Important: 

This reference material is compiled for 
use by Authority members in the 
preparation, development and 
implementation of risk management 
policies, programs, and procedures. 
Since this document is designed to meet 
the needs of the general pool 
membership, please be aware that the 
present form is best considered a 
template for use by your agency in 
drafting specific documents. This 
template should not be construed as 
legal advice. Accordingly, any resulting 
policy, program or procedure that results 
from this template should always be 
reviewed and approved as is customary 
by your agency, including the purview 
of any necessary legal and/or governing 
body authorities to ensure the policy 
being developed meets the unique needs 
of your jurisdiction. Policies should be 
implemented after proper training has 
been provided. 

This reference material is to be 
considered proprietary and confidential 
and may not be disclosed to any person 
without the express, prior permission of 
the California JPIA. This reference 
material is for Authority member use 
only and does not apply in any criminal 
or civil proceeding. This reference 
material should not be construed as a 
creation of a higher legal standard of 
safety or care in an evidentiary sense 
with respect to third party claims. 

 

 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
I.  POLICY ........................................................................................................................... 1 
II.  PURPOSE........................................................................................................................ 1 
III.  RESPONSIBILITIES ...................................................................................................... 1 
IV.  EXPOSURE RISK DETERMINATION......................................................................... 1 
V.  METHODS OF IMPLEMENTATION AND CONTROL.............................................. 2 
VI.  HEPATITIS B VACCINATION..................................................................................... 6 
VII.  HOUSEKEEPING AND POST EXPOSURE CLEAN-UP PROCEDURES ................. 7 
VIII.  EXPOSUR INCIDENT ................................................................................................... 8 
IX.  TRAINING .................................................................................................................... 11 
X.  RECORD KEEPING ..................................................................................................... 12 
XI.  (Police) HOUSEKEEPING ........................................................................................... 14 
XII.  (Police) SCENE MANAGEMENT ............................................................................... 15 
XIII.  (Police) ENGINEERING AND WORK PRACTICE CONTROLS ............................. 15 
XIV.  (Public Works) HOUSEKEEPING................................................................................ 16 
XV.  (Public Works) ENGINEERING AND WORK PRACTICE CONTROLS.................. 17 
Appendix A: Definitions............................................................................................................... 20 
Appendix B: Signs and Symbols .................................................................................................. 22 
Appendix C: HIV Information...................................................................................................... 23 
Appendix D: Hepatitis B Information........................................................................................... 24 
Appendix E: Hepatitis C Information ........................................................................................... 24 
Appendix F: Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Report ................................................................. 25 
Appendix G: Exposure Determination Questionnaire .................................................................. 26 
Appendix H: Post-Exposure Evaluation & Follow-up Checklist ................................................. 27 
Appendix I: Hepatitis B Vaccination Post Exposure Medical Declination .................................. 28 
Appendix J: Sharps Injury Log ..................................................................................................... 29 
Appendix K: Risk Exposure by Job Classification....................................................................... 30 
 
 

Rev. 7/2009  i Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



BLOODBORNE PATHOGENS  
EXPOSURE CONTROL PLAN 

I. POLICY 

The (insert name of agency) has implemented this Exposure Control Plan to meet the 
requirements of the OSHA Bloodborne Pathogens Standard (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 8, Section 5193) and provide guidance to employees. This Exposure 
Control Plan is available to employees at any time. Employees will be advised of the 
availability of this policy during training programs. Copies of the policy will be kept in 
the Safety Binders in each department.  

II. PURPOSE 

The (insert name of agency) seeks to reduce or eliminate the risk of exposure to 
potentially infectious diseases for its employees. The guidelines in this policy specify the 
use of (1) universal precautions against incidents of occupational exposure to infectious 
diseases; (2) standard procedures for incident reporting, and (3) training and vaccinations 
for employees with high or moderate risk of occupational exposure to infectious diseases.  

III. RESPONSIBILITIES  

A. Supervisors and Managers: Department Managers and Supervisors are responsible 
for exposure control in their respective areas. They work directly with the safety 
committee representative and employees to ensure compliance with exposure control 
procedures. 

B. Employees: Employees have a critical role in our bloodborne pathogens compliance 
program including: 

1) Know what tasks represent a potential exposure to bloodborne pathogens  

2) Attend the bloodborne pathogens training session  

3) Plan and conduct operations in accordance with our work practice controls  

Maintain good personal hygiene habits  

Risk of exposure to bloodborne pathogens should never be underestimated. Employees 
who do not follow the procedures outlined in this plan will be subject to disciplinary 
action.  

IV. EXPOSURE RISK DETERMINATION  

The Agency has determined the following levels of risk exposure:  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 1 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



High Risk (classifications & positions in which the employee has a high risk of 
exposure)  

Moderate Risk (classifications & positions in which the employee has a 
moderate risk of exposure) 

Very Low Risk (classifications & positions in which employees are expected to 
have minimal, if any, risk of occupation exposure). 

See Attachment K for a listing of job classifications and their related risks.  

V. METHODS OF IMPLEMENTATION AND CONTROL  

A. Universal Precautions  

Universal precautions are approaches to infection control in which all human blood 
and certain body fluids are treated as if infectious for bloodborne pathogens. 
Assuming all bloodborne pathogen materials are potential disease hazards eliminates 
the need to determine the health status of an individual and sets minimum standards 
for contamination control.  

Employees shall observe universal precautions to prevent contact with blood or other 
potentially infectious materials. When differentiation between body fluid types is 
difficult or impossible (e.g. poor lighting, uncontrolled or emergency situations), all 
body fluids shall be considered potentially infectious materials.  

B. Engineering and Work Practice Controls  

Employees shall follow engineering and work practice controls (described below) to 
eliminate or minimize employee exposure to blood or other infectious materials. 
Personal protective equipment shall be worn as indicated below.  

1) Hand Washing Requirements  

All employees shall wash hands and other skin with soap and water and flush 
exposed mucous membranes with water immediately or as soon as feasible after 
contact with potentially infectious materials. 

Because hands are at risk of exposure while removing gloves and gloves often 
leak or tear, hands will be washed even if gloves were worn. When hand-washing 
facilities are not readily available, the Agency shall provide appropriate waterless 
antiseptic hand cleanser with clean paper towels and antiseptic towelettes. When 
antiseptic hand cleansers or towelettes are used, hands should be washed with 
soap and water as soon as feasible.  

Emergencies often occur in locations where sinks are not readily accessible. 
Emergency first aid kits must be stocked with antiseptic towelettes, or antiseptic 
hand cleanser with paper or cloth towels and closable disposable containers for 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 2 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



depositing used cleaning materials. These intermediate measures do not eliminate 
the need to wash hands at a sink. All employees are required to wash hands as 
soon as feasible after using antiseptic cleanser and towel alternatives.  

Employees shall advise supervisors or managers of locations where contamination 
could reasonably occur and where hands cannot be cleaned in accordance with the 
following standards so that corrective action can be taken.  

Employees shall report incidents in which the inability to clean hands in 
accordance with the following standard after possible contamination of self or 
others could result in transmitting a bloodborne disease.  

2) Hand Washing Procedures  

Hand washing is the single most important method to prevent the spread of 
infection. Good hand washing requires the use of friction to mechanically remove 
microorganisms. Using proper hand washing techniques is essential to the 
effectiveness of this preventive practice.  

a. Do not remove rings.  

b. Turn on water (the warmer the better).  

c. Apply soap.  

d. Scrub hands including palms, backs, between fingers, around and under 
fingernails, wrists and arms if exposed.  

e. Grasp rings and move up and down fingers until thoroughly soaped.  

f. Rinse thoroughly under running water.  

g. Dry hands with a clean paper towel.  

h. Using a paper towel, turn off the water faucets.  

i. All faucets, soap dispensers, or other surfaces, touched with contaminated 
hands, are considered contaminated and must be disinfected. Faucets can be 
cleaned while washing hands with disinfectant soap.  

3) Requirements for Bio-Waste and Sharps Containers 

Bio-waste or regulated waste shall be placed in containers which are closable and 
labeled using the universal biohazard symbol and the word "biohazard". 
Containers must be constructed to contain all contents and prevent leakage of 
fluids during handling, storage, transport or shipping.  

Containers must be closed before being handled, stored, or transported. If outside 
contamination of a bio-waste container occurs, it must be placed in a second 
container that meets the requirements stated above.  

All contaminated sharps and potential sharps must be immediately placed into 
containers that meet the following requirements:  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 3 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



a. Closable and not able to be opened except by the use of tools  

b. Puncture-resistant  

c. Leak-proof on bottom and sides to prevent leakage of contaminated liquids 

d. Labeled using the universal biohazard symbol and the word "biohazard" (see 
Attachment  

Sharps containers must be easily accessible for use, maintained in an upright 
position during use, and replaced routinely to avoid overfilling.  

When moving containers of contaminated sharps, containers must be closed to 
avoid contents spilling or protruding. If container leakage is anticipated, it must 
be placed into a second container that is closable, labeled, and shall safely contain 
all contents without leaking. Reusable containers should not be opened, emptied, 
or cleaned manually or in a manner exposing employees to injury.  

4) Sharp Objects Procedures  

Employees should use caution and avoid contaminated sharp objects, such as 
broken glass, sharp metal or needles. If possible, contaminated sharps will not be 
handled but swept up using a dust pan and brush, or picked up with tongs or 
forceps. All sharps, whether known to be contaminated or not, should be placed in 
the sharps container designated for this purpose. 

  
C. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)  

Personal protective equipment (PPE) includes any item that employees wear or use to 
provide barrier protection of the skin or mucous membranes from contamination by 
blood or other potentially infections materials (OPIM). Examples include gloves, lab 
coats, face shields, and eye protection and resuscitation masks.  

PPE is required as supplementary protection in situations where occupational 
exposure remains after the use of engineering and work practice controls. The 
Agency requires the use of PPE for employees engaging in tasks involving contact 
with blood, body fluids, or any OPIM when occupational exposure is reasonably 
anticipated.  

The only exception to this requirement shall be those rare and extraordinary 
circumstances when, in the employee’s professional judgment, PPE would prevent 
the delivery of health or public safety services or would pose an increased hazard to 
the employee or coworkers. Such situations must be investigated and documented to 
determine whether such occurrences can be prevented.  

1) Provision and Use of PPE 

Each department shall determine appropriate types of PPE necessary to provide 
barrier protection for employees for each job type or job title. PPE shall be readily 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 4 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



accessible to employees for whom it is required and shall be provided in 
appropriate sizes.  

The Agency shall provide, clean, launder, or dispose of and replace PPE at no 
cost to the employee.  

PPE shall be removed before leaving the work area and placed in a designated 
area or container for storage, washing, laundering, decontamination, or disposal.  

Employees should avoid stepping in body fluids as shoes and other clothing may 
be contaminated.  

Employees with known minor skin defects (e.g. cuts, abrasions, burns, dermatitis 
on arms, hands, face or neck) must cover these areas with a water-resistant 
occlusive bandage in addition to the use of PPE.  

2) Gloves  

Employees shall wear approved disposable latex gloves in which hand contact 
with blood, other potentially infectious materials, mucous membranes, non-intact 
skin, is likely to occur or when handling or touching potentially contaminated 
items or surfaces. 

Employee shall wear latex gloves or other approved protective items at all times 
when in contact with body fluids of another individual. 

The type of gloves selected should be impervious to liquids and strong enough to 
withstand the task to be performed. Use of vinyl or latex gloves should cover 
defects in the skin on hands and is not intended to provide protection from 
puncture wounds caused by sharps. 

Employees must ensure that rings, jewelry, and fingernails do not compromise the 
integrity of the disposable latex gloves.  

Gloves do not replace hand washing. Employees shall wash hands as soon as 
practical after potential contamination.  

Gloves shall be changed under the following circumstances:  

a. After contact with subject or evidence (Police Personnel)  

b. Visibly contaminated with blood or body fluids  

c. Physical damage to the glove such as tearing or surface defect 

Contaminated disposable gloves should be discarded into a biohazard waste 
container immediately after removal.  

Employees should be aware that items such as pens, clipboards, telephone 
receivers, vehicles and other equipment can become contaminated if touched 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 5 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



while wearing gloves contaminated with body fluids. Gloves must be discarded 
before touching vehicles, equipment, doorknobs, keypad locks or handles to avoid 
contaminating other surfaces.  

Caution should be used when reaching into areas that are not visible such as under 
car seats and into trash receptacles to avoid needle sticks or cuts.  

Employees who sustain a needle stick or puncture wound should immediately 
induce bleeding and wash thoroughly with soap and water.  

3) Masks, Eye Protection, and Face Shields  

These barrier devices shall be used to protect eyes, nose and mouth from contact 
with blood or body fluid droplets. Examples are disposable facemasks, plastic or 
disposable face shields, protective eyeglasses with non-permeable side vents, and 
goggles. Employees shall wear protective face shields or masks, and eye 
protection whenever splashes, spray, spatter or droplets of blood or OPIM may be 
generated and eye, nose or mouth contamination is reasonably anticipated. 

Employees shall remove masks, eye protection, and face shields when leaving the 
work area. Disposable masks and shields shall be discarded in a biohazard waste 
container when visibly contaminated or penetrated by blood or OPIM. Reusable 
eyewear and shields that are visibly contaminated should be washed with soap 
and water using gloved hands and then decontaminated.  

4) Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Masks  

Employees whose tasks include cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) shall use a 
one-way mask when performing mouth-to-mouth resuscitation. Masks shall be 
provided and made readily available wherever the need for CPR is reasonably 
expected to occur.  

A visibly contaminated mask should be washed with soap and water using gloved 
hands and then decontaminated. The mouthpiece shall be disposed of after each 
use.  

VI. HEPATITIS B VACCINATION 

A. Overview of Hepatitis B 

Hepatitis B is caused by a virus (HBV) that attacks the liver and can cause lifelong 
infection, cirrhosis (scarring) of the liver, liver cancer, liver failure, and death.  

HBV is spread when blood or body fluids from an infected person enters the body of 
a person who is not infected. For example, HBV is spread through sexual activity 
with an infected person, by sharing drugs or needles, through needle sticks or sharps 
exposures, or from an infected mother to her baby during birth.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 6 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



B. Hepatitis B Virus Vaccination  

The Agency has established a Service Agreement with (insert health care provider 
name) to provide employees with the HBV vaccination series.  

An employee shall be offered HBV Vaccination at the Agency’s expense if the 
employee is determined to be at risk for exposure by an authorized Department staff 
member.  

If a routine booster of the HBV vaccine is recommended by the U.S. Public Health 
Service at a future date, such booster dose shall be made available.  

To receive a HBV vaccination, an employee must:  

1) Obtain an on-the-Job referral form from the appropriate Department 
representative.  

2) Go to the (insert health care provider name) of their choice between the hours of 
8:30 a.m. and 12:00 noon, 1:30 p.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, on 
off-duty time. No appointment is necessary. The nearest facility is located at 
(insert location).  

3) Employees who are members of (health care provider) shall present their 
membership card when checking in and should plan approximately 10 minutes for 
the vaccination visit. 

4) Return a copy of the vaccination receipt to the Human Resources Department for 
placement in the employee’s medical file.  

5) Return for the series of shots (3 total) within the timeline provided by (health care 
provider). Failure to do so may result in the need to repeat the vaccinations.  

VII. HOUSEKEEPING AND POST EXPOSURE CLEAN-UP PROCEDURES  

Work areas will be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition.  

A. General Facility Cleaning  

Agency facilities shall receive general daily cleaning by a contractor or designated 
staff. Disinfecting cleaners are to be used on public counter areas not known to be 
contaminated by blood or OPIM.  

Contaminated work surfaces must be decontaminated with a disinfectant at the 
following times: 

1) After completion of procedures 

2) Immediately, or as soon as possible, after surfaces are overtly contaminated or 
after any spill of blood or OPIM 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 7 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



3) At the end of the work shift if the surface may be contaminated since the last 
cleaning  

Acceptable disinfectant solutions include, but are not limited to sodium hypochlorite, 
five-tenths percent (0.5%) concentration by volume (common household bleach in ten 
percent (10%) concentration in water). The solution shall be dated and not used if 
more than twenty-four hours old. 

B.  Clean Up Procedures for Spills 

1) A small spill such as from a cut or abrasion shall be cleaned up immediately:  

a. Obtain a bloodborne pathogens kit 

b. Don gloves  

c. Clean the surface with soap and water or other appropriate cleaner  

d. Disinfect the surface using one of the above described disinfectants  

e. Towels and other items used to wipe the surface shall be placed in a bio-waste 
bag with the used gloves, and properly disposed  

f. Surfaces can be sprayed with antibacterial Lysol or other similar product as an 
extra precautionary measure  

2)  Large spills such as from a major trauma scene or a large amount of blood or 
OPIM will be cleaned by the Agency’s contracted vendor for such services. 
Employees are to notify their supervisors of a large spill occurrence. The 
supervisor shall contact the agency’s designated vendor to coordinate the clean 
up. 

C. Laundry  

Employees shall handle contaminated laundry as little as possible, with a minimum of 
agitation. Employees who handle contaminated laundry will use PPE to prevent 
contact with blood or OPIM.  

Contaminated laundry shall be placed in leak-proof bags or containers and labeled 
with the biohazard warnings. Once bagged, contaminated laundry shall be delivered 
to the supervisor for forwarding to the Agency’s designated laundering service. 
Contaminated laundry will be cleaned at the Agency’s expense.  

VIII. EXPOSURE INCIDENT  

A. Exposure Incident Determination  

Employees should complete the Exposure Determination Questionnaire to assist in 
determining if an exposure has occurred (see Appendix G). Examples of potential 
exposure and immediate responses are: 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 8 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



1) Needle Stick or Puncture Wound: Express blood from the wound. Scrub the area 
vigorously with soap and water for at least five minutes.  

2) Eye Exposure: Irrigate immediately with cool water or normal saline solution for 
60 seconds.  

3) Mucous Membrane Exposure: Rinse the area with an oxygenating agent such as 
hydrogen peroxide half strength for 30 seconds and repeat several times. Do not 
swallow if rinsing the mouth.  

4) Human Bite: Cleanse the wound with Betadine or sterile water.  

If an exposure incident occurs, the employee’s supervisor shall: 

1) Complete the Exposure Report Form (see Appendix F) 

2) Follow the Post-Exposure Evaluation and Follow-up Checklist (see Appendix H) 

3) Give the employee a worker’s compensation claim packet  

B. Medical Evaluation and Follow-up  

In the event of exposure to Blood or OPIM, it is extremely important to report the 
incident and be referred for medical evaluation immediately. It is highly 
recommended for exposed employees to be evaluated for Post Exposure Prophylaxis 
(PEP) within 24 hours of exposure.  

These post exposure procedures apply to any employee who may become exposed 
regardless of whether or not that employee was already considered to be at risk of 
exposure.  

After an exposure, the Agency will provide follow up for the employee to include: 

1) Confidential medical evaluation documenting the circumstances of exposure. If 
the employee declines an evaluation, the employee shall complete the Post 
Exposure Medical Evaluation Declination form and the form shall be retained in 
the employee’s medical file (see Appendix I).  

2) Identify and test the source individual, if feasible.  

3) Draw the exposed employee’s blood as soon as feasible after consent is obtained 
and test for HBV, HVC and HIV serological status. If the employee consents to 
baseline blood collection but does not give consent at the time for HIV serologic 
testing, the sample will be preserved for 90 days. If the employee elects to have 
the baseline sample tested within 90 days of the exposure incident, such testing 
shall be done as soon as feasible.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 9 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



4) The exposed employee will receive post exposure vaccines when medically 
indicated as recommended by the treating physician.  

5) The exposed employee will receive appropriate medical counseling by the treating 
physician.  

6) The Agency will ensure that the health-care professional responsible for the 
employee’s HBV vaccination receives this policy.  

The Agency will ensure that the health-care professional evaluating an employee after 
an exposure incident receives the following information:  

1) A copy of CCR Title 8, Section 5193 

2) A description of the exposed employee's duties related to the exposure incident  

3) Documentation of the routes of exposure and circumstances under which the 
exposure occurred  

4) Results of the source individual’s blood testing, if available 

5) Medical records relevant to the treatment of the employee, including vaccination 
status 

The employee will be provided the health care professional’s written opinion within 
15 days of the evaluation. The health care professional’s written opinion for HBV 
will be limited to whether the HBV vaccination is indicated and if the employee has 
received such vaccination; that the employee has been informed of the results of the 
evaluation; and that the employee has been counseled about medical conditions 
resulting from exposure to blood or other potentially infectious materials which 
require further evaluation or treatment.  

Other findings and recommendations will remain confidential and will not be 
included in the written report. 

Exposed employees will work directly with the treating physician to determine the 
appropriate post-exposure follow-up.  

Medical records shall be kept confidential and must be maintained for at least the 
duration of employment plus 30 years.  

C. Mandatory AIDS Virus Testing for Peace Officers or Victims  

1) Health and Safety Code, Section 121060 deals with assaults on Peace Officers. If 
the accused is charged with a crime and alleged to have interfered with the official 
duties of a Peace Officer by biting, scratching, spitting, or transferring blood or 
other bodily fluid to that officer, the officer has the right to petition the court for a 
blood test of the accused for the AIDS virus and other communicable diseases.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 10 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



The court will promptly hold a hearing on the petition. If the court finds probable 
cause to believe that a possible transfer of blood, saliva, semen, or other bodily 
fluid took place between the accused and the Peace Officer, the court shall order 
the accused's blood to be tested.  

Test results will be sent to the accused and each requesting victim.  

2) Penal Code Section 1524.1, Chapter 1088 authorizes a court, on request of a 
crime victim, including Police Officers, where a defendant has been charged with 
any crime, felony or misdemeanor, and after determining that probable cause 
exists to believe that the accused committed an offense that involved transmission 
of blood, semen, or any other bodily fluid identified in State Department of 
Health Services regulations as capable of transmitting the AIDS virus, to issue a 
search warrant for the purpose of testing the accused's blood for the AIDS virus. 

IX. TRAINING  

A. Employees with high or moderate risk of occupational exposure to bloodborne 
pathogens shall participate in an annual training program provided during working 
hours and at no cost to the employee. Supervisor shall train new employees on this 
policy at the time of initial assignment to tasks where occupational exposure may take 
place including low-risk employees.  

B. Additional training shall be provided when changes occur which affect the 
employee's occupational exposure. These include the modification of tasks or 
procedures or the institution of new tasks or procedures.  

C. The training program shall contain content and vocabulary appropriate for the 
educational level, literacy, and language of employees. Training shall be conducted 
by an individual who is knowledgeable in the subject matter and contain the 
following elements:  

1) A copy of the policy and explanation of its contents 

2) A general explanation of the epidemiology and symptoms of bloodborne diseases 

3) An explanation of the transmission modes of bloodborne pathogens 

4) An explanation of the Agency’s Exposure Control Plan and how employees can 
obtain a copy of the plan 

5) How to recognize tasks and other activities that may involve exposure to blood 
and other potentially infectious materials  

6) The use and limitations of methods that prevent or reduce exposure including 
engineering controls, work practices and personal protective equipment 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 11 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



7) Information on the types, proper use, location, removal, handling, 
decontamination and disposal of personal protective equipment  

8) How to select PPE  

9) Information on the HBV vaccine including its efficacy, safety, administration, 
vaccination benefits, and the availability of free employee vaccinations  

10) Actions to take and persons to contact regarding a personal exposure involving 
blood or other potentially infectious materials 

11) Employee post-exposure evaluation and follow up that the Agency is required to 
provide following an exposure incident  

12) Signs and labels required by the Exposure Control Plan 

13) Opportunities for questions and answers between the instructor and the employees  

X. RECORD KEEPING  

The Agency shall maintain records for employees with occupational exposure to 
include HBV vaccination, exposure incidents, and training relative to occupational 
exposure to bloodborne pathogens.  

A. Medical Records  

The Agency shall maintain records for employees with occupational exposure for 
the period of employment plus 30 years after termination of employment. Medical 
records of employees with occupational exposure to bloodborne pathogens shall 
include the following elements:  

1) Employee’s name and social security number 

2) HBV vaccination status and record 

3) Results of all exams, test, and follow up related to reported exposure incidents, as 
allowed under Federal and State privacy laws 

4) Treating physician’s initial written opinion and medical opinion of post-exposure 
incidents, as allowed under Federal and State privacy laws 

5) Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Report.  

6) Post Exposure Medical Evaluation Declination Form, if applicable.  

B. Training Records  

The Agency shall maintain records of employees trained in this program for a period 
of three years from the date of training and include the following:  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 12 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



1) Dates of training sessions  

2) Names and positions of employees attending each session  

3) Contents or summary of training sessions  

4) Names and qualifications of trainers  

C. OSHA 300 Log  

The OSHA 300 Log will be generated by the (insert agency responsible person) and 
posted as required by OSHA. 

D. Sharps Injury Log  

The Sharps Injury Log documents each exposure incident involving a sharp to 
provide sufficient information about the incident to allow the Agency to analyze and 
take preventive action (see Appendix J). The Sharps Injury Log must be maintained 
for five years from the date of the exposure incident. 

The Sharps Injury Log shall include:  

1) Date and time of the sharps-related exposure incident 

2) Type and brand of the sharp involved in the incident 

3) Name and job classification of the exposed employee 

4) Department or work area where the incident occurred 

5) The procedure being performed and how the incident occurred 

6) The injured body part 

7) For sharps with engineered sharps injury protection or ESIP, was the safety 
mechanism activated 

8) If the incident occurred before, during, or after activation of the safety 
mechanism; for sharps without ESIP, the employee’s opinion if ESIP could have 
prevented the injury 

E. Availability of Records  

Employee medical and training records shall be provided upon request for 
examination and copying to the subject employee, to employee representatives with a 
signed release, to representatives of accrediting agencies, to the Director or Assistant 
Secretary of OSHA in accordance with Federal Law or to the State of California 
Department of Health in accordance with State Law. 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 13 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



F. Labels  

Warning labels shall be affixed to refrigerators, freezers, or containers used to store, 
transport or ship regulated waste containing blood or other potentially infectious 
material. Labels are also required for equipment to be serviced or transported with 
components that are unable to be decontaminated. Labels must identify which 
portions of the equipment remain contaminated.  

Labels must meet the following criteria:  

1) Include the Biohazard legend (see Appendix B).  

2) Have a fluorescent orange or orange-red colored background with lettering or 
symbols in a contrasting color.  

G. Signs  

Signs with fluorescent orange or orange-red, with lettering or symbols in a 
contrasting color, and bearing the biohazard legend (see Appendix B) shall be posted 
at entrances to work areas for property or evidence processing.  

POLICE DEPARTMENT ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 
In addition to the General Provisions previously outlined, Police Department staff shall adhere to 
these additional provisions. (Note: The following section applies to agencies with their own 
police services). 
 
XI. (Police) HOUSEKEEPING  

A. Personal Protective Equipment  

Reusable CPR masks shall be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition. Each 
employee is responsible for ensuring that their mask is clean and decontaminated. 
After each use, the mask must be cleaned and decontaminated in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s directions.  

B. Cleaning  

1) Vehicles, Jail, and Evidence Room  

If an Agency vehicle, jail, or evidence room becomes contaminated from a blood 
or other body fluid spill, the vendor with whom the Agency contracts for cleanup 
of such spills shall be called. Employees shall not attempt to clean a blood or 
OPIM spill from a suspect, regardless of the size of the spill.  

Suspects shall not be transported in a contaminated vehicle nor housed in a 
contaminated jail cell. Contaminated vehicles are to be returned to the Police 
station until professionally cleaned. Contaminated jail cells are to be locked to 
keep all persons out of the cell until professionally cleaned.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 14 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



2) Footwear  

Footwear contaminated with blood or OPIM should be cleaned as soon as 
practical. The proper cleaning method is to don gloves, obtain antiseptic and 
antimicrobial wipes from a first aid kit and wipe down the entire shoe, including 
the sole. Once completed, the used wipes and gloves shall be disposed in a bio-
waste container within the department. 

XII. (Police) SCENE MANAGEMENT  

In responding to an emergency call, Police Department employees shall follow infection 
control measures including, but not limited to:  

A. Blood, body fluids and tissues of injured persons are considered potentially 
infectious. Universal Precautions will be used for every contact with an injured 
person.  

B. In general, employees should select PPE appropriate to the potential for spill, splash, 
or exposure to body fluids. No standard operating procedure or PPE ensemble can 
cover all situations. Common sense must be used. When in doubt, select maximal 
rather than minimal PPE.  

C. Responding Officers who are not immediately needed for life-saving measures will 
remain a safe distance when communicable disease exposure is possible or 
anticipated. Once emergency responders arrive on scene, Officers shall turn over the 
care of the injured person.  

D. At the conclusion of on-scene operations, potentially contaminated PPE will be 
removed for appropriate disposal or decontamination. 

XIII. (Police) ENGINEERING AND WORK PRACTICE CONTROLS 

A. Hand Washing  

As employees with high risk of exposure, hand washing is critical. Hand washing is 
the best way to prevent disease. Employees should be diligent in washing hands at 
every opportunity, but especially before eating or drinking, before touching other 
items that could become contaminated, and most definitely before going home after a 
work shift.  

B. Bio-waste and Sharps Containers  

Marked bio-waste and sharps containers should be located in the trunk of every patrol 
vehicle. Used gloves and other contaminated items not removed from the scene by 
emergency responders are to be placed in the bio-waste container. Such items are not 
to be placed loose within the vehicle or trunk.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 15 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



All sharps not collected as evidence, whether known to be contaminated or not, are to 
be placed in the sharps container. Both the bio-waste and sharps containers shall be 
returned to the Evidence staff for disposal. When returning full containers, employees 
will be issued new containers for replacement in the vehicle.  

C. Sharp Objects Procedures  

All sharps are to be treated as though known to be contaminated. Employees are to 
refrain from handling sharps whenever possible. Employees should handle sharps 
only after donning gloves, and preferably only to safely place the sharp into the 
sharps container or evidence bag.  

D. Suspect Search Practices  

The following are safe practices when searching a suspect to avoid a potential 
bloodborne pathogen exposure:  

1) Ask the suspect if they are in possession of sharp objects. If necessary, clarify that 
sharp objects include knives, metal, sharpened or broken glass, plastic edged 
items, jewelry, razors and needles.  

2) Do not reach into pockets or bags. 

3) Pat lightly rather than sliding hands over a suspect. 

4) Dump purses, backpacks or other hand held baggage. 

5) Look with your eyes before you look with your hands. 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 
 
In addition to the General Provisions outlined above, Public Works Department staff shall adhere 
to these additional provisions. (Note: The following section applies to agencies with their own 
public works services). 

XIV.  (Public Works) HOUSEKEEPING  

Use proper PPE when cleaning public restrooms. Use latex or other appropriate gloves 
and eye protection if hosing down the restroom.  

Hand-washing agents should be stored in closed containers. Use documented routine 
maintenance schedules for refilling and cleaning reusable dispensers. Wash such 
containers and dry them thoroughly before refilling. Do not add liquid to top-off a 
partially full dispenser.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 16 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



Check hand-washing agents for expiration dates before using especially for 
antimicrobial-containing agents that do not require water for use.  

Buy hand lotion in small sizes. Keep it capped and discard it at short-term intervals since 
it can support the growth of pathogens. 

XV. (Public Works) ENGINEERING AND WORK PRACTICE CONTROLS  

A. Hand Washing  

As employees with high risk of exposure, hand washing is critical. Hand washing is 
the best way to prevent disease. Employees should be diligent in washing hands at 
every opportunity, but especially before eating or drinking, before touching other 
items that could become contaminated, and most definitely before going home after a 
work shift.  

B. Procedures for Sharp Objects  

All sharps are to be treated as though known to be contaminated. Employees shall 
refrain from handling sharps whenever possible and if necessary, pick them up with 
grapplers or other tools. Employees should handle sharps only after donning gloves, 
and preferably only to place the sharp into the sharps container. Once sharps have 
been placed into the container, remove gloves by pulling glove cuff down to turn the 
glove inside out.  

Place used gloves in a bio-baggie and a small bio hazard bag upon returning to the 
Corp Yard, Environmental Center or other Agency facility. Bags should be returned 
to the Police Department for proper disposal when full.  

C. Sharps Containers  

Sharps containers should be located in vehicles for employees that clean restrooms, 
garbage receptacles and areas that may contain sharps. Sharps should not be placed 
loose within the vehicle. All sharps, whether known to be contaminated or not, shall 
be placed in the sharps container. Take full sharps containers to the Police 
Department Evidence section for proper disposal. Sharps containers are located in the 
warehouses. Ask your supervisor for a replacement sharps container and place it in 
the vehicle.  

D. Garbage or Refuse Collection  

Dry bandage waste, sanitary napkins, and paper towels can be disposed of in ordinary 
refuse containers except for items containing only dried blood. Restroom and other 
area waste containers shall be lined at all times with plastic or other waste bags to 
prevent potential exposure. Employees cleaning these facilities will wear appropriate 
gloves when handling mixed debris.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 17 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



Employees who remove spent condoms shall place them in a bio-baggie and dispose 
of the bag upon returning to the Corp Yard, Environmental Center or other Agency 
facility.  

When removing debris from garbage receptacles or surrounding areas, do not use or 
put hands into blind or dark areas. Look with your eyes before you look with your 
hands. Use rakes or other tools to bring material into the open to ensure no sharps or 
other hazards are present. If present, use proper tools and PPE to clean up the hazards.  

E. Sewer and Storm Water Sanitation Procedures  

1)  Sewer Operations  

Sewage and wastewater contain bacteria, funguses, parasites, and viruses that can 
cause intestinal, lung, and other infections. For work around sewage or 
wastewater, engineering controls and work practices are the best ways to protect 
employees from exposures to disease. When engineering controls are not possible, 
use PPE. For some jobs and around some hazards, respiratory protection is 
required.  

a. Wash hands well with clean water and soap before eating, smoking, or after 
work.  

b. Do not touch nose, mouth, eyes, or ears with your hands, unless you have just 
washed. In most cases, people get diseases when germs are on their hands and 
touch their mouth, nose or eyes.  

c. Keep fingernails short; use a stiff soapy brush to clean under nails.  

d. Wear waterproof gloves when cleaning pumps or screens and when handling 
wastewater or storm water.  

e. Wear gloves when hands are chapped, burned or with a rash or cut.  

f. Change out of work clothes before leaving work. (Shower facility is 
available.)  

g. Do not keep soiled work clothes with other clothes.  

h. Report any injury or illness immediately  

2) Sanitation of Sewer Equipment  

In daily operations, care should be taken to clean equipment to prevent the spread 
of bacteria, funguses and pathogens. The following are guidelines to keep 
equipment and work areas clean when working in sewer or storm water 
conditions:  

a. Sewer “collectables” (i.e. chains, rings, coins, etc.) shall not be removed from 
the work area.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 18 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



b. Use plastic bags to line 5-gallon buckets for storing used rags, latex gloves 
and other contaminated debris. Remove bags daily and place in trash 
dumpster.  

c. Use disinfectant sprays to clean rubber boots and gloves between uses to 
prevent the spread of bacteria, funguses, and viruses. Do not place in truck, 
truck cabinets, truck cab or office areas until disinfected.  

d. Wash or wipe down handles, tubes and other contaminated areas with 
disinfectant sprays after each work shift or as necessary (before service in 
Fleet Maintenance Shop, etc.) including video equipment and snakes. Follow 
directions for cleaning to ensure that the disinfectant will work properly. See 
sample language below.  

3) OSHA’s policy regarding the use of EPA-registered disinfectants, Standard 
Interpretations 07/15/1999  

OSHA’s current policy is that EPA-registered disinfectants for HIV and HBV 
meet the requirement in the bloodborne pathogen standard and are “appropriate” 
disinfectants to clean contaminated surfaces, provided such surfaces have not 
become contaminated with agents, volumes, or concentrations of agents for which 
a higher level disinfection is recommended.  

The memorandum concludes, “as is true with all disinfectant products, the 
effectiveness is governed by strict adherence to the instructions on the label.” For 
example, the EPA-approved label on one product has a section titled “SPECIAL 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR CLEANING AND DECONTAMINATION AGAINST 
HIV-1 AND HBV OF SURFACES\OBJECTS SOILED WITH BLOOD\BODY 
FLUIDS.”  

These sample instructions required:  

• PPE for the worker performing the task 

• Blood must be cleaned thoroughly before applying the disinfectant 

• Disposal of the infectious waste is in accordance with federal, state, or local 
regulations 

• Surface should be left wet with the disinfectant for 30 seconds for HIV-1 and 
10 minutes for HBV  

Use proper PPE when performing sewer and storm water operations and when 
disinfecting equipment. These items may include rubber gloves, latex or nitrile 
gloves, eye protection or splash shield, coveralls, and rubber boots.  

When performing sewer lateral work at a home, disinfect the area before leaving.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 19 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix A: Definitions 

 
Blood. Human blood, human blood components, and products made from human blood.  

Bloodborne Pathogens (BBP). Pathogenic microorganisms present in human blood that can 
cause disease in humans including, but not limited to, hepatitis B virus (HBV), hepatitis 
C virus (HCV) and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV).  

Contaminated. The presence or the reasonably anticipated presence of blood or other potentially 
infectious materials on a surface or in an item.  

Decontamination. The use of physical or chemical means to remove, inactivate, or destroy 
bloodborne pathogens on a surface or item to the point where they are no longer capable 
of transmitting infectious particles and the surface or item is rendered safe for handling, 
use, or disposal. Decontamination includes procedures regulated by Health and Safety 
Code Section 118275.  

Engineering Controls. Controls (e.g., sharps disposal containers, needleless systems and sharps 
with engineered sharps injury protection) that isolate or remove the bloodborne 
pathogens hazard from the workplace.  

Exposure Incident. A specific eye, mouth, or mucous membrane, non-intact skin, or parenteral 
contact with blood or other potentially infectious materials that results from performance 
of an employee’s duties.  

Hepatitis B Virus (HBV). A virus that attacks the liver and can cause lifelong infection, 
cirrhosis (scarring) of the liver, liver cancer, liver failure, and death. HBV is spread when 
blood or body fluids from an infected person enters the body of a person who is not 
infected.  

Hepatitis C Virus (HCV). A liver disease found in the blood of persons who have the disease. 
HCV is spread by contact with blood of an infected person.  

Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV). A virus that destroys the body’s ability to fight 
infections and certain cancers.  

Occupational Exposure. Reasonably anticipated skin, eye, mucous membrane, or parenteral 
contact with blood or other potentially infectious materials resulting from the 
performance of an employee’s duties.  

Other Potentially Infectious Materials (OPIM). The following human body fluids: semen, 
vaginal secretions, cerebrospinal fluid, synovial fluid, pleural fluid, pericardial fluid, 
peritoneal fluid, amniotic fluid, saliva in dental procedures, other body fluids visibly 
contaminated with blood such as saliva or vomit, and all body fluids in situations where it 
is difficult or impossible to differentiate between body fluids.  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 20 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



Parenteral Contact. Piercing mucous membranes or the skin barrier through such events as 
needlesticks, human bites, cuts, and abrasions.  

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). Specialized clothing or equipment worn or used by an 
employee for protection against a hazard. General work clothes (e.g., uniforms, pants, 
shirts or blouses) not intended to function as protection against a hazard are not 
considered to be personal protective equipment.  

Regulated Waste. Waste that is any of the following:  

a. Liquid or semi-liquid blood or OPIM  

b. Contaminated items that contain liquid or semi-liquid blood, caked with dried 
blood or OPIM; and capable of releasing these materials when handled or 
compressed.  

c. Contaminated sharps  

d. Pathological and microbiological wastes containing blood or OPIM  

e. Regulated Waste includes “medical waste” regulated by Health and Safety Code 
Sections 117600 through 118360  

Sharp. Any object used or encountered in the industries covered by subsection (1) that can be 
reasonably anticipated to penetrate the skin or any other part of the body, and to result in 
an exposure incident, including, but not limited to, needle devices, scalpels, lancets, 
broken glass, broken capillary tubes, exposed ends of dental wires and dental knives, 
drills and burs.  

Universal Precautions. An approach to infection control. According to the concept of Universal 
Precautions, all human blood and certain human body fluids are treated as if known to be 
infectious for HIV, HBV, HCV, and other bloodborne pathogens.  

Work Practice Controls. Controls that reduce the likelihood of exposure by defining the 
manner in which a task is performed (e.g., prohibiting recapping of needles by a two-
handed technique and use of patient-handling techniques).  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 21 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix B: Signs and Symbols 

 
Bio-hazard   Sharps Container 

 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 22 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix C: HIV Information 

Human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) is the virus that causes acquired immunodeficiency 
syndrome (AIDS). HIV progressively destroys the body’s ability to fight infections and certain 
cancers by killing or damaging cells of the body’s immune system.  

HIV is spread most commonly through sexual activity with an infected person. It can also be 
spread by contact with infected blood through needle sharing, or from an infected mother to her 
baby during birth. It is rare for a patient to give HIV to a health care worker or vice-versa by 
accidental sticks with contaminated needles. There is no evidence that HIV is spread through 
contact with sweat, tears, urine or feces. There is clear evidence that HIV is not spread through 
casual contact, such as sharing food utensils, swimming pools, telephones or toilet seats. HIV is 
also not spread through biting insects such as mosquitoes.  

HIV has no cure and no vaccine. People with HIV should work closely with their physician to 
determine the appropriate treatment program.  

Additional information on HIV or AIDS can be found on the following websites:  

www.niaid.nih.gov www.cdc.gov  

http://aidsinfo.nih.gov  

 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 23 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix D: Hepatitis B Information 

Hepatitis B is the most common serious liver infection in the world and is caused by a virus that 
attacks the liver. The virus, known as the hepatitis B virus (HBV), can cause lifelong infection, 
cirrhosis (scarring) of the liver, liver cancer, liver failure, and death.  

HBV is spread when blood or body fluids from an infected person enters the body of a person 
who is not infected. For example, HBV is spread through sexual activity with an infected person 
by sharing drugs/needles through needle sticks or sharps exposures on the job or from an 
infected mother to her baby during birth.  
 
Most people are able to fight off a hepatitis B infection and clear the virus from their blood. 
However, 5-10% of adults, 30-50% of children, and 90% of babies will not get rid of the virus 
and will develop chronic infection. Chronically infected people can pass the virus on to others 
and are at increased risk of liver problems later in life.  
 
The hepatitis B virus is 100 times more infectious than the AIDS virus. Yet, hepatitis B can be 
prevented with a safe and effective vaccine. For those who are chronically infected with hepatitis 
B, the vaccine is of no use. However, there are promising new treatments for those who live with 
chronic hepatitis B.  
 
Additional information on hepatitis B can be found on the following websites:  
 
www.hepb.org www.cdc.gov  
 

Appendix E: Hepatitis C Information 

Hepatitis C is a liver disease caused by the hepatitis C virus (HCV), found in the blood of 
persons who have the disease. The virus can cause lifelong infection, chronic liver disease, 
cirrhosis (scarring) of the liver, liver cancer, and death. HCV is a leading indication for liver 
transplants.  
 
HCV is spread by contact with the blood of an infected person. There is no cure and no vaccine 
for HCV.  
 
Additional information on hepatitis C can be found on the following website:  
www.cdc.gov  
 
 
 
  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 24 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix F: Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Report 
Exposed Employee Information: 

 
Employee Name  Job Classification:  
Exposure Description:  

Date of Exposure:  Time of Exposure:  

1. What body fluids were you in contact with Blood  Feces  

Saliva  Sputum  Sweat  Tears  

Urine  Vomit  Vaginal secretion  Other  

2. What was the method of contact?    

   Needle stick with contaminated needle 

  Blood or body fluids into natural body openings (e.g., nose, mouth, eye)  

  Blood or body fluids in cut, wound, sores, or rashes less than 24 hrs old 

  Blood or body fluids on intact skin 

  Other (describe specifically): 

3. How did the exposure occur?  

 

 

4. What action was taken in response to the exposure to remove the contamination (e.g. hand washing)? 

 

5. What personal protective equipment was being used at the time of exposure? 

 

 

6. Please describe any other information related to the incident (use a separate piece of paper if needed): 

 

 

7. Source of Exposure (name)  Gender:  

Blood drawn?  Consent needed? Medical treatment needed  

Medical information 

Did employee seek medical attention?  Date  If Yes, 
where? 

 

Did employee complete claim for workers’ compensation benefits?  

Employee’s signature  Date  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 25 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix G: Exposure Determination Questionnaire 

 
The following short answer questionnaire can assist in determining if an employee has had an exposure:  
 
1. Is the fluid or substance with which the employee came in contact one of the following? 

  Yes/No  
• Blood         ( ) ( )  
• Semen         ( ) ( ) 
• Vaginal Secretions       ( ) ( ) 
• Any body fluid/matter visibly contaminated 
  with blood        ( ) ( ) 
• Other fluid or secretions, specify___________    ( ) ( ) 
• Respiratory secretions       ( ) ( )  
 
2. Did the fluid or substance (identified above in #1) enter the employee’s body through the following?  
         Yes No  
• Needle stick injury       ( ) ( ) 
• Laceration by contaminated object      ( ) ( ) 
• Open cut, wound, non-intact skin      ( ) ( ) 
• Splash or contact with eyes, mouth or nose     ( ) ( )  
• Prolonged respiratory contact      ( ) ( )  
 
If answers to both #1 and #2 are yes, the employee should be considered to have sustained a significant exposure 
and needs to seek medical treatment.  
 
  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 26 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix H: Post-Exposure Evaluation & Follow-up Checklist 

 
The following steps must be taken, and information transmitted, in case of an employee’s exposure to bloodborne 
pathogens:  
 
 ACTIVITY        COMPLETION DATE  

• Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Report  
completed by employee             

• Employee provided with claim for workers’  
compensation packet             

• Source individual identified:          
• Appointment arranged for employee 

 with healthcare professional.           

Professional’s Name:            
 

Documentation forwarded to  
 Healthcare professional:            
 Copy of Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan        
 Copy of exposed employee’s job description         
 Copy of Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Report         
 Source individual information, if known         
 Copy of employee’s HBV vaccination records       
 Source individual’s blood tested and  

results given to exposed employee.           
or  

 Consent has not been able to be obtained.           
 Human Resources notified            

 
Supervisor’s signature: _____________________________   Date:     

 
 

Original: Human Resources Copy: Employee 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 27 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix I: Hepatitis B Vaccination Post Exposure Medical Declination 

 
I understand that due to my occupational exposure incident to potential infectious materials, I 
may be at risk of acquiring hepatitis B virus (HBV) infection or other bloodborne pathogens.  
 
I have been given the opportunity to receive a post-exposure medical evaluation, at no charge to 
myself. 
  
I UNDERSTAND THAT AN IMMEDIATE MEDICAL EVALUATION IS RECOMMENDED; 
HOWEVER, I DECLINE THIS MEDICAL EVALUATION AT THIS TIME.  
 
EMPLOYEE NAME:    
 
Employee’s Signature    Date:   
  
Hepatitis B Vaccination Declination  
 
I understand that due to my occupational exposure to blood or OPIM I may be at risk of 
acquiring hepatitis B virus (HBV) infection. I have been given the opportunity to be vaccinated 
with hepatitis B vaccine, at no charge to myself. However, I decline hepatitis B vaccination at 
this time. I understand that by declining this vaccine, I continue to be at risk of acquiring 
hepatitis B, a serious disease. If in the future I continue to have occupational exposure to blood 
or OPIM and I want to be vaccinated with hepatitis B vaccine, I can receive the vaccination 
series at no charge to me.  
 
EMPLOYEE NAME:    
 
Employee’s Signature    Date:   
 
  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 28 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix J: Sharps Injury Log 

 
Date and time of exposure incident:  
 
Type and brand of sharp involved (if known):  
 
Description of the exposure incident:  
• Employee’s job classification:          
• Employee’s department:            
• What was the employee doing at the time of the incident?       
• How did the incident occur?          
              
• Part of body involved in the exposure incident:        
• What could have prevented the injury/exposure from occurring?      
              
              
 
If the employee was using the sharp at the time of the incident: 
• Did the sharp have engineered sharps injury protection (ESIP)?  Yes_____ No______  
• If yes, was the protective mechanism activated?    Yes_____ No______  
• Did the injury occur before, during, or after the mechanism was activated?  

Yes______ No______ Comments:          
• If the sharp did not have engineered sharps injury protection, would such a mechanism 

have prevented the injury?       Yes_____ No______  
• If yes, how?            
To be completed by the injured employee within 14 working days of the date the incident is 
reported.  
 

DO NOT PLACE THE EMPLOYEE’S NAME ON THIS LOG. 
  

Rev. 7/2009 Page 29 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Appendix K: Risk Exposure by Job Classification 

(Note: Agencies should amend this appendix to match their agency functions) 

High Risk (classifications & positions in which the employee has a high risk of exposure) 
  

Job Classification  Tasks placing employees at risk  

Police Officer  Searching suspects and/or vehicles; CPR; handling of evidence; accident 
investigation; crime scene processing; dealing with combative subjects  

Firefighter or Paramedic Medical aid calls, CPR, first aid,  IV’s, administering medications, situations 
where bodily fluids are present 

Police Sergeant  
Searching suspects and/or vehicles; CPR; handling of evidence; accident 
investigation; crime scene processing; dealing with combative subjects  

Maintenance Worker I/II -
Facilities/Utilities  

Sewer repair/cleaning; refuse/debris collection (sharps exposure); building 
maintenance; special events, CPR/first aid (confined space program)  

Maintenance Lead Worker -
Facilities/Utilities  

Sewer repair/cleaning; refuse/debris collection (sharps exposure); building 
maintenance; special events, CPR/first aid (confined space program)  

Maintenance Worker I/II 
Environmental Services -Public 
Works  

Park clean-up & refuse collection (sharps exposure); restroom cleaning; 
maintenance of recreation facilities; special events, CPR/first aid (confined space 
program)  

Maintenance Lead Worker -
Environmental Services  

Park clean-up & refuse collection (sharps exposure); restroom cleaning; 
maintenance of recreation facilities; special events, CPR/first aid (confined space 
program)  

Maintenance Aide Parks/Water, 
Sewer, Streets  

Sewer repair/cleaning; refuse/debris collection (sharps exposure); building 
maintenance; park clean-up (sharps exposure); restroom cleaning; maintenance 
of recreation facilities; special events  

Recreation Services Worker -
Marina  

Building maintenance; debris collection; cleaning of restrooms (sharps exposure) 
& other recreation facilities/grounds; special events, CPR/first aid (confined 
space program)  

Recreation Services Lead 
Worker  

Building maintenance; debris collection; cleaning of restrooms & other 
recreation facilities/grounds; special events, CPR/first aid (confined space 
program)  

Lifeguard/Swim Aide/Pool 
Supervisor/Sr. Lifeguard/Water 
Safety Instructor/Pool Manager  

CPR, first aid  

Park Manager/Park Aide-Ride 
Operator/Park Aide  

Small World Park~ recreation programs with youth, CPR/first aid, restroom 
cleaning, maintenance of recreation facilities  

 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 30 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Moderate Risk (classifications and positions in which the employee has a moderate risk of 
exposure)  
 
Job Classification  Tasks placing employees at risk  
Police Assistant  Booking and transporting suspects; search of suspects; handling of evidence; 

assisting Officers with crime scene search  

Police Lieutenant  

Searching suspects and/or vehicles; CPR; handling of evidence; accident 
investigation; crime scene processing; dealing with combative subjects (moderate 
risk determination due to reduced number of potential exposures)  

Combination Building Inspector  Inspections of homes & constructions sites  
Sr. Combination Building 
Inspector  Inspections of homes & constructions sites, including unsanitary conditions  

Code Compliance Specialist  
Inspections of homes for "unsanitary conditions"; collection of code violation 
evidence  

Civil Engineer I/II  Construction inspections  
Housing Specialist/ Housing 
Inspector  Inspections of homes, including unsanitary conditions  

Public Works Superintendents/ 
Supervisors  

Inspections of sewer repair clean, special events, CPR/first aid (confined space 
program)  

Electrician  Sewer lift station repairs, sharps exposure, storm drain pump stations, CPR/first 
aid (confined space program)  

Environmental Health Officer  Transfer station inspections; biological/chemical testing of solid or liquid waste  

Sr. Administrative Analyst – 
Public Works  Transfer station inspections  

Water Plant Instrument / 
Maintenance Technician I/II  Water Plant maintenance, CPR/first aid (confined space program)  

Water Plant Operator/ 
Apprentice Operator  

Periodic assistance with Water Plant maintenance, CPR/first aid (confined space 
program)  

Water Plant Superintendent/ 
Supervisor  CPR/first aid (confined space program)  

Harbormaster  
Building maintenance, debris collection, marina special events, CPR/first aid 
(confined space program)  

Recreation Supervisor/ 
Coordinator  

Responsible for/may assist with recreation programs for youth and seniors; may 
administer first aid/CPR; maintenance of recreation facilities, special events  

Preschool Teacher/ Youth 
Activities Leader I&II/ Teen 
Center Worker/ After School 
Program Recreational Leader/ 
Ball Field Supervisor  

Recreation programs for youth; may administer first aid/CPR; maintenance of 
recreation facilities, special events  

Maintenance Aide – Golf 
Course/ Maintenance Helper  Grounds maintenance, restroom cleaning  

 
Very Low Risk (classifications and positions in which employees are expected to have minimal, 
if any, risk of occupation exposure)  
 

All other classifications Unforeseen potential exposures not necessarily related to assigned tasks 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 31 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



 

Rev. 7/2009 Page 32 of  32 Bloodborne Pathogens Control Plan 



       
     

TRENCH / EXCAVATION DAILY INSPECTION 
 
 
DATE: __________________________ INSPECTOR: _______________________________________ 
 
LOCATION: ________________________________________________________________________  
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: WIDTH: _________    LENGTH: _________   DEPTH: _______________ 
 
TYPE SOIL: ________________ SHORED  SHIELDED BENCHED SLOPED 
 
ITEM OK N/C N/A  CORRECT 

BY / ON 
ITEM OK N/C N/A CORRECT 

BY / ON 
General Information      Standing Water      
Tension Cracking     Removal Equipment     
Boiling     Monitored     
Heaving     Safety Harness      
Exit Ladder (25’)           
Exit Ladder (3’ Above 
Top) 

    Hazardous 
Atmosphere  

    

Spoil Back 2 Feet     Oxygen Level     
Surface 
Encumbrances 

    LEL     

     Toxics     
 Shoring     Rescue Equipment      
In Good Condition          
Properly Installed          
# of Verticals          
Horizontal Spacing          
Sheeting Condition          
          
          
Other Items           
          
          
          
          
          
          
 
Comments: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
               
 
 



CALIFORNIA JPIA 
Policy Library 
 
 

 
Page 1 of 8 

Important:
This reference material is compiled 
for use by Authority members in the 
preparation, development and 
implementation of risk management 
policies, programs, and procedures.  
Since this document is designed to 
meet the needs of the general pool 
membership, please be aware that 
the present form is best considered 
a template for use by your agency in 
drafting specific documents.  This 
template should not be construed as 
legal advice.  Accordingly, any 
resulting policy, program or 
procedure that results from this 
template should always be reviewed 
and approved as is customary by 
your agency, including the purview 
of any necessary legal and/or 
governing body authorities to ensure 
the policy being developed meets 
the unique needs of your jurisdiction.  
Policies should be implemented after 
proper training has been provided. 
 
This reference material is to be 
considered proprietary and 
confidential and may not be 
disclosed to any person without the 
express, prior permission of the 
California JPIA.  This reference 
material is for Authority member use 
only and does not apply in any 
criminal or civil proceeding.  This 
reference material should not be 
construed as a creation of a higher 
legal standard of safety or care in an 
evidentiary sense with respect to 
third party claims. 

Policy Name:  
Hearing Conservation Program 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 2 of 8 

 
HEARING CONSERVATION PROGRAM 

 
 
I. PURPOSE  
 

Title 8, California Code of Regulations, General Industry Safety Orders, Sections 
5095-5100, mandate the implementation of a continuing, effective hearing 
conservation program whenever employee noise exposures equal or exceed an 8-
hour time weighted average (TWA) of 85 decibels measured on the A-scale (slow 
response) or, equivalently, a dose of fifty percent.   This program contains 
provisions for appropriate hearing protection, annual audiometric tests, annual 
employee training and periodic environmental assessments. 

 
II. POLICY 
 

 All departments are responsible for protecting their employees from exposure to 
excessive noise. This policy and procedure defines responsibilities for the 
prevention of occupationally induced hearing loss in Agency employees. 

 
III. DEFINITIONS 
 
 Decibel (dB) - Unit of measurement of sound level 
 
 Decibels-A-Weighted (dBA) - a unit of measurement of sound level corrected to the 

A-weighted scale, as defined in ANSI S1.4-1971 (R1 1976), using a reference level 
of 20 micropascals (0.00002 Newton per square meter) 

 
 Audiogram – A chart, graph, or table resulting from an audiometric test showing an 

individual’s hearing threshold levels as a function of frequency 
 
 Otolaryngologist – A physician specializing in diagnosis and treatment of disorders 

of the ear, nose and throat 
 
IV. RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A. Administration / Department Managers 
 

1. Implement a noise exposure control program within their area of 
jurisdiction and budget resources to fund such a program. The program 
shall include providing two types of hearing protectors for employees to 
choose from and annual refresher training on proper use. 

 
2. Assign responsibility for implementation to appropriate 

Administration/Department staff. 
 

3. Develop written Standard Operating Procedures to ensure that 



 
Page 3 of 8 

employees are protected against the effects of noise exposure when 
sound levels exceed those shown in Appendix A when measured on the 
A-scale of a standard sound level meter at slow response. 

 
B. Risk Manager 

 
1. Implement a hearing conservation program with Administration, Manager, 

and Supervisor assistance. 
 
2. Coordinate annual training of respective department employees as 

required by CAL/OSHA standards. 
 

3. Assist supervisors in the procurement, issuance, and proper utilization of 
hearing protective equipment.  The National Institute for Occupational 
Safety and Health (NIOSH) Compendium of Hearing Protection Devices 
can be downloaded from http://www.cdc.gov/niosh/95-105.html. 

 
4. Establish and maintain an audiometric testing program by making 

audiometric testing available to all employees whose exposures equal or 
exceed the action level. 

 
5. Assist supervisors with scheduling routine employee audiometric 

examinations.  Each employee exposed at or above the action level is to 
receive an annual audiogram after obtaining the initial baseline. 

 
a) If the annual audiogram shows that an employee has suffered a 

standard threshold shift, the employer may obtain a retest within 30 
days and consider the results of the retest as the annual audiogram.  

 
b) If comparison of the annual audiogram to the baseline audiogram 

indicates a standard threshold shift as defined by Section 5097 
(d)(8), the employee shall be informed of this fact, in writing, within 
21 days of the determination.  

 
6. Monitor supervisor’s assessments of employee compliance with the 

Hearing Conservation Program and their documentation of incidences of 
employees not wearing protectors as required. 

 
7. Identify the need for, and when necessary, retain qualified consultants for 

the following support services: 
 

a) Evaluation of employee noise exposures 
 

b) Noise control 
 

c) Assessment of hearing protective equipment relative to employee 
noise exposure 



 
Page 4 of 8 

d) Training for Administration, Managers, and Supervisors 
 

e) Coordination of a periodic re-evaluation to determine noise 
exposures in the workplace 

 
8. Maintain copies of employee medical records. 

 
C. Department Managers/Supervisors 
 

1. Monitor subordinate program compliance to ensure proper personal 
protective equipment is always used when needed. 

 
2. Document incidences of employees not wearing hearing protective 

equipment as required. 
 

3. Ensure annual audiometric assessment for those employees exposed to 
noise in excess of 85 dBA TWA. 

 
D. Employees 
 

1. Comply with the requirements specified in California Code of Regulations, 
Title 8 and Agency policies and procedures. 

 
E. Occupational Hearing Consultant / Physician 
 

1. Provide the following services for the Hearing Conservation Program: 
 

a) Conduct annual hearing examinations.  See Title 8, CCR, Section 
5097(c)(3) for qualification requirements for person conducting the 
tests. 

 
(1) Medical review of employee audiometric testing results.  Each 

employee’s annual audiogram shall be compared to that 
employee’s baseline audiogram to determine if the audiogram is 
valid and if a standard threshold shift, as defined in Section 5097 
(d)(8), has occurred.  A properly trained technician may do this 
comparison. 

 
 (2) An Audiologist, Otolaryngologist or physician shall review 

problem audiograms and shall determine whether there is a 
need for further evaluation.   

 
b) Maintain original employee medical records. 
 
c) Evaluate the adequacy of hearing protector attenuation whenever 

employee noise exposures increase to the extent that the hearing 
protectors provided may no longer provide adequate attenuation.   

 



 
Page 5 of 8 

d) Determination of medical effectiveness of the program.  
Hearing Conservation Program 

Implementation and Assessment Checklist 
 

       YES  NO 
 

I. Administration/Department Managers/Risk Manager 
 

1.     Is the established policy and objectives  
   communicated to employees?    ____  ____ 
 
2.    Are responsibilities defined and authority assigned? ____  ____ 
 
3.     Is there one person clearly responsible for the  

   overall activities of the program?    ____  ____ 
 

4.   Are the lines of communication for safety and  
  health concerns clear and open?    ____  ____ 
 

II. Noise Hazard Assessment 
 

1.    Are there areas in the workplace where continuous  
                       noise levels exceed 85 dBA?    ____  ____ 

 
2.   Are periodic inspections conducted by qualified  
  staff?        ____  ____ 
 
3.   Are employees in high-risk areas given periodic  

   audiometric testing to ensure an effective hearing  
   protection system?      ____  ____ 
 

4.   Are employees encouraged to notify management  
  of infractions, and receive timely appropriate  
  responses?       ____  ____ 
 
5.    Are records maintained for the following: 
 

a)   Number of employees under surveillance? ____  ____ 
 
b)   Number of employee medical records  

  reviewed?      ____  ____ 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 6 of 8 

 
III. Hazard Correction and Control                                             YES               NO 
 

1.   Is appropriate hearing protection available to every  
  employee working in noisy areas?   ____  ____ 
  
2.   Have engineering controls been used to  
  reduce excessive noise levels?    ____  ____ 
 
3.   Are administrative controls including safety  

and health rules and safe work procedures  
established and implemented?    ____  ____ 
 

4.   Are noise levels being monitored and  
measured using a sound level meter and an  
octave band analyzer, and are records kept?    ____  ____ 
 

5.   Have work areas where noise levels make  
voice communication between employees  
difficult been identified and posted?   ____  ____ 
 

6.   Is there an ongoing equipment maintenance  
  program?       ____  ____ 
 

IV. Safety and Health Training 
 

1.   Is there an ongoing training program?   ____  ____ 
 
2.   Does the training cover the following topics: 

 
a)   Safe levels of noise exposure?   ____  ____ 
 
b)   Effects of noise on employee health?  ____  ____ 

 
c)   Purpose of hearing protectors; the  

    advantages and disadvantages and  
    attenuation of various types of devices?  ____  ____ 
 

d)   Instruction on the selection, use, care,  
  limits and maintenance of hearing protective  
  equipment?      ____  ____ 
 
e)   Purpose of audiometric testing and an   
  explanation of test procedures?   ____  ____ 
 

 
 



 
Page 7 of 8 

 
                                                                                                             YES               NO
 
 

f)    Information on laws and/or regulations   
  relative to safety concerns?             ____  ____ 
 

3.   Is training reinforced annually, or more frequently  
           when necessary?                                   ____  ____ 

                                                                                                             
4.   Are new employees trained in hearing  
  protection procedures as part of their orientation? ____  ____ 
   
5.   Are trainers qualified?     ____  ____ 
 
6.   Is there a procedure to evaluate the  

  effectiveness of the training program?   ____  ____ 
 
V. REFERENCES:  
 
 CCR, Title 8, GISO, Sections 5095 through 5100. 
 National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 8 of 8 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
 

PERMISSIBLE NOISE EXPOSURE1 
 

Permitted Duration Per Workday 
 

Sound Level (dBA) Hours – Minutes (Cn)     Hours (Tn) 
90 8-0 8.00 
91 6-58 6.96 
92 6-4 6.06 
93 5-17 5.28 
94 4-36 4.60 
95 4-0 4.00 
96 3-29 3.48 
97 3-2 3.03 
98 2-38 2.63 
99 2-18 2.30 
100 2-0 2.00 
101 1-44 1.73 
102 1-31 1.52 
103 1-19 1.32 
104 1-9 1.15 
105 1-0 1.00 
106 0-52 0.86 
107 0-46 0.76 
108 0-40 0.66 
109 0-34 0.56 
110 0-30 0.50 
111 0-26 0.43 
112 0-23 0.38 
113 0-20 0.33 
114 0-17 0.28 
115 0-15 0.25 

 
1 When the daily noise exposure is composed of two or more periods of noise exposure of 
different levels, their combined effect should be considered, rather than the individual 
effect of each.  If the sum of the following fractions: C1/T1 + C2/T2… Cn/Tn exceeds unity, 
then, the mixed exposure should be considered to exceed the limit value.  Cn indicates the 
total time of exposure at a specified noise level, and Tn indicates the total time of exposure 
permitted at that level.   



CALIFORNIA JPIA 
Policy Library 
 
 

 
Page 1 of 8 

Important:
This reference material is compiled 
for use by Authority members in the 
preparation, development and 
implementation of risk management 
policies, programs, and procedures.  
Since this document is designed to 
meet the needs of the general pool 
membership, please be aware that 
the present form is best considered 
a template for use by your agency in 
drafting specific documents.  This 
template should not be construed as 
legal advice.  Accordingly, any 
resulting policy, program or 
procedure that results from this 
template should always be reviewed 
and approved as is customary by 
your agency, including the purview 
of any necessary legal and/or 
governing body authorities to ensure 
the policy being developed meets 
the unique needs of your jurisdiction.  
Policies should be implemented after 
proper training has been provided. 
 
This reference material is to be 
considered proprietary and 
confidential and may not be 
disclosed to any person without the 
express, prior permission of the 
California JPIA.  This reference 
material is for Authority member use 
only and does not apply in any 
criminal or civil proceeding.  This 
reference material should not be 
construed as a creation of a higher 
legal standard of safety or care in an 
evidentiary sense with respect to 
third party claims. 

Policy Name:  
Hearing Conservation Program 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 2 of 8 

 
HEARING CONSERVATION PROGRAM 

 
 
I. PURPOSE  
 

Title 8, California Code of Regulations, General Industry Safety Orders, Sections 
5095-5100, mandate the implementation of a continuing, effective hearing 
conservation program whenever employee noise exposures equal or exceed an 8-
hour time weighted average (TWA) of 85 decibels measured on the A-scale (slow 
response) or, equivalently, a dose of fifty percent.   This program contains 
provisions for appropriate hearing protection, annual audiometric tests, annual 
employee training and periodic environmental assessments. 

 
II. POLICY 
 

 All departments are responsible for protecting their employees from exposure to 
excessive noise. This policy and procedure defines responsibilities for the 
prevention of occupationally induced hearing loss in Agency employees. 

 
III. DEFINITIONS 
 
 Decibel (dB) - Unit of measurement of sound level 
 
 Decibels-A-Weighted (dBA) - a unit of measurement of sound level corrected to the 

A-weighted scale, as defined in ANSI S1.4-1971 (R1 1976), using a reference level 
of 20 micropascals (0.00002 Newton per square meter) 

 
 Audiogram – A chart, graph, or table resulting from an audiometric test showing an 

individual’s hearing threshold levels as a function of frequency 
 
 Otolaryngologist – A physician specializing in diagnosis and treatment of disorders 

of the ear, nose and throat 
 
IV. RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A. Administration / Department Managers 
 

1. Implement a noise exposure control program within their area of 
jurisdiction and budget resources to fund such a program. The program 
shall include providing two types of hearing protectors for employees to 
choose from and annual refresher training on proper use. 

 
2. Assign responsibility for implementation to appropriate 

Administration/Department staff. 
 

3. Develop written Standard Operating Procedures to ensure that 



 
Page 3 of 8 

employees are protected against the effects of noise exposure when 
sound levels exceed those shown in Appendix A when measured on the 
A-scale of a standard sound level meter at slow response. 

 
B. Risk Manager 

 
1. Implement a hearing conservation program with Administration, Manager, 

and Supervisor assistance. 
 
2. Coordinate annual training of respective department employees as 

required by CAL/OSHA standards. 
 

3. Assist supervisors in the procurement, issuance, and proper utilization of 
hearing protective equipment.  The National Institute for Occupational 
Safety and Health (NIOSH) Compendium of Hearing Protection Devices 
can be downloaded from http://www.cdc.gov/niosh/95-105.html. 

 
4. Establish and maintain an audiometric testing program by making 

audiometric testing available to all employees whose exposures equal or 
exceed the action level. 

 
5. Assist supervisors with scheduling routine employee audiometric 

examinations.  Each employee exposed at or above the action level is to 
receive an annual audiogram after obtaining the initial baseline. 

 
a) If the annual audiogram shows that an employee has suffered a 

standard threshold shift, the employer may obtain a retest within 30 
days and consider the results of the retest as the annual audiogram.  

 
b) If comparison of the annual audiogram to the baseline audiogram 

indicates a standard threshold shift as defined by Section 5097 
(d)(8), the employee shall be informed of this fact, in writing, within 
21 days of the determination.  

 
6. Monitor supervisor’s assessments of employee compliance with the 

Hearing Conservation Program and their documentation of incidences of 
employees not wearing protectors as required. 

 
7. Identify the need for, and when necessary, retain qualified consultants for 

the following support services: 
 

a) Evaluation of employee noise exposures 
 

b) Noise control 
 

c) Assessment of hearing protective equipment relative to employee 
noise exposure 



 
Page 4 of 8 

d) Training for Administration, Managers, and Supervisors 
 

e) Coordination of a periodic re-evaluation to determine noise 
exposures in the workplace 

 
8. Maintain copies of employee medical records. 

 
C. Department Managers/Supervisors 
 

1. Monitor subordinate program compliance to ensure proper personal 
protective equipment is always used when needed. 

 
2. Document incidences of employees not wearing hearing protective 

equipment as required. 
 

3. Ensure annual audiometric assessment for those employees exposed to 
noise in excess of 85 dBA TWA. 

 
D. Employees 
 

1. Comply with the requirements specified in California Code of Regulations, 
Title 8 and Agency policies and procedures. 

 
E. Occupational Hearing Consultant / Physician 
 

1. Provide the following services for the Hearing Conservation Program: 
 

a) Conduct annual hearing examinations.  See Title 8, CCR, Section 
5097(c)(3) for qualification requirements for person conducting the 
tests. 

 
(1) Medical review of employee audiometric testing results.  Each 

employee’s annual audiogram shall be compared to that 
employee’s baseline audiogram to determine if the audiogram is 
valid and if a standard threshold shift, as defined in Section 5097 
(d)(8), has occurred.  A properly trained technician may do this 
comparison. 

 
 (2) An Audiologist, Otolaryngologist or physician shall review 

problem audiograms and shall determine whether there is a 
need for further evaluation.   

 
b) Maintain original employee medical records. 
 
c) Evaluate the adequacy of hearing protector attenuation whenever 

employee noise exposures increase to the extent that the hearing 
protectors provided may no longer provide adequate attenuation.   

 



 
Page 5 of 8 

d) Determination of medical effectiveness of the program.  
Hearing Conservation Program 

Implementation and Assessment Checklist 
 

       YES  NO 
 

I. Administration/Department Managers/Risk Manager 
 

1.     Is the established policy and objectives  
   communicated to employees?    ____  ____ 
 
2.    Are responsibilities defined and authority assigned? ____  ____ 
 
3.     Is there one person clearly responsible for the  

   overall activities of the program?    ____  ____ 
 

4.   Are the lines of communication for safety and  
  health concerns clear and open?    ____  ____ 
 

II. Noise Hazard Assessment 
 

1.    Are there areas in the workplace where continuous  
                       noise levels exceed 85 dBA?    ____  ____ 

 
2.   Are periodic inspections conducted by qualified  
  staff?        ____  ____ 
 
3.   Are employees in high-risk areas given periodic  

   audiometric testing to ensure an effective hearing  
   protection system?      ____  ____ 
 

4.   Are employees encouraged to notify management  
  of infractions, and receive timely appropriate  
  responses?       ____  ____ 
 
5.    Are records maintained for the following: 
 

a)   Number of employees under surveillance? ____  ____ 
 
b)   Number of employee medical records  

  reviewed?      ____  ____ 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 6 of 8 

 
III. Hazard Correction and Control                                             YES               NO 
 

1.   Is appropriate hearing protection available to every  
  employee working in noisy areas?   ____  ____ 
  
2.   Have engineering controls been used to  
  reduce excessive noise levels?    ____  ____ 
 
3.   Are administrative controls including safety  

and health rules and safe work procedures  
established and implemented?    ____  ____ 
 

4.   Are noise levels being monitored and  
measured using a sound level meter and an  
octave band analyzer, and are records kept?    ____  ____ 
 

5.   Have work areas where noise levels make  
voice communication between employees  
difficult been identified and posted?   ____  ____ 
 

6.   Is there an ongoing equipment maintenance  
  program?       ____  ____ 
 

IV. Safety and Health Training 
 

1.   Is there an ongoing training program?   ____  ____ 
 
2.   Does the training cover the following topics: 

 
a)   Safe levels of noise exposure?   ____  ____ 
 
b)   Effects of noise on employee health?  ____  ____ 

 
c)   Purpose of hearing protectors; the  

    advantages and disadvantages and  
    attenuation of various types of devices?  ____  ____ 
 

d)   Instruction on the selection, use, care,  
  limits and maintenance of hearing protective  
  equipment?      ____  ____ 
 
e)   Purpose of audiometric testing and an   
  explanation of test procedures?   ____  ____ 
 

 
 



 
Page 7 of 8 

 
                                                                                                             YES               NO
 
 

f)    Information on laws and/or regulations   
  relative to safety concerns?             ____  ____ 
 

3.   Is training reinforced annually, or more frequently  
           when necessary?                                   ____  ____ 

                                                                                                             
4.   Are new employees trained in hearing  
  protection procedures as part of their orientation? ____  ____ 
   
5.   Are trainers qualified?     ____  ____ 
 
6.   Is there a procedure to evaluate the  

  effectiveness of the training program?   ____  ____ 
 
V. REFERENCES:  
 
 CCR, Title 8, GISO, Sections 5095 through 5100. 
 National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 8 of 8 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
 

PERMISSIBLE NOISE EXPOSURE1 
 

Permitted Duration Per Workday 
 

Sound Level (dBA) Hours – Minutes (Cn)     Hours (Tn) 
90 8-0 8.00 
91 6-58 6.96 
92 6-4 6.06 
93 5-17 5.28 
94 4-36 4.60 
95 4-0 4.00 
96 3-29 3.48 
97 3-2 3.03 
98 2-38 2.63 
99 2-18 2.30 
100 2-0 2.00 
101 1-44 1.73 
102 1-31 1.52 
103 1-19 1.32 
104 1-9 1.15 
105 1-0 1.00 
106 0-52 0.86 
107 0-46 0.76 
108 0-40 0.66 
109 0-34 0.56 
110 0-30 0.50 
111 0-26 0.43 
112 0-23 0.38 
113 0-20 0.33 
114 0-17 0.28 
115 0-15 0.25 

 
1 When the daily noise exposure is composed of two or more periods of noise exposure of 
different levels, their combined effect should be considered, rather than the individual 
effect of each.  If the sum of the following fractions: C1/T1 + C2/T2… Cn/Tn exceeds unity, 
then, the mixed exposure should be considered to exceed the limit value.  Cn indicates the 
total time of exposure at a specified noise level, and Tn indicates the total time of exposure 
permitted at that level.   



CALIFORNIA JPIA 
Policy Library 
 
 

Important:
This reference material is compiled 
for use by Authority members in the 
preparation, development and 
implementation of risk management 
policies, programs, and procedures.  
Since this document is designed to 
meet the needs of the general pool 
membership, please be aware that 
the present form is best considered 
a template for use by your agency in 
drafting specific documents.  This 
template should not be construed as 
legal advice.  Accordingly, any 
resulting policy, program or 
procedure that results from this 
template should always be reviewed 
and approved as is customary by 
your agency, including the purview 
of any necessary legal and/or 
governing body authorities to ensure 
the policy being developed meets 
the unique needs of your jurisdiction.  
Policies should be implemented after 
proper training has been provided. 
 
This reference material is to be 
considered proprietary and 
confidential and may not be 
disclosed to any person without the 
express, prior permission of the 
California JPIA.  This reference 
material is for Authority member use 
only and does not apply in any 
criminal or civil proceeding.  This 
reference material should not be 
construed as a creation of a higher 
legal standard of safety or care in an 
evidentiary sense with respect to 
third party claims. 

Policy Name:  
Fire/Smoke Procedures 



FIRE/SMOKE PROCEDURES 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
I. PURPOSE 

 
The purpose is to establish procedures to be followed in case of fire or smoke, 
methods for fire prevention, and operating procedures for fire extinguishers. 

 
It is the responsibility of all employees to familiarize themselves with the floor 
plan and emergency evacuation maps located throughout agency facilities. 
 

II. FOR FIRE INSIDE YOUR OFFICE 
 

A. Call Security (extension ____________________) 
 

1. Security will be responsible for contacting the Fire Department. 
 
2. If unable to contact security, refer to B. 

 
B. Call the Fire Department (911). 
 

1. Give your name and state that you are with the___________________ 
(agency name). 

 
2. Give your address (_______________________________________). 

 
3. Give your location (floor number/Division/Section). 

 
C. Alert others in the building by pulling fire alarm trip switch. 
 
D. Attempt to extinguish fire with hose or extinguisher, only if fire is small and 

localized. 
 

E. If you cannot safely extinguish the fire: 
 

1. Evacuate the area; 
 
2. Close all doors and windows as you leave; and 

 
3. Follow evacuation procedures. 

 

2 



FIRE/SMOKE PROCEDURES 

III. FOR FIRE OUTSIDE YOUR OFFICE 
 

A. Notify the Fire Department. (Refer to II. A & B). 
 
B. If a door stands between you and the fire, feel the door – IF IT IS HOT – DO 

NOT OPEN IT! 
 

1. Call Security or the Fire Department again, and tell them your situation. 
 

2. Place material along the bottom of your door to keep out the smoke. 
 

3. RETREAT – Close as many doors between you and the fire as 
possible. 

 
4. If outside window is available, open it or break it and hang a light 

colored material out to attract attention. 
 

C. If the door is not hot – OPEN IT CAUTIOUSLY – stand behind the door and 
prepare to close it fast. 

 
D. Walk to the closest safe stairway or exit. 

 
1. DO NOT use elevators! 
 
2. Activate the fire alarm trip switch. 

 
3. Follow evacuation procedures. 

 
IV. PREVENTING FIRES 
 

A. Do not allow accumulation of trash or waste material. 
 
B. Throwing or storing trash, empty boxes or other packaging materials in the 

staircases or exits is NOT PERMITTED.  It is your main exit and could trap 
you in an emergency if full of flammable material. 

 
C. Do not empty ashtrays in wastepaper baskets that contain paper or other 

flammable material.  Do not throw cigarette butts into wastebaskets, 
dumpsters, or onto rugs. 

 
D. In the event a wastepaper basket catches fire and no water is immediately 

available, place another metal basket over it to smother the fire – then follow 
with water. 

 
E. Keep wastepaper baskets away from draperies. 

 

3 



FIRE/SMOKE PROCEDURES 

V. OPERATION OF FIRE EXTINGUISHER (instructions also located with 
extinguisher) 

 
A. Procedure 
 

1. Pull the safety pin (usually a twist-pull action). 
 

2. Aim nozzle, horn or hose at the base of the fire. 
 

3. Squeeze the trigger handle. 
 

4. Sweep slowly from side to side. 
 

B. NEVER rehang an extinguisher once it has been discharged (even if it is only 
used for a few seconds).  Have it recharged. 

 
C. ALWAYS maintain an area of three (3) feet clearance around ALL fire 

protection equipment. 
 

D. TYPES OF EXTINGUISHERS 
 

1. _________________(list location)– all fire extinguishers, except those 
located in_______________(list location), are pressurized water-type.  
Their range is 30 – 40 feet and the entire contents can be discharged 
in 60 seconds. 

 
Fire extinguishers in the _____________(list location) are dry 
chemical.  Their range is 10 feet and their contents can be discharged 
in 60 seconds. 

4 



 

CALIFORNIA JPIA 
POLICY LIBRARY 
  Important:

This reference material is compiled 
for use by Authority members in the 
preparation, development and 
implementation of risk management 
policies, programs, and procedures.  
Since this document is designed to 
meet the needs of the general pool 
membership, please be aware that 
the present form is best considered 
a template for use by your agency in 
drafting specific documents.  This 
template should not be construed as 
legal advice.  Accordingly, any 
resulting policy, program or 
procedure that results from this 
template should always be reviewed 
and approved as is customary by 
your agency, including the purview 
of any necessary legal and/or 
governing body authorities to ensure 
the policy being developed meets 
the unique needs of your jurisdiction.  
Policies should be implemented after 
proper training has been provided. 
 
This reference material is to be 
considered proprietary and 
confidential and may not be 
disclosed to any person without the 
express, prior permission of the 
California JPIA.  This reference 
material is for Authority member use 
only and does not apply in any 
criminal or civil proceeding.  This 
reference material should not be 
construed as a creation of a higher 
legal standard of safety or care in an 
evidentiary sense with respect to 
third party claims. 

Policy Name:  
Safety Hazard Inspection and Control 
 
 
 
  

1 



SAFETY HAZARD INSPECTION & CONTROL 
 
I.        POLICY STATEMENT

 
It is the policy of the ______________ (agency name) to require 
inspections to identify hazards and apply corrective actions in order to 
maintain a safe, healthful workplace. 

 
II. GENERAL INFORMATION

 
A. Department Heads are responsible for overseeing the 

implementation of the Safety Hazard Inspection and Control Policy. 
 

B. Supervisors are responsible for conducting, and when required, 
documenting safety hazard inspections of their immediate work 
areas and/or work sites.  This includes but is not limited to: 

1. Office Areas 
2. Workshops 
3. Vehicles 
4. Field Sites 
5. Daily Work Activities 

 
C. The four types of hazard inspections are Bi-monthly Area 

Inspections, Critical Items Inspections, Specific Inspections and 
Special Purpose Inspections as outlined below: 

 
1. Bi-Monthly Area Inspections - All supervisors will conduct 

and document a bi-monthly inspection of their work area. 
This includes, but is not limited to: 
a. Work Activities 
b. Electrical Hazards 
c. Emergency Equipment & Signs 
d. Housekeeping 
e. General Work Area 
f. Fire Hazards 
g. Fall Hazards 

 
Note: Special attention should be paid to acts that have caused 

injury in the past or have been known to cause problems. 
 
 

2 



SAFETY HAZARD INSPECTION & CONTROL 
 
 

2. Critical Items Inspection - This inspection is performed on 
personal protection safety equipment. Potential high-hazard 
tools, equipment, machinery, vehicles, and field sites shall 
also be inspected. There are two types of inspection 
required: 

 
a. A visual safety inspection utilizing a written guideline 

established by the Supervisor.  This inspection will be 
conducted, each time, before any task is to be 
performed. 

 
b. A periodic documented inspection. The frequency will 

be established by the Department Head. 
 

3. Specific Inspection - This inspection is performed and 
documented: 

 
a. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, 

or equipment are introduced that present a new 
occupational safety and health hazard. 

 
b. Whenever the ______________ (agency name) is 

made aware of a new or previously unrecognized 
hazard. 

 
c. Whenever the ______________ (agency name) is 

made aware of an unsafe work practice. 
 

4. Special Purpose Inspection - This inspection is 
performed by an outside expert often requiring specialized 
instruments or processes.  This includes but is not limited 
to: 

 
a. Air Quality Tests 
 
b. Noise Surveys 
 
c. Hazardous Materials Surveys 
 
d. Ergonomic Task Analysis 

 
Note:  The department head will initiate this type of  
   inspection in response to a hazard inspection. 

3 



SAFETY HAZARD INSPECTION & CONTROL 
 
 

III. PROCEDURE
 

A. All hazards will be recorded in a written hazard inspection report. 
Field Divisions can develop a hazard inspection report unique to 
their own operation using the provided example as a reference. 

 
B. Once a hazard has been recognized or identified, the Supervisor 

will evaluate the risk to determine the best control solution.  The 
four ways to control hazards are as follows: 

  
 

1. Elimination - the first choice should be to eliminate the 
hazard by substituting a safer substance, tool, or work 
method or by abating the hazard by repair or removal. 

 
2. Engineering Controls - if the hazard cannot be eliminated, 

or substituted, consideration should be given to 
engineering controls.  Examples of engineering controls 
include but are not limited to: 

 
a. The general design of a workplace 

 
   b.    Installation of additional lighting 

 
c. The use of automation or mechanical devices 
 
d. Use of screens to isolate hazardous light emissions 

 
e. The use of enclosures around a noise source 

 
3. Administrative Controls - Administrative controls lessen 

the risk to employees through the implementation of new 
management practices.  Examples include, but are not 
limited to: 

 
a. Improved hiring practices 

 
b. Training and retraining 

 
c. Reduction of exposure by job rotation 

4 



SAFETY HAZARD INSPECTION & CONTROL 
 

4. Personal Protective Equipment - the control option of last 
resort is personal protective equipment.  Only after the 
three previous control methods have been considered 
should the supervisor rely upon personal protective 
equipment to protect employees from a safety or health 
hazard.  Examples of personal protective equipment 
include but are not limited to: 

 
a. Respirators 

 
b. Face shields 

 
c. Full body harness 

 
d. Lanyards 

 
e. Tyvex suits 

 
 f.  Hard hats 

 
 g.  Gloves 

 
 h.  Ear plugs 

 
 i.  Safety vests 

 
 j.  Safety shoes 

 
 k.  Safety glasses 

 
C. Employees shall be informed of the hazard and interim protective 

measures taken until the hazard is corrected. Hazards that cannot be 
resolved will be referred to the next supervisory level. 

 
D. Hazards that cannot be resolved by the Department will be referred to 

the _______________ (position responsible). 
 

E. A copy of the hazard inspection report will be retained by the 
department for a minimum of three (3) years. 

 
Note: Safety evaluations may also be conducted when deemed 

necessary by the _________ (agency department), California 
Highway Patrol, or Cal/OSHA. 

 

5 



6 

SAFETY HAZARD INSPECTION & CONTROL 
 

IV. REFERENCES
 

CCR Title 8 GISO Section 3203(a)(4) 
 



EXAMPLE 

7 

OFFICE HAZARD INSPECTION 

 

 
HAZARD 

Sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

N
ee

ds
 A

tte
nt

io
n 

 
Comments 

 

 
FIRE HAZARD CHECKLIST: 

   

1 Fire extinguishers are mounted and are kept clear at all times.    

2 Combustibles properly stored in work areas.    

 

 
ELECTRICAL HAZARD CHECKLIST: 

   

1 

 

Electrical machinery in good condition, properly grounded, and turned off when not in use.    

 2 

 

Electric cords and phone cables secured to prevent tripping hazards.    

3 

 

Electrical outlets and cover plates in good condition.    

4 

 

Electrical switches and cover plates in good condition.    

5 

 

Lighting fixtures in good condition and working.    

6 

 

Conduit properly attached to all supports and tightly connected to junction and outlet 

boxes. (Visual Inspection Only) 

   

 

 
HOUSEKEEPING HAZARD CHECKLIST: 

   

1 

 

Aisles and hallways are kept unblocked, well lighted, and unlocked during work hours.    



EXAMPLE 

8 

OFFICE HAZARD INSPECTION 

 

 
HAZARD 

Sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

N
ee

ds
 A

tte
nt

io
n 

 
Comments 

 

 
HOUSEKEEPING HAZARD CHECKLIST: 

   

2 Workplaces are kept free of debris, floor storage and electrical cords.    

 

 
GENERAL WORK AREA CHECKLIST: 

   

1 

 

Flooring in good condition (no openings, cuts or folds).    

2 

 

Safety treads provided on all step stools and stepladders.    

3 

 

Office furniture, machines and bookshelves are secure for earthquakes.    

4 

 

Proper lifting techniques are used by employees to avoid overextension and strain when 

lifting and carrying loads. 

   

5 

 

The first aid kit is in a visible location and everyone knows where it is.    

6 

 

Emergency telephone numbers are posted.    

7 

 

Administrative and Safety Policy Procedures manuals have been explained to all 

employees and are available for review. 

   

8 

 

The material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) book is available and up to date for all employees 

to review. 

 

   



EXAMPLE 

9 

 
 

OFFICE HAZARD INSPECTION 

 

 
 

HAZARD 

 

Sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

N
ee

ds
 A

tte
nt

io
n 

 
 
 
Comments 

9 

 

File cabinets are anchored to prevent tipping and drawers are opened one at a time and 

closed when work is finished. 

   

10 

 

VDT workstations, background and screen lighting are compatible.    

11 

 

VDT screen positions, chairs, and keyboards are adjustable.    

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

 
ACTION/COMMENTS: 

 
 
 
________________________________________________________      ___________________________________ 
NAME                                                                                                           DATE 
 
 
________________________________________________________      ___________________________________ 
DIVISION HEAD                                                                                          DATE 

 



  

CALIFORNIA JPIA 
Policy Library 
 
 Important:

This reference material is compiled 
for use by Authority members in the 
preparation, development and 
implementation of risk management 
policies, programs, and procedures.  
Since this document is designed to 
meet the needs of the general pool 
membership, please be aware that 
the present form is best considered 
a template for use by your agency in 
drafting specific documents.  This 
template should not be construed as 
legal advice.  Accordingly, any 
resulting policy, program or 
procedure that results from this 
template should always be reviewed 
and approved as is customary by 
your agency, including the purview 
of any necessary legal and/or 
governing body authorities to ensure 
the policy being developed meets 
the unique needs of your jurisdiction.  
Policies should be implemented after 
proper training has been provided. 
 
This reference material is to be 
considered proprietary and 
confidential and may not be 
disclosed to any person without the 
express, prior permission of the 
California JPIA.  This reference 
material is for Authority member use 
only and does not apply in any 
criminal or civil proceeding.  This 
reference material should not be 
construed as a creation of a higher 
legal standard of safety or care in an 
evidentiary sense with respect to 
third party claims. 

Policy Name:  
Respirator Policy 
 
Policy Purpose: 
This policy provides guidelines for protecting 
employees who are exposed to air contaminants in the 
occupational setting. 
 
Replacing Document: 
None. 
   
To Whom Does The Policy Apply: 
This policy applies to all agencies and provides specific 
procedures when respirators are necessary to protect 
the health of employees. 
  
 
 
Note: 
The Authority has additional resources that may be 
helpful in the development and training of policies, 
programs and procedures. 
 
1. Training Workshops: 

Respirator Certification 
 

2. Video Resources: 
None 
 

3. Other Resources: 
None 

 
 
 
  



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 1 of 34 Respirator Policy 

RESPIRATORY PROTECTION PROGRAM 
 
 
I. PURPOSE 
 

This policy has been developed to ensure that employees are adequately 
protected from air contaminants and other respiratory hazards, including gas and 
vapor contaminants, airborne particulate matter, oxygen deficiency, or any 
combination of the above while in occupational settings. 
 
While the proper respirator may offer suitable protection against the above 
hazards, a respirator must not be considered the first choice for offering 
protection.  The primary method for controlling exposure to respiratory hazards in 
the workplace must be through controls such as ventilation, enclosure of an 
operation, or substitution with less toxic materials.   
 
However, when employees may be exposed above recognized exposure limits, 
respirators must be used if controls are not feasible, or controls alone cannot 
reduce exposures to acceptable levels, or when respirators are used as an 
interim measure while controls are in the process of being implemented. 
 
This policy meets the requirements of the State of California’s Division of 
Occupational Safety and Health CAL OSHA Title 8, Section 5144.  It also serves 
to establish and implement a written respiratory protection program with specific 
procedures when respirators are necessary to protect the health of city 
employees. 

 
II. SCOPE 
 

This policy covers respirator use where respirators are being worn to protect 
employees from exposure to air contaminants above an exposure limit, also 
known as the Permissible Exposure Limit (PEL) by CAL-OSHA, or are otherwise 
necessary to protect employee health.  This policy also applies to voluntary use 
of respirators by employees for comfort or other reasons. 

 
III. ORGANIZATIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A. Respiratory Program Administrator 
The Risk/Safety Manager has been designated as the Respiratory 
Protection Program Administrator and, as such, is responsible for: 

 
1. Propose modifications, when necessary to insure the protection of 

employees and/or to meet new regulations. 
 
2. Recommend for management approval and enforce, if necessary, 

the Respiratory Protection Program.  
 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 2 of 34 Respirator Policy 

3. Coordinate with city divisions in establishing a monitoring program 
to survey those areas in which respirators are currently in use 
where exposures may occur above contaminant action levels. 

   
B. Division Manager 
 

1. Hire employees, for those job classifications requiring the use of 
respirators, who are medically capable of wearing a respirator as 
determined by the consulting physician.   

 
2. Maintain an accurate list of medically approved employees and the 

equipment for which they are medically approved.  A master copy 
of these lists shall be maintained in the offices of both the 
Respiratory Program Administrator and the Human Resource 
Director. 

 
3. Be responsible for determining which job classifications shall wear 

a respirator. 
 
4. Arrange with the Human Resources Director for all employees who 

wear respirators to be medically evaluated and fitted with the 
appropriate respirator. 

 
5. Budget for and provide proper respirators. 

 
6. Coordinate respirator training for all division employees who wear 

respirators. 
 

7. Supervise and enforce proper procedures for respirators regarding 
usage, inspection, maintenance and storage. 

 
8. Consult with respirator users periodically to determine the 

effectiveness of the respirators.  
 

9. Insure that employees are not exposed to contaminants above the 
regulated limit.  When contaminants and/or contaminant levels are 
unknown, the supervisor should consult the Respiratory Program 
Administrator for air sampling. Under emergency conditions, the 
supervisor shall determine the appropriate protection measures 
based upon advice of the Respiratory Program Administrator.  

 
10. Obtain assistance from the Respiratory Program Administrator 

when there is a change of process or material usage.  
 

11. Review respirator use to ensure that respirators are properly worn, 
maintained, and stored. These reviews shall be documented and 
performed quarterly. 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 3 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
12. Authorize workplace modifications when possible, so that workers 

are not exposed to airborne contaminants above the PEL. 
 

13. Store and maintain respirator fit test, training and maintenance 
records for at least 30 years. 

 
C. Employees 

 
1. Wear assigned respirator where hazardous conditions may exist or 

when directed by the division manager. 
 

2. Use the respirator in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
instructions and the training received. 

 
3. Participate in training and medical evaluation programs. 

 
4. Maintain assigned respirator(s). This includes cleaning, inspecting, 

storing and making sure the respirator is kept in good working 
order.   

 
5. Notify supervisor when replacement is needed.  

 
6. Perform a positive and negative fit check before each use of the 

respirator.  
 

7. Inform supervisor immediately of any change in medical status that 
may affect respirator use.  

 
8. Notify supervisor of any work situation where hazardous conditions 

may exist, but have not yet been identified.  
 

D. Consulting Physician 
 

1. Perform evaluations for specific employee classifications to assess 
their health status and determine whether their health will be 
adversely affected by respirator usage. 

 
2. Prepare written authorization for all employees deemed medically 

authorized to wear a respirator.  
 

3. Prepare and maintain original employee medical records.  
 

IV. WORKPLACE MONITORING 
 

A. The Respiratory Program Administrator shall coordinate workplace 
monitoring when requested by employees, supervisors or the division 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 4 of 34 Respirator Policy 

manager, to ensure that employees are properly protected from 
respiratory hazards. 

 
Note: Employees should always report all accidents and unsafe 

conditions to their supervisor or division manager first. 
 

B. Monitoring will be conducted wherever it is reasonable to expect that 
employees may be exposed to concentrations of airborne contaminants in 
excess of the PEL.  

 
In addition, the Respiratory Program Administrator will coordinate with 
each division to provide CAL-OSHA required monitoring for specific 
hazards, such as asbestos, where employee exposure may be expected 
to exceed the PEL. 

 
During the monitoring process, the Respiratory Program Administrator will 
provide the following: 

 
1. Identify substances that cause, or may cause, employee exposure 

above the PEL.  
 

2. Recommend feasible engineering controls that may be provided to 
reduce or eliminate the exposure, if necessary. 

 
3. An estimated average and potential maximum exposure 

concentration on a time-weighted average (TWA) basis, if 
appropriate, that can be expected for normal operation.  

 
4. Recommend appropriate respirators and other required personal 

protective equipment.  
 

5. Perform or have performed periodic workplace air monitoring. 
 

6. Provide results of such monitoring to supervisors. 
 

7. Provide results to affected employees. 
 

V. WORKPLACE MODIFICATIONS/PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EOUIPMENT 
 

A. In order to protect employees and others from hazardous airborne 
contaminants, division managers shall, if possible, modify the workplace.  

 
B. Workers may not be exposed to airborne contaminants in excess of the 

PEL, as defined by CAL-OSHA.  The use of respirators to protect 
employees from contaminant exposures above the PEL is required when 
any one of the following conditions are met: 

 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 5 of 34 Respirator Policy 

1. Engineering (ventilation) and administrative (reduced work shift) 
controls are not feasible; or 

 
2. The job is not routinely performed; or 
 
3. As an interim control method while engineering controls are being 

established. 
  

C. There are three areas of concern when discussing respirator usage: 
 

1. Above the PEL:  Respirator use is mandatory.  
 
2. Between the Action Level and the PEL:  Exposure above an 

established action level requires respiratory protection, but not an 
engineering control. 

 
3. Below the Action Level:  Respirator use is at the discretion of the 

supervisor.  
 
VI. MEDICAL EVALUATION 
 

A. Medical evaluation is part of medical surveillance, an element of the 
program that is designed to identify medical conditions that could lead to 
an occupational disease.  In addition, it assures compliance with federal 
and state regulations which require medical monitoring when employees 
use certain materials. The following specifies the minimum requirements 
for medical evaluation that must be implemented to determine the 
employee's ability to use a respirator.  

 
1. A medical evaluation must be given to determine the employee's 

ability to use a respirator before the employee is fit tested or 
required to use the respirator in the workplace.  Medical evaluations 
may be discontinued when the employee is no longer required to 
use a respirator. 

 
2. The consulting physician shall perform a medical evaluation using a 

medical questionnaire or an initial medical examination that obtains 
the same information as the medical questionnaire.  The medical 
evaluation shall obtain the information requested by the 
questionnaire in Sections 1 and 2, Part A of Appendix E.  

 
3. A follow-up medical examination shall be provided for any 

employee who gives a positive response to any question among 
questions 1 through 8 in Section 2, Part A of Appendix E, or whose 
initial medical examination demonstrates the need for a follow-up 
medical examination.   

 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 6 of 34 Respirator Policy 

The follow-up medical examination shall include any medical tests, 
consultations, or diagnostic procedures that the consulting 
physician deems necessary to make a final determination.  

 
B. The medical questionnaire and examinations shall be administered 

confidentially during the employee's normal working hours or at a time and 
place convenient to the employee. The medical questionnaire shall be 
administered in a manner that ensures that the employee understands its 
content.  The consulting physician shall provide the employee with an 
opportunity to discuss the questionnaire and examination results.  

 
C. The following information must be provided to the consulting physician 

before making a recommendation concerning an employee's ability to use 
a respirator:  

 
1. The type and weight of the respirator to be used by the employee;  

 
2. The duration and frequency of respirator use, including use for 

rescue and escape;  
 

3. The expected physical work effort;  
 

4. Additional protective clothing and equipment to be worn; and  
 

5. Temperature and humidity extremes that may be encountered.  
 

D. Any supplemental information provided previously to the consulting 
physician regarding an employee need not be provided for a subsequent 
medical evaluation if the information and the consulting physician remain 
the same.  

 
Note: Any change in consulting physicians must ensure that this 
information is retained, either by providing the documents directly to the 
consulting physician or having the documents transferred.  There is no 
requirement to reevaluate solely because a new consulting physician.  

 
E. In determining the employee's ability to use a respirator, the employer 

shall obtain a written recommendation regarding the employee's ability to 
use the respirator from the consulting physician.  The recommendation 
shall provide only the following information:  

 
1. Any limitations on respirator use related to the medical condition of 

the employee, or relating to the workplace conditions in which the 
respirator will be used, including whether or not the employee is 
medically able to use the respirator;  

 
2. The need, if any, for follow-up medical evaluations; and  



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 7 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
3. A statement that the consulting physician has provided the 

employee with a copy of the physician’s written recommendation.  
 

F. If the respirator is a negative pressure respirator and the consulting 
physician finds a medical condition that may place the employee's health 
at increased risk if the respirator is used, a powered air-purifying respirator 
(PAPR) shall be provided if the consulting physician’s medical evaluation 
finds that the employee can use such a respirator.   
 
If a subsequent medical evaluation finds that the employee is medically 
able to use a negative pressure respirator, then a PAPR is no longer 
necessary.  

 
G. At a minimum, the city shall provide additional medical evaluations that 

comply with the requirements of this section if:  
 

1. An employee reports medical signs or symptoms that are related to 
ability to use a respirator;  

 
2. The consulting physician or the Respiratory Program Administrator 

informs the supervisor that an employee needs to be reevaluated;  
 

3. Information from the Respiratory Protection Program, including 
observations made during fit testing and program evaluation, 
indicates a need for employee reevaluation; or  

 
4. A change occurs in workplace conditions, e.g., physical work effort, 

protective clothing, or temperature, that may result in a substantial 
increase in the physiological burden placed on an employee.  

 
VII. RESPIRATOR SELECTION 
 

Only National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) approved 
respirators used in accordance with their certifications shall be chosen for use.  
The selection of the respirator is dependent on the airborne contaminant present, 
the operation being performed, comfort and the ease of obtaining a proper 
individual fit.  The useful life of each respirator will vary depending on the job 
duties, concentration of contaminant and the actual time in use.  Each type of 
respirator will have some imitations.  Refer to the respirator instructions and 
approvals for the specific limitations.  Air purifying respirators (half mask, full-face 
cartridge) must only be used in environments with at least 19.5% oxygen. 
 
Prior to any respirator being purchased or distributed for use, a Respiratory 
Selection Worksheet must be completed.  This is to ensure that all factors 
regarding respirator use are considered, and the most appropriate respiratory 
protective equipment is selected.  Respirator selection can be determined either 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 8 of 34 Respirator Policy 

by job classification or activity. 
 
Employees shall be allowed to select from a variety of approved respirators 
having different styles and materials to afford the best fit and comfort of use.  The 
City shall supply respirators and required accessories at no cost to the employee. 
 
At no time shall and air purifying respirator be approved for use in an atmosphere 
containing les than 19.5% oxygen, more than 10 times the Permissible Exposure 
Limit or more than the manufactures’ use limitation or more than 50% of the 
Immediately Dangerous to Life or Health (IDLH) level. 
 
At no time shall a loose fitting air supplied respirator be approved for use in an 
atmosphere containing les than 19.5% oxygen, more than the manufactures’ use 
limitation or more than 50% of the Immediately Dangerous to Life or Health 
(IDLH) level. 
 
At no time shall a tight-fitting air supplied respirator be approved for use in an 
atmosphere containing les than 19.5% oxygen, more than the manufactures’ use 
limitation or more than 50% of the Immediately Dangerous to Life or Health 
(IDLH) level. 
 
Respirators for regular use will be available through the employee’s supervisor.  
Supervisors will distribute the respirators to certified (trained and medically fit) 
employees as needed. 
 

VIII. VOLUNTARY USE OF RESPIRATORS  
 

Employees who voluntarily choose to wear a disposable dust mask when a 
disposable dust mask is not required may do so provided that it is determined 
that such disposable dust mask use will not in itself create a hazard.  The training 
and fit-testing requirements will not apply in this case.  However, the employee’s 
supervisor must ensure that employees are given a copy of Appendix C of this 
policy; 
 

IX. RESPIRATOR INSPECTION 
 
A. Program participants are to inspect assigned respirators: 
 

1. Before and after each use. 
 
2. During the cleaning process. 

 
B. Respirators that are maintained for emergency use shall be inspected 

monthly with a written record or tag attached to the respirator or storage 
cabinet.  The inspection record shall include the inspector’s identification, 
the date, respirator condition and respirator identification. 

 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 9 of 34 Respirator Policy 

It should be noted that respirators used on a scheduled basis shall be 
inspected before each use and shall have a sign stating that the respirator 
is not being maintained for emergency use. 

 
C. Before each use the employee should inspect disposable filter/cartridge 

type respirators for the following:  
 

1. All valves, outside and inside, to be sure that the valve is not folded 
onto its self, cracked, or missing. 

 
2. The lugs, which are the buckles that hold the straps on, for cracks 

to prevent the straps from snapping off. 
 

3. The face cup area for pliability. 
 

4. Proper cleaning after its previous use. 
 

D. Emergency respirators shall be inspected monthly for:  
 

1. General condition of mask. 
 

2. Condition of valves, straps, air hose, hose clamps and gaskets. 
 

3. Presence and condition of filter elements. 
 

4. Condition of air cylinder and backpack components. 
 

5. Condition of gauges and air pressure of tank. 
 

6. Alarm tests. 
 
X. RESPIRATOR MAINTENANCE 
 

A. No maintenance is required for disposable respirators. The respirator 
should be discarded if:  

 
1. It becomes difficult to breathe through the respirator. 
 
2. The straps become stretched to the point that a good face seal 

cannot be obtained. 
 
3. Wearer is able to smell the contaminant while wearing the 

respirator. 
 
4. Any non-replaceable part of the respirator becomes damaged. 

 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 10 of 34 Respirator Policy 

B. Cleaning of non-disposable respirators and SCBA’s should include:  
 

1. Cleaning after each use. 
 

2. Removal of filters and straps. 
 

3. Washing in mild soap solution. 
 

a. Hand-washing with soft brush. 
 
b. Thoroughly rinsing off soap. 
 
c. Immersing in sanitizing solution for at least 2 minutes. 

 
4. Rinsing thoroughly with clean warm water. 

 
5. Air drying, not exceeding 125 degrees Fahrenheit. 

 
C. If parts of a non-disposable type respirator are either worn or deteriorated:  

 
1. Only qualified personnel shall perform repairs. 
 
2. No interchange of parts shall be made between respirators made 

by different manufacturers. 
 

3. Only repair facilities certified by the manufacturer shall repair 
breathing air regulators. 

 
XI. RESPIRATOR FIT TESTS 
 

A. Two types of fit tests are required for respirator wearers.  A preliminary fit 
test must be conducted each time the respirator is donned. A qualitative fit 
test must be conducted when the respirator is first given to the employee, 
and annually thereafter.  

 
B. A preliminary fit test must be conducted by the employee each time the 

respirator is donned.  This test must be performed using both techniques 
described below:  

 
1. Fit Check Test 
 

a. With the respirator on, cover the cartridges. 
 
b. Inhale through mouth and hold 10 seconds.  The mask 

should slightly collapse and a vacuum should hold. 
 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 11 of 34 Respirator Policy 

c. If vacuum does not hold, readjust the mask until able to 
perform the negative pressure test successfully. 

 
2. Positive Pressure Test 

 
a. After donning the respirator, cover the front of the respirator 

with both hands, taking care not to disturb the position of the 
respirator and making sure the exhalation valve is covered. 

 
b. Exhale gently.  If any leakage is detected from the seal of 

the respirator, adjust the position of the respirator and the 
tension of the straps.  

 
c. Retest the seal.  Repeat this procedure until a good fit is 

achieved.  
 

C. A qualitative respirator fit test shall be used to determine the ability of each 
individual respirator wearer to obtain a satisfactory fit with a negative-
pressure respirator.  Qualitative fit tests shall be conducted annually, 
unless the respirator is used to protect a worker from asbestos or lead.  In 
such case, the qualitative fit test must be conducted every six (6) months.  

 
D. Qualitative fit testing shall be conducted by a qualified person annually for 

positive and negative pressure respirators.  
 
Fit testing shall be conducted in accordance with the current Cal-OSHA 
approved protocol as identified in Appendix B. 

 
 

XII. RESPIRATOR TRAINING REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Proper respirator use can only be assured by carefully training both 
supervisors and workers in selection, use, care and maintenance. 
Refresher training shall be performed annually. 

 
B. As part of the worker and supervisor training, a qualitative fit test must be 

performed.  A supervisor or a properly trained individual will administer the 
fit tests.  Fit test training shall include: 

 
1. An opportunity to handle the respirator. 
 
2. Proper fitting, including demonstrations and practice in wearing, 

adjusting and determining the fit of the respirator. 
 
3. Test of facepiece seal on user’s face. 
 
4. A familiarization period of wear in normal air. 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 12 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
5. Wearing the respirator in a test atmosphere. 

 
C. Training of supervisors and workers shall include the following: 

 
1. Discussion of engineering (i.e. ventilation) and administrative 

controls (i.e. limiting exposure period) in use and why respirators 
are also needed. 

 
2. Explanation of the nature of the respiratory hazard and what 

happens if the respirator is not used properly. 
 
3. Explanation of why a particular type of respirator has been 

selected. 
 
4. Discussion of how to recognize and handle emergencies. 
 
5. Discussion of the respirator’s capabilities and limitations. 
 
6. Instruction, training and actual use of the respirator. 

 
7. Care, maintenance and inspection. 

 
8. Other special training, as needed. 

 
XIII. ADDITIONAL GUIDELINES 
 

A. All employees that must wear a tight fitting respirator must be free of facial 
hair.  Each division will determine which employees will be required to 
wear respirators. 

 
B. Powered air-purifying respirators (PAPR) will be provided in lieu of a 

negative pressure respirator whenever an employee was not approved to 
wear a negative air pressure respirator by the consulting physician and 
when respiratory protection is required. 

 
C. The city will attempt to provide reasonable accommodation for employees 

who cannot use a respirator because of physical or medical conditions. 
This includes medical conditions, which prohibit the removal of facial hair 
making a face-to-mask seal difficult or impossible.  Such a condition would 
be determined after medical examination. 

 
D. Where respiratory protection issues are being evaluated, the division 

manager should consult the Respiratory Program Administrator to assist in 
the decision making process. 

 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 13 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
XIV. RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS 
 

To maintain medical surveillance requirements and control of the program, five 
sets of records shall be maintained of the following: 

 
A. Air Sampling Data 

 
This will be collected and maintained by the Respiratory Program 
Administrator indefinitely. 

 
B. Medical Surveillance 

 
The original records shall be maintained by the consulting physician and 
will be retained for at least 30 years beyond the date of employment. 

 
C. Respirator Care, Maintenance and Inspection Records for Emergency Use 

Respirators 
 

The division in which the respirator wearer works shall maintain these 
records.  The individual records will be retained for the life of each piece if 
equipment or three years, whichever is greater. 

 
D. Respirator Training and Fit Test Records 
 

These records are to be kept by the division in which the respirator wearer 
works and the Respiratory Program Administrator shall keep a copy.  The 
records shall be retained for at least 30 years beyond the date of 
employment. 

 
E. Employee Job Assignment Data 
 

All job assignments shall record the employee and assignments, and shall 
be maintained by the each division for at least 30 years beyond the date of 
employment. 
 

XV. REFERENCES 
 

CCR, Title 8, GISO 5141 

CCR, Title 8, GlSO 5144 

CCR, Title 8, GISO 5155 

CAL-OSHA Fact Sheet No. 22, No Facial Hair for Safe Respirator Use. 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 14 of 34 Respirator Policy 

APPENDIX A 
 
GENERAL RESPIRTORY INFORMATION AND PROTECTION FACTORS 
 
1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

A. Air-Purifying Respirators 
 

There are different types of air-purifying respirators (APR’s).  Each 
cleanses contaminated air as it passes through an air-purifying device, 
such as a filter, cartridge, or canister.  The respirator will not offer 
protection unless the proper air-purifying device made for specific air 
contaminants, such as gases, vapors, dusts, mists and fumes, is used.   
 
All APR’s provide no protection against oxygen deficiency or other 
atmospheres that are an immediate danger to life or health (IDLH).  In 
other words, no protection is provided to allow the wearer to escape if the 
respirator were to fail.  Air purifying devices used for protection against 
gases and vapors must be equipped with end-of-service-life indicator 
(ESLI).  Otherwise, a change schedule must be implemented to ensure 
continued effectiveness of the respirator.  Three types of air purifying 
respirators are: 

 
1. Dust Masks 
 

These are APRs with the facepiece serving as the filtering medium.  
They may or may not contain exhalation valves built into the 
facepiece. 

 
2. Full-Facepiece and Half-Mask Negative Pressure Respirators 
 

APR’s that use a variety of air-purifying devices to absorb, adsorb, 
or filter contaminants from the air.  A full-facepiece respirator 
provides protection from eye irritants and offers more protection 
from air contaminants than a half-mask respirator. 

 
3. Powered Air-Purifying Respirators 
 

APR’s that use a blower to force ambient air through an air-
purifying device, and then to the wearer's respirator facepiece, 
hood, or helmet.  This type is the most protective of the APR’s, 
because the positively pressurized respirator prevents inward 
leakage of contaminants into the facepiece, hood, or helmet. 

 
B. Atmosphere-Supplying Respirators 

 
Atmosphere-supplying respirators provide a supply of breathable air to the 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 15 of 34 Respirator Policy 

wearer from an uncontaminated source, independent of the ambient air.  
Respiratory protection standards require employers to provide workers 
who are wearing atmosphere-supplying respirators with breathing air of 
high purity.  The checklist in Appendix F should be used for this purpose.  
Two types of atmosphere-supplying respirators are: 

 
1. Air-line Respirators 

 
The air-line respirator supplies the wearer with breathable air 
through a hose from a compressor or compressed air cylinder.  
These respirators are equipped with half or full facepieces, hoods, 
helmets, or loose-fitting facepieces.  Air-line respirators may not be 
used in IDLH atmospheres.  Air-line respirators use one of three 
airflow control devices to regulate the airflow: 

 
a. Continuous flow: a constant but adjustable flow of air is 

delivered to the respirator that maintains a slight positive 
pressure inside the respirator and thus prevents inward 
leakage.  This type of equipment is best suited for use with 
an air compressor.  When compressed air cylinders are used 
as the air source and air must be conserved, the pressure-
demand type respirator is preferred;   

 
b. Pressure demand: where the respirator maintains a slight 

positive pressure while supplying air at the demand of the 
wearer;  

 
c. Demand type: a respirator that is not recommended since it 

does not maintain a positive pressure within the face.  
 

2. Self Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) 
 

SCBA’s provide a breathing air source that is carried by the user, 
offering greater mobility to the wearer than air-line respirators.  
SCBA’s may be used in IDLH atmospheres provided that that they 
offer a minimum service life of 30 minutes.  This is the equipment of 
choice for emergency situations.  SCBA respirators with less than 
30 minutes of service life may be used to escape from IDLH 
atmospheres provided that they are NIOSH-certified for escape 
from the atmosphere in which they will be used.  An SCBA's 
advantage over an air-line respirator is that it can be used at 
greater distances from an air source.  Disadvantages are their 
weight, bulk, and the time limit associated with each air supply unit.  
Additionally, higher levels of operator training are required to 
ensure safe use. 

 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 16 of 34 Respirator Policy 

C. Combination Respirators 
 

As their name implies, these respirators use various elements of the 
aforementioned types.  There are two types of combination respirators:   

 
1. SCBA/Air-line Units 

 
Provide SCBA back-up if the primary air-line supply fails.  These 
respirators may be used in IDLH atmospheres and are good for 
situations that require extended work periods beyond the time 
provided by an SCBA alone. 

 
2. Air Purifying/Air-line Units 

 
Provide an APR back-up if the air supply fails. These respirators 
may not be used in IDLH atmospheres.  Furthermore, they may 
only be used in atmospheres for which the air-purifying device is 
approved. 

 
2. PROTECTION FACTORS 
 
Whether or not a particular type of respirator provides sufficient respiratory protection in 
a given situation depends on 1) the type and concentration of the airborne hazard, 2) 
the theoretical “protection factor” of the respirator, and 3) whether the respirator is 
properly worn. 
 
Different respirator designs offer different protection factors. Protection factor is defined 
as the ratio of the concentration outside the respirator to the concentration inside, under 
optimum conditions, if the respirator is properly worn.  For example, in an atmosphere 
containing 1000 parts per million of a solvent, use of a properly fitting half-mask 
respirator with a protection factor of 10 would be expected to reduce the concentration 
of the solvent inside the facepiece to no greater than 100 parts per million.  Be advised 
that some standards may have their own protection factors.  The following protection 
factors are as given by NIOSH. 
 
Standard Respirator Types and Protection Factors: 

Half-mask with Cartridges: 10 

Powered Air-Purifying, half-mask or full-face: 50 

Full-face with Cartridges: 50 

Full-face with Supplied Air (continuous flow): 1,000 

Self Contained Breathing Apparatus: 10,000 

 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 17 of 34 Respirator Policy 

To determine the maximum concentration of a contaminant to which someone may be 
exposed while wearing a particular respirator, multiply the protection factor by the 
contaminate Permissible Exposure Limit (PEL). 
 
When the contaminant is asbestos, consult GISO section 5208 to determine the 
protection factor.  When the contaminant is lead, consult GISO section 5216. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 18 of 34 Respirator Policy 

APPENDIX B 
 
QUALITATIVE FIT TEST PROCEDURES  
 
1. Dust/Mist Respirators without Hood (sodium saccharine): 

 
A. Have wearer don the respirator. 

 
B. Ask the wearer to close his/her eyes and repeat the “rainbow passage” 

below as recited by the tester while the test is being performed. 
 

C. Using the nebulizer, spray around the perimeter of the respirator, being 
sure to spray well around the nose area. 

 
D. If the wearer does not taste the saccharine, ask him/her to move his/her 

head up and down, and side-to-side, and then spray a few more times.  If 
the wearer tastes the saccharine, ask him/her to adjust the respirator, (be 
sure the wearer waits 5 minutes before redoing the test, so the taste can 
dissipate).  If the wearer still tastes the saccharine he/she fail the test and 
shall not be permitted to wear that particular respirator until able to pass 
the test. 

 
E. If the wearer does not taste the saccharine, remove the respirator and 

spray the saccharine directly into the mouth. 
 

F. If the wearer now tastes the saccharine, he/she passes the test.  If the 
wearer still does not taste the saccharine, he/she may not be sensitive to 
the taste and another test substance, such as irritant smoke, shall be 
used. 

 
2. Dust/Mist Respirators without Hood (denatonium benzoate) 

 
Follow the same procedures as in Appendix B, Section 1, A through F. 

 
3. Dust/Mist Respirators without Hood (stannic chloride smoke tube) 
 

A. Have wearer don the respirator. 
 

B. Ask the wearer to close his/her eyes and repeat the “rainbow passage” as 
recited by the tester while the test is being performed. 

 
C. Break the smoke tube.  With the aspirator, squirt the smoke around the 

perimeter of the respirator, being sure to concentrate the smoke in the 
nose and chin areas. 

 
D. If the wearer does not feel any irritation in their mouth, ask him/her to 

move his/her head up and down and side-to-side; continuing to dispense 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 19 of 34 Respirator Policy 

the smoke around the perimeter.  If the wearer does have some irritation, 
ask him/her to readjust the respirator.  After these readjustments, if the 
wearer still feels the irritation, he/she fails the test and shall not be 
permitted to wear that particular respirator until able to pass the test. 

 
E. If the wearer does not have any irritation, remove the respirator and squirt 

a little smoke towards the mouth. 
 

F. If the wearer feels a slight irritation, he/she passes the test and will be able 
to wear that respirator. 

 
4. Dust/Mist Respirators with Hood (sodium saccharine)  
 

Follow the same procedures as in Appendix B, Section 1, A through F. 
 
5. Organic Vapor Respirators without Hood (isoamyl acetate) 
 

A. Have wearer don the respirator. 
 

B. Ask the wearer to close his/her eyes and repeat the “rainbow passage” as 
recited by the tester while the test is being performed. 

 
C. Break the ampule and pass the ampule around the perimeter of the 

respirator and around the nose and chin areas. 
 

D. If the wearer does not smell the isoamyl acetate (banana), ask him/her to 
move his/her head up and down and side-to-side; continuing to pass the 
ampule around the perimeter.  If the user smells banana, have him/her 
readjust the respirator.  After readjustment, if the wearer still smells 
banana he/she fails the test and shall not be permitted to wear that 
particular respirator until able to pass the test. 

 
E. If the wearer does not smell banana, remove the respirator and pass the 

ampule by his/her nose. 
 

F. If the wearer now smells banana, he/she passes the test.  If the wearer 
still does not smell banana, he/she may not be sensitive to the test and 
another test substance, such as sodium saccharine shall be used.  

 
6. Organic Vapor Respirators with Hood (testing organic vapor respirators in the 

hood requires a dust/mist pre-filter) 
 

A. After the respirator is donned, put the hood over the wearer’s head and let 
it rest on his/her shoulders. 

 
B. Ask the wearer to breathe through his/her mouth and speak while the test 

is being performed.  



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 20 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
C. Insert the nebulizer into the hole and squeeze 10 times.  

 
D. If the wearer does not taste the saccharine, ask him/her to move his/her 

head a bit, then spray a few more times. If the wearer does taste the 
saccharine, ask him/her to adjust the respirator (be sure the wearer waits 
5 minutes before redoing the test, so the taste can dissipate).  If he/she 
still tastes the saccharine, he/she fails the test and shall not be permitted 
to wear that particular respirator until able to pass the test.  

 
E. If the wearer does not taste the saccharine, remove the hood and 

respirator and spray a small amount of the saccharine directly into the 
mouth.  

 
F. If the wearer now tastes the saccharine, he/she passes the test.  If the 

wearer still does not taste the saccharine, he/she may not be sensitive to 
the taste and another test substance, such as isoamyl acetate, shall be 
used. 

 
RAINBOW PASSAGE 
 
The reason for the talking exercise is to test the fit of the respirator while the person’s 
mouth and jaw are moving, just like will occur in the work place.  It is not really important 
that the exact language in the Rainbow Passage be used.  What is important is that the 
person speaks loud enough so that others can hear and understand.  If the Rainbow 
Passage cannot be used, have the individual count out loud, or sing, or say almost 
anything.  As long as you simulate talking out loud just like will be done in the work 
place, you will be achieving the intent of this exercise. 
 
The following “Rainbow Passage” is to be repeated back by the person being fit-tested 
while wearing his/her respirator in a test environment (subjected to isoamyl acetate or 
acid smoke).  Additionally, the respirator wearer should move his/her head in a variety 
of motions, up-and-down, back-and-forth and side-to-side, while reading. 
 
 
Rainbow Passage: 
 
When the sunlight strikes raindrops in the air, they act like a prism and form a rainbow.  
The rainbow is a division of white light into many beautiful colors.  These take the shape 
of a long round arch, with its path high above, and its two ends apparently beyond the 
horizon.  There is, according to legend, a boiling pot of gold at one end.  People look, 
but no one ever finds it.  When a man looks for something beyond his reach, his friends 
say he is looking for the pot of gold at the end of the rainbow.   



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 21 of 34 Respirator Policy 

APPENDIX C 
 
CAL-OSHA REGULATIONS (CCR, Title 8, GlSO 5144, APPENDIX D) 

 
This Appendix contains mandatory information for employees using respirators when 
not required under CCR, Title 8, GlSO 5144. 
 
Respirators are an effective method of protection against designated hazards when 
properly selected and worn.  Respirator use is encouraged, even when exposures are 
below the exposure limit, to provide an additional level of comfort and protection for 
workers. However, if a respirator is used improperly or not kept clean, the respirator 
itself can become a hazard to the worker.  Sometimes, workers may wear respirators to 
avoid exposures to hazards, even if the amount of hazardous substance does not 
exceed the limits set by CAL-OSHA standards.  If your employer provides respirators for 
your voluntary use, or if you provide your own respirator, you need to take certain 
precautions to be sure that the respirator itself does not present a hazard.  
 
You should do the following:  
 
1. Read and heed all instructions provided by the manufacturer on use, 

maintenance, cleaning and care, and warnings regarding the respirator's 
limitations. 

 
2. Choose respirators certified for use to protect against the contaminant of 

concern. NIOSH, the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health of the 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, certifies respirators.  A label or 
statement of certification should appear on the respirator or respirator packaging. 
It will tell you what the respirator is designed for and how much it will protect you.  

 
3. Do not wear your respirator into atmospheres containing contaminants for which 

your respirator is not designed to protect against.  For example, a respirator 
designed to filter dust particles will not protect you against gases, vapors, or very 
small solid particles of fumes or smoke.  

 
4. Keep track of your respirator so that you do not mistakenly use someone else's.  
 
 
 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 22 of 34 Respirator Policy 

APPENDIX D 
 
CAL-OSHA Regulations (CCR, Title 8, GlSO 5144)  
 
Respiratory Protection 5144, section e  
 
(e) Medical evaluation. Using a respirator may place a physiological burden on 

employees that varies with the type of respirator worn, the job and workplace 
conditions in which the respirator is used, and the medical status of the 
employee. Accordingly, this paragraph specifies the minimum requirements for 
medical evaluation that employers must implement to determine the employee's 
ability to use a respirator.  

 
(e)(1)    General. The employer shall provide a medical evaluation to determine 

the employee's ability to use a respirator, before the employee is fit tested 
or required to use the respirator in the workplace. The employer may 
discontinue an employee's medical evaluations when the employee is no 
longer required to use a respirator.  

 
(e)(2)     Medical evaluation procedures.  

 
(e)(2)(A) The employer shall identify a physician or other licensed health care 

professional (PLHCP) to perform medical evaluations using a 
medical questionnaire or an initial medical examination that obtains 
the same information as the medical questionnaire. 

 
(e)(2)(B)  The medical evaluation shall obtain the information requested by the 

questionnaire in Sections 1 and 2, Part A of Appendix E of this 
section. 

 
(e)(3)     Follow-up medical examination.  

 
(e)(3)(A)      The employer shall ensure that a follow-up medical examination is 

provided for an employee who gives a positive response to any 
question among questions 1 through 8 in Section 2, Part A of 
Appendix E or whose initial medical examination demonstrates the 
need for a follow-up medical examination. 

 
(e)(3)(B)      The follow-up medical examination shall include any medical tests, 

consultations, or diagnostic procedures that the PLHCP deems 
necessary to make a final determination. 

 
(e)(4)     Administration of the medical questionnaire and examinations.  

 
(e)(4)(A)      The medical questionnaire and examinations shall be administered 

confidentially during the employee's normal working hours or at a 
time and place convenient to the employee. The medical 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 23 of 34 Respirator Policy 

questionnaire shall be administered in a manner that ensures that the 
employee understands its content. 

 
(e)(4)(B)      The employer shall provide the employee with an opportunity to 

discuss the questionnaire and examination results with the PLHCP. 
 

(e)(5)     Supplemental information for the PLHCP.  
 

(e)(5)(A)      The following information must be provided to the PLHCP before the 
PLHCP makes a recommendation concerning an employee's ability 
to use a respirator:  

 
(e)(5)(i)(1)   The type and weight of the respirator to be used by the 

employee; 
 

(e)(5)(i)(2)   The duration and frequency of respirator use (including use for 
rescue and escape); 

 
(e)(5)(i)(3)   The expected physical work effort; 
 
(e)(5)(i)(4)   Additional protective clothing and equipment to be worn; and  
 
(e)(5)(i)(5)   Temperature and humidity extremes that may be encountered. 

   
(e)(5)(B)      Any supplemental information provided previously to the PLHCP 

regarding an employee need not be provided for a subsequent 
medical evaluation if the information and the PLHCP remain the 
same. 

 
(e)(5)(C)   The employer shall provide the PLHCP with a copy of the written 

respiratory protection program and a copy of this section.  
 

Note to Paragraph (e)(5)(C):  When the employer replaces a PLHCP, 
the employer must ensure that the new PLHCP obtains this 
information, either by providing the documents directly to the PLHCP 
or having the documents transferred from the former PLHCP to the 
new PLHCP.  However, OSHA does not expect employers to have 
employees medically reevaluated solely because a new PLHCP has 
been selected.  

 
(e)(6)     Medical determination. In determining the employee's ability to use a 

respirator, the employer shall:  
 

(e)(6)(A)  Obtain a written recommendation regarding the employee's ability to 
use the respirator from the PLHCP. The recommendation shall 
provide only the following information:  

 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 24 of 34 Respirator Policy 

(e)(6)(i)(1)  Any limitations on respirator use related to the medical 
condition of the employee, or relating to the workplace 
conditions in which the respirator will be used, including 
whether or not the employee is medically able to use the 
respirator; 

 
(e)(6)(i)(2)  The need, if any, for follow-up medical evaluations; and 
 
(e)(6)(i)(3)  A statement that the PLHCP has provided the employee with a 

copy of the PLHCP's written recommendation. 
 

(e)(6)(B)  If the respirator is a negative pressure respirator and the PLHCP 
finds a medical condition that may place the employee's health at 
increased risk if the respirator is used, the employer shall provide a 
PAPR if the PLHCP's medical evaluation finds that the employee can 
use such a respirator; if a subsequent medical evaluation finds that 
the employee is medically able to use a negative pressure respirator, 
then the employer is no longer required to provide a PAPR. 

             
(e)(7)     Additional medical evaluations. At a minimum, the employer shall provide 

additional medical evaluations that comply with the requirements of this 
section if:  

 
(e)(7)(A)  An employee reports medical signs or symptoms that are related to 

ability to use a respirator; 
 
(e)(7)(B)  A PLHCP, supervisor, or the respirator program administrator informs 

the employer that an employee needs to be reevaluated; 
 
(e)(7)(C)  Information from the respiratory protection program, including 

observations made during fit testing and program evaluation, 
indicates a need for employee reevaluation; or 

 
(e)(7)(D)  A change occurs in workplace conditions (e.g., physical work effort, 

protective clothing, and temperature) that may result in a substantial 
increase in the physiological burden placed on an employee. 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 25 of 34 Respirator Policy 

APPENDIX E 
 
TO THE EMPLOYEE:  Can you read (circle one)? Yes    No  
 
Your employer must allow you to answer this questionnaire during normal working 
hours, or at a time and place that is convenient to you.  To maintain your confidentiality, 
your employer or supervisor must not look at or review your answers, and your 
employer must tell you how to deliver or send this questionnaire to the health care 
professional who will review it.  
 
Part A Section 1 (Mandatory)  
 
The following information must be provided by every employee who has been selected 
to use any type of respirator (please print).  
 
 
1.  Today's Date:____________________________   
 
2.  Your Name: _______________________________________   
 
  Signature ________________________________________   
 
3.  Your Age (to nearest year): ________________   
 
4.  Sex (circle one):   Male    Female 
 
5.  Your Height:_______ ft. ______ in.  
 
6.  Your Weight: ________ lbs.  
 
7.  Your Job Title: _____________________________________  
 
8.  A Phone Number Where You Can Be Reached by The Consulting Physician Who 

Reviews This Questionnaire, Including Area Code:  
 
 _______________________________________  
 
9.  The Best Time to Phone You at This Number:  
 
 _________________________________________________  
 
10.  Has your employer told you how to contact the consulting physician who will review 

this questionnaire (circle one)?   
 
 Yes No  
 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 26 of 34 Respirator Policy 

11.  What type of respirator you will use?  Check all that apply:  
 

a. ____ N (non oil-resistant), R (oil-resistant), or P (oil proof) Disposable 
Respirator Filter-Mask, Non-Cartridge Type Only  
 
b. ____ Other Type, e.g. Half or Full-Facepiece Type, Powered Air-Purifying, 
Supplied-Air, or Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus 

 
12.  Have you worn a respirator?   Yes No  
 

If ''Yes,'' what type(s)? _________________________________________  
 
____________________________________________________________  

 
 
Part A Section 2 (Mandatory)  
Questions 1 through 9 below must be answered by every employee who has been 
selected to use any type of respirator (please circle 'Yes'' or ''No'').  
 
 
1.  Do you currently smoke tobacco, or have you smoked tobacco in the last month?  
 
 Yes No  
 
2.  Have you ever had any of the following conditions?  
 

a.  Seizures (fits):  Yes No  
 
b.  Diabetes (sugar disease):  Yes No  
 
c.  Allergic Reactions That Interfere With Your Breathing:  Yes No  
 
d.  Claustrophobia (fear of closed-in places):  Yes No  
 
e.  Trouble Smelling Odors:  Yes No  

 
3.  Have you ever had any of the following pulmonary or lung problems?  
 

a.  Asbestosis:  Yes No  
 
b.  Asthma:  Yes No  
 
c.  Chronic Bronchitis:  Yes No  
 
d.  Emphysema:  Yes No  
 
e.  Pneumonia:  Yes No  



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 27 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
f.  Tuberculosis:  Yes No  
 
g.  Silicosis:  Yes No  
 
h.  Pneumothorax (Collapsed Lung):  Yes No  
 
i.  Lung Cancer:  Yes No  
 
j.  Broken Ribs:  Yes No  
 
k.  Any Chest Injuries or Surgeries:  Yes No  
 
l.  Any Other Lung Problem That You've Been Told About: Yes No  

 
4.  Do you currently have any of the following symptoms of pulmonary or lung illness?  
 

a.  Shortness of Breath:  Yes No  
 
b.  Shortness of Breath When Walking Fast on Level Ground or Walking Up a 

Slight Hill or Incline:  
  
 Yes No  
 
c.  Shortness of Breath When Walking With Other People at an Ordinary Pace 

on Level Ground:   
   
 Yes No  
 
d.  Have to Stop For Breath When Walking at Your Own Pace on Level Ground:  
  
 Yes No  
 
e.  Shortness of Breath When Washing or Dressing Yourself: Yes No  
 
f.  Shortness of Breath That Interferes With Your Job:  Yes No  
 
g.  Coughing That Produces Phlegm (Thick Sputum): Yes No  
 
h.  Coughing That Wakes You Early in the Morning: Yes No  
 
i.  Coughing That Occurs Mostly When You Are Lying Down: Yes No  
 
j.  Coughing Up Blood in the Last Month: Yes No  
 
k.  Wheezing: Yes No  
 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 28 of 34 Respirator Policy 

l.  Wheezing That Interferes With Your Job: Yes No  
 
m.  Chest Pain When You Breathe Deeply: Yes No  
 
n.  Any Other Symptoms That You Think May Be Related to Lung Problems:  
  
 Yes No  

 
5.  Have you ever had any of the following cardiovascular or heart problems?  
 

a.  Heart Attack:  Yes No  
 
b.  Stroke: Yes No  
 
c.  Angina: Yes No  
 
d.  Heart Failure: Yes No  
 
e.  Swelling in Your Legs or Feet (Not Caused By Walking):  Yes No  
 
f.  Heart Arrhythmia (Heart Beating Irregularly): Yes No  
 
g.  High Blood Pressure: Yes No  
 
h. Any Other Heart Problem That You've been Told About: Yes No  
 

6.  Have you ever had any of the following cardiovascular or heart symptoms?  
 

a.  Frequent Pain or Tightness in Your Chest: Yes No  
 
b.  Pain or Tightness in Your Chest During Physical Activity: Yes No  
 
c.  Pain or Tightness in Your Chest That Interferes with Your Job:  
 
 Yes No  
 
d.  In the Past Two Years, Have You Noticed Your Heart Skipping or Missing a 

Beat?  
 
 Yes No  
 
e.  Heartburn or Indigestion That Is Not Related to Eating: Yes No  
 
f.  Any Other Symptoms That You Think May Be Related to Heart or Circulation 

Problems:  
 
 Yes No  



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 29 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
7.  Do you currently take medication for any of the following problems?  
 

a.  Breathing or Lung Problems: Yes No  
 
b.  Heart Trouble: Yes No  
 
c.  Blood Pressure: Yes No  
 
d.  Seizures (Fits): Yes No  

 
8.  If you've never used a respirator, initial here_____ and go to question 9.  If you've 

used a respirator, have you ever had any of the following problems?   
 

a.  Eye Irritation:  Yes No  
 
b.  Skin Allergies or Rashes:  Yes No  

 
c.  Anxiety:  Yes No  

 
d.  General Weakness or Fatigue:  Yes No  

 
e.  Any Other Problem That Interferes With Your Use of a Respirator:   
 
 Yes No  

 
9.  Would you like to talk to the consulting physicial who will review this questionnaire 

about your answers to this questionnaire?  
 
 Yes No  
 
10.  Have you ever lost vision in either eye, either temporarily or permanently?   
 
 Yes No  
 
11.  Do you currently have any of the following vision problems?  
 

a.  Wear Contact Lenses:  Yes No 
  
b.  Wear Glasses:  Yes No  

 
c.  Color Blind:  Yes No  
 
d.  Any Other Eye or Vision Problem:  Yes No  

 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 30 of 34 Respirator Policy 

12.  Have you ever had an injury to your ears, including a broken eardrum?   
 
 Yes No  
 
13.  Do you currently have any of the following hearing problems?  
 

a.  Difficulty Hearing:  Yes No  
 
b.  Wear a Hearing Aid:  Yes No  
 
C.  Any Other Hearing or Ear Problem:  Yes No  

 
14.  Have you ever had a back injury? Yes No  
 
15.  Do you currently have any of the following musculoskeletal problems?  
 

a. Weakness in Any of Your Arms, Hands, Legs, or Feet:  Yes No  
 
b.  Back Pain: Yes No  

 
c.  Difficulty Fully Moving Your Arms and Legs:  Yes No  
 
d.  Pain or Stiffness When You Lean Forward or Backward at the Waist:   
 
 Yes No  
 
e.  Difficulty Fully Moving Your Head Up or Down:  Yes No  
 
f.  Difficulty Fully Moving Your Head Side to Side:  Yes No  
 
g.  Difficulty Bending at Your Knees:  Yes No  
 
h.  Difficulty Squatting to the Ground:  Yes No  
 
i.  Climbing a Flight of Stairs or a Ladder Carrying More Than 25 Lbs:  
 
 Yes No  
 
j.  Any Other Muscle or Skeletal Problem That Interferes With Using A 

Respirator:  
 
 Yes No  

 
16.  How often are you expected to use the respirator(s)?  Circle "Yes" or “No" for all 
answers that apply to you).  
 

a.  Escape Only (No Rescue):  Yes No  



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 31 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
b.  Emergency Rescue Only:  Yes No  
 
c. Less than 5 Hours per Week:  Yes No  
 
d.  Less than 2 Hours per Day:  Yes No  
 
e.  2 to 4 Hours per Day:  Yes No  
 
f.  Over 4 Hours per Day:  Yes No  

 
 
17.  During the period you are using the respirator(s), is your work effort:  
 

a.  Light (Less than 200 kcal per Hour)?  Yes No  
 
 If ''Yes,'' how long does this period last during the average shift? 
 
 Hours. _____ Minutes. _____   
 

Examples of a light work effort are sitting while writing, typing, drafting, or 
performing light assembly work; or standing while operating a drill press (1–3 
lbs.) or controlling machines. 

 
 b.  Moderate (200 to 350 kcal per hour)? Yes No  
 
 If ''Yes,'' how long does this period last during the average shift:? 
 
 Hours. _____ Minutes. _____   
 

Examples of moderate work effort are sitting while nailing or filing; driving a 
truck or bus in urban traffic; standing while drilling, nailing, performing 
assembly work, or transferring a moderate load (about 35 lbs.) at trunk level; 
walking on a level surface about 2 mph or down a 5-degree grade about 3 
mph; or pushing a wheelbarrow with a heavy load (about 100 lbs.) on a level 
surface. 

 
 c.  Heavy (Above 350 kcal per Hour)?  Yes No 
  
 If ''Yes,'' how long does this period last during the average shift? 
 
 Hours. _____ Minutes. _____   
 

Examples of heavy work are lifting a heavy load (about 50 lbs.) from the floor 
to your waist or shoulder; working on a loading dock; shoveling; standing 
while bricklaying or chipping castings; walking up an 8-degree grade about 2 
mph; climbing stairs with a heavy load (about 50 lbs.). 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 32 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
18.  Will you be wearing protective clothing and/or equipment, other than the respirator, 

when you're using your respirator?  
 
 Yes No  
  
 If ''Yes,'' describe this protective clothing and/or equipment: 
 

 ___________________________________________________________  
 
 ___________________________________________________________ . 

 
 
19.  Will you be working under hot conditions, temperature exceeding 77°F?  
 
 Yes No  
 
20.  Will you be working under humid conditions?  Yes No  
 
 
 
 
 
 

End of Medical Questionnaire 
 
 
 
 
 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 33 of 34 Respirator Policy 

Appendix F 
 
Atmosphere-Supplying Respirators Facility Checklist 
 
Breathing Air Quality and Use  
 
1. Provide all employees using atmosphere-supplying respirators (supplied-air and 

SCBA) with breathing gases of high purity.  
  
2. Ensure that compressed air, compressed oxygen, liquid air, and liquid oxygen 

used for respiration accords with the following specifications: 
 

A. Compressed and liquid oxygen shall meet the United States 
Pharmacopoeia requirements for medical or breathing oxygen; and  

 
B. Compressed breathing air shall meet at least the requirements for Grade 

D breathing air described in ANSI/Compressed Gas Association 
Commodity Specification for Air, G-7.1-1989, to include: 

 
i. Oxygen content (v/v) of 19.5-23.5%; 
 
ii. Hydrocarbon (condensed) content of 5 milligrams per cubic meter 

of air or less; 
 
iii. Carbon monoxide (CO) content of 10 ppm or less; 
 
iv. Carbon dioxide content of 1,000 ppm or less; and 
 
v. Lack of noticeable odor. 

 
3. Ensure that compressed oxygen is not used in atmosphere-supplying respirators 

that have previously used compressed air.   
 
4. Ensure that oxygen concentrations greater than 23.5% are used only in 

equipment designed for oxygen service or distribution. 
 
Breathing Air Cylinders  
 
All cylinders used to supply breathing air to respirators must meet the following 
requirements: 
 
1. Test and maintain cylinders as prescribed in the Shipping Container Specification 

Regulations of the Department of Transportation (49 CFR part 173 and part 178); 
 
2. Ensure that cylinders of purchased breathing air have a certificate of analysis 

from the supplier that the breathing air meets the requirements for Grade D 
breathing air; and 



  

Rev. 11/04 Page 34 of 34 Respirator Policy 

 
3. The moisture content in the cylinder does not exceed a dew point of -50 degrees 

Fahrenheit (-45.6 degrees Celsius) at 1 atmosphere pressure. 
 
Compressors  
 
1. Ensure that compressors used to supply breathing air to respirators are 

constructed and situated so as to: 
 

A. Prevent entry of contaminated air into the air-supply system; 
 
B. Minimize moisture content so that the dew point at 1 atmosphere pressure 

is 10 degrees Fahrenheit (5.56 degrees Celsius) below the ambient 
temperature; 

 
C. Have suitable in-line air-purifying sorbent beds and filters to further ensure 

breathing air quality. Sorbent beds and filters shall be maintained and 
replaced or refurbished periodically following the manufacturer's 
instructions. 

 
D. Have a tag containing the most recent change date and the signature of 

the person authorized by the employer to perform the change. The tag 
shall be maintained at the compressor. 

 
2. For compressors that are not oil-lubricated, ensure that carbon monoxide levels 

in the breathing air do not exceed 10 ppm. 
 
3. For oil-lubricated compressors, use a high-temperature or carbon monoxide 

alarm, or both, to monitor carbon monoxide levels.  If only high-temperature 
alarms are used, the air supply shall be monitored at intervals sufficient to 
prevent carbon monoxide in the breathing air from exceeding 10 ppm. 

 
4. Ensure that breathing air couplings are incompatible with outlets for non-

respirable worksite air or other gas systems.  No asphyxiating substance shall be 
introduced into breathing air lines. 

 
5. Use breathing gas containers marked in accordance with the NIOSH respirator 

certification standard, 42 CFR part 84. 
 






















































	Agenda May 29, 2012
	Study Session Agenda May 29, 2012
	1.  Department Head Reports
	2. Consent Calendar
	3.  Street Vendor Permit Amendment
	4.  Set Commission Interview Committee
	5.  Clark Wing Lease Agreements
	6.  JPIA Resource Manual Policy Adoption
	7.  General Municipal Election Resolutions
	8.  Auditor Services FY 2011-2012
	9. Lease Contract Renewal - Postage Machine
	10.  Purchase of computer software - PD
	11.  Purchase of Valve Exerciser
	12.  Street Closure - Farmers Market

